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Draft Active Transport Plan: Submission #49

The View page displays a submission's general information and data.

¥ SUEMISSION INFORMATION

Submission Number: 49
Submission ID: 689

Submission UUID
Submission URI:
Created: Wed, 07/12/2023 - 13:40

Completed: Wed, 07/12/2023 - 13:40
Changed: Wed, 07/12/2023 - 13:40

Remote IP address: || I
Submitted by: Anonymous
Language: English

Is draft: No
Webform: Public Exhibition
Submitted to: Draft Active Transport Plan

Delete submission

Your Name
Your Email

Subject
Written Submission for Draft Active Transport Plan

Message
Dear General Manager,

Please see attached my written submission regarding the Active Transport Plan.

Thanks,

Attachments
Active Transport Plan (1).docx
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11/7/12023

General Manager
Narrandera Shire Council
141 East St

Narrandera, NSW 2700

Dear General Manager,

| am writing this letter in relation to the new 'Draft Active Transport Plan’. | am very supportive of this and |
know this will be a real asset to our town! | was at the initial meeting and | hope these plans come to fruition. |
am very passionate about people being fit and active and believe that this would enable and encourage more
residents to get out there and get active. As the old saying goes, ‘build it and they will come’ and | think that in
this case, this will happen. As we know, Narrandera has many natural beauties and this will allow a connection
to many of these. It will also provide an opportunity for tourism and the town to promote itself as an outdoor
recreational oasis, with people able to come here to walk, ride and see the natural beauties in conjunction with
recreational facilities that we have including the pool, lake etc.

As the draft suggests, these walks and the current walks need to be advertised more, whether through better
signage, pamphlets, general advertising, social media etc. | don't think the current walks/tracks etc that we
have currently are promoted enough.

For me, the better part of the plan is the path out to the Rocky Waterholes and the bath to Brewery Flat/
Gillenbah and back over the bridge. These will be awesome paths for people to ride and walk to and from and
as mentioned, showing off some of our natural assets! | really hope the track back over the bridge near the
town beach can get up.

A few other suggestions | have are:

e Rip up the current path along Victoria Ave and replace it with a new one. My family and | use this path
quite often when we go to the Sportsground. This path looks like it was done on the cheap. It is rough,
it has troughs in it so it has a lot of puddles when it rains; it isn't wide enough, for example, you can not
have 2 people with prams cross each other without getting off the path; and quite often there is grass
that grows on the path and isn't maintained. If the other paths are done properly, it will make this look
substandard on a great street that is heavily used.

¢ Include the Mountain Biking Tracks from Rocky Waterholes to the showground. There isn't much that
needs to be done here as most of the tracks are already there (still could be improved with some
money put into them), but these should be included in any advertising through pamphlets etc as not
many people know about these and they are a hidden gem that would bring many people around the
area to ride. There are a lot of people in the area that go to Wagga/Bright that could come here instead.
With this you are reaching out to another group of Mountain Biker riders as well as your recreational
riders and road bike riders (Narrandera - a bike rider's haven). There still could be improvements such
as signage (there are different tracks with different difficulties), a car park down the bottom, toilets etc.

e Have a walking/riding track along the river, east of the Brewery Flat boat ramp. We don't use the river
enough as an asset, so this would be a great addition and | believe used heavily. There would need to
be a bridge installed where there is a low level on the bank where there is a water run off, but this
would be a great use of the money. Along the river could be some information about the river, history of
the area (including of the Wiradjuri people) etc. You could link this all the way to the common, 1st
beach etc. This would be an awesome path!!!!
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In addition to this, | believe the whole Brewery Flat area should be re-designed. This would be separate
to the plan (except for the above walking track), and allow this to be a great place for locals and tourists
to experience and hang out. My family and | also regularly walk down here and it is a great place to be,
however | always think that we could do so much more with the area. The way it is now, it is very
limited to what can be done here. | have included a (dodgy) drawing below of what | think would bring
this area to life and bring the river as more of a centrepiece that people would use. | would change the
road from the highway to the North of the toilet block and rip the current road so that there is a lot more
space. In this space you could have a playground. | understand there's a new playground going up in
Watermain St and a possible improvement to Marie Bashir Park, but this could also be another great
area for families to visit, play and hang out. A new undercover area (with no wall on the west) that has
an improved design and more BBQ's and tables would be a great addition. There could also be small
boxed jetty's on the bank with rod holders for people to fish off the bank. A sign with some history of the
brewery, as there have been in the main street would also be great. A small car park would be great
and even a car/boat trailer park next to the boat ramp would bring this area up and make it more
accessible.
e Have a path on the east of Cadell St between Twynam St and Audley St. This is the only section of path
missing from Douglas St to what will hopefully be a path all the way to Brewery Flat/Gillenbah efc.
¢ As mentioned, | love the track that goes past Gillenbah and back over the ‘Historic Rail Bridge'. This

would highlight an asset that isn't used/visited enough. | would also like to see a track to the north east of

the bridge, which would link this part with the Wetlands and Brewery Flat again. There are small tracks

there now that link Town Beach with Lizard Drive that | use regularly when bike riding and it would be a

great track if done properly and it would provide another option.

Overall, | would like to say well done to the Narrandera Shire and all of those involved in this project and the
other projects that have been or are being completed. | am seeing signs of the town reaching its potential, and
from the outside looking in, it seems we have a council which is being proactive in making this happen, which
hasn't always been the case.

Kind regards,

(See image on next page)
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Draft Active Transport Plan: Submission #50

The View page displays a submission's general information and data.

¥ SUEMISSION INFORMATION

Submission Number: 50
Submission ID: 690

Submission UUID:
Submission URI:
Created: Thu, 07/13/2023 - 11:25

Completed: Thu, 07/13/2023 - 11:25
Changed: Thu, 07/13/2023 - 11:25

Remote IP address: || NN
Submitted by: Anonymous
Language: English

Is draft: No
Webform: Public Exhibition
Submitted to: Draft Active Transport Plan

Delete submission

Your Name

Your Email

Subject
Active Transport Plan

Message

| have read with interest Narrandera Shire's Active Transport Plan and wish to highlight the following:

As you are aware for many years | have been attempting to get Council to repair the Victoria Ave cycle/footpath
- specifically between Midgeon and Argyle Streets on the Southern side. To no avail. | note in Section 05 Victoria
Ave footpath is not noted as a Regular Walking and Cycling Route - f your studies have identified little use of the
foot path the data is wrong. It is used a lot or if your erroneous data indicates little usage it may be because
people have to walk on the ROAD as the footpath is impassable after the sprinklers have been on or it has
rained- so perhaps half right. Section 08 references suitability for all users and access for people with impaired
needs. Victoria Ave footpath fails (in patches) in both these areas,

May | also suggest that Council repairs their current assets to a non hazardous and passable all weather
standard before spending more money in other areas.

The footpath is the main access to The Showground, the Sportsground, the High School, Narrandera East
School, the Basketball Stadium, the playground in the Sportsground and the camping area near the
Showground- it is well used by many people, walking, cycling, running, with small children etc, however it has
some dangerous patches which necessitates users to leave the path and walk on busy Victoria Ave to avnid the
footpath hazards. Council is well aware of this - so do something!!

Attachments
{Empty}
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Draft Active Transport Plan: Submission #571

The View page displays a submission's general information and data.

¥ SUEMISSION INFORMATION

Submission Number: 51
Submission ID: 693

Submission UUID:
Submission URI:
Created: Fri, 07/14/2023 - 19:36

Completed: Fri, 07/14/2023 - 19:36
Changed: Fri, 07/14/2023 - 19:36

Remote IP address: || NN
Submitted by: Anonymous
Language: English

Is draft: No
Webform: Public Exhibition
Submitted to: Draft Active Transport Plan

Delete submission

Your Name

Your Email

Subject
Signage for start and end of safety barriers on Murrumbidgee crossing

Message

As an older first time visitor | attempted to walk from the Narrandera van park into town for an early morning
coffee. At your superb stunning road dividers, crossed over and did not see the track on the other side of the
divider nor could | have crossed over, too high and too wet for an older person to straddle. 5o the entrances
and exits to the track need to be obvious. | couldn’t get onto the proper footbridges once | was stuck on the
scary car side of that barrier. Maybe a little gap at the start and finish of the actual bridges thanks

Attachments
{Empty}
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RSO

From:

Sent: Tuesday, 1 August 2023 4:01 PM
To: Council Mail

Cc

Subject: Marrandera Shire Transport Plan

| |
General Manager & Senior Staff

MNarrandera Shire

Dear Directors/Managers

There are challenges in this Plan which deem changes or improvements to cater for the present and Future.
Constructively they are :-

- Heavy Vehicle & Through Traffic relating to the Newell, Sturt & Irrigation Way need a Bypass to the North of
Narrandera town.

- Independent Audits are important but so is feedback from Road Users.

- Types of potential Pedestrians are fine but Cyclist needs for Safety have not been examined
thoroughly. Referral should be made to earlier submissions for Bikeways made by NARBUGS (Narrandera
Bicycle Users Group) before the Pandemic. The safety of Cyclist has been mentioned but an extra bridge
over the Canal on the way to Nullabooma suburb is essential to rider safety.

- Narrandera Shire omits to mention Nullabooma. The intersection into Nullabooma is also of concern but
gets no mention that | see. Binya is not mentioned but is a very small village with different needs such a
decent footpath.

- With Grong Grong ( GG ) it is true that Bicycle lanes are not warranted but Veerbally views have been raised
at meetings with building a Bicycle Path to Matong along the northern side of the Rail link which is
dedicated roadway.

- A pathway at GG linking the Post Office/Shop with the Hotel side across the Rail line is a Must Do. A
Footpath up Balaro Street from the Shop to the only Operational Church needs action. Note please the word
Barellan in the notes needs replacing with Balaro as Barellan 5t only serves a smaller area.

- Barriers | Please reconsider, this certainly was requested before the N/Highway was diverted, the traffic has
since reduced significantly.

- Within GG itself the current roadway obstacle is Junee 5t east where the road is severely Broken and Grain
Trucks Turn into Ingress and turn out via Egress to utilize Junee 5t. Normal traffic can be seen often weaving
between the several vast holes.

- Narrandera Bicycle lanes Have been discussed over many years. | am surprized that the meetings & Forums
plans which provided Two directions of Bike Paths to Nullabooma & Gillenbah have not been included or
referenced. As to the Disused Tocumwal/Melbourne Railway to Town Beach Corridor. It is Not difficult to
negotiate with State Rail from meetings | have been across. The edge of this corridor is ideal to provide
another link by a shared path to town meeting with Audley 5t.

- Road traffic through Narrandera town would be eased with a future Transport Link connect the Eastern edge
of Town with the Mad Mile to Booka Rd & Irrigation Way. Later a link can allow for a connection to
Gillenbah for faster Newell Traffic,

- Under Network Planning please add ‘Cyclists in Training’ signs on the Old Wagga Rd. Hill down to the 5 Mile
area.

- At recent meetings to discuss the Town, its Drainage & another change to the main business area of East st.
there was much dissention to proposed plans. The exemption was that no one objected to the Main
shopping Blocks becoming a Safe Shopping Zone with cross hatched Yellow lines indicating such and speed
limits being seriously reduced.

- Other Matters **

- Marrandera Bus stops = Watermain 5t west has a Bus stop that does not meet safety or State standards .
This needs attention as a High Risk priority.

* - 5aint Josephs Bus Stop need maintenance attention.

1
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- The Grong Grong map does not show the Silos. For people to understand traffic movement, such Transport
Hubs should surely be shown.

- Attention needs to be given to completing a pathway through Narrandera along the Newell Hwy. (Cadell
St.east side) for the many walkers who transit down from the Figtree Motel to eat at the "Exies” Club.

The above matters have followed the pattern of your Transport plan.

It is my understanding of knowing the Shire, that | provide this constructive submission.
Please acknowledge and by all means discuss with me before criticism.

Submission made 1 August 2023

ltem 20.2- Attachment 1 Page 11 of 183
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PAGE2 | Narrandera Active Transport Plan

DOCUMENT
CONTROL

DOCUMENT STATUS
Document Title Narrandera Shire Active Tronsport Plan
Principal Author Currojong Pty Ltd
Revision |
Status Final
Date 03/08/2023
| Disclaimer

This Active Transport Plan has been prepared by Currgjong Pty Lid on behalf of Narondera Shire
Council. The plan hos been prepared with all reasonable skill, care and diligence, and taking
account of the timescale and resources allocated to it by ogreement with the client, Norrandera
Shire Council. Information reported herein is based on the infermation provided by Council and
ather sources and hos been occepted in good faith o3 being accurate and valid. This report is for
the exclusive use of the Narrandera Shire Council. No waranties of guarontees are expressed or
should be inferred by any third parties. This report may not be relied upon by other parties without
written consent from Currajong Pty Ltd. Currajong Pty Ltd disclaims any responsibility to the client
and others in respect of any matters outside the agreed scope of the work.
Proudly funded by the NSW
Government in association with
MNarrondera Shire Council

Ak
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Narrandera GaETRLNT
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PAGE3 | Narrandera Active Transport Plan

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
OF COUNTRY

Narrandera Shire Council acknowledges Abonginal and Torres Strait Islanders as
the first Australions and recognises that they have a unique relationship with the
land and woter.

Narrandera Shire is situated on the troditional londs of the Narrungdera Clon of
the Wiradjuri Nation, who have lived here for thousonds of years. We offer our
respect to their elders past and present ond through them, to all Aboriginal and
Torres Stroit Islonder people,

Abanginal people mointain a strong belief thot if we care for Country, it will cane
for us. This requires Country to be cared for throughout the process of design and
development of projects such as the Mamrandera Shire Active Transport Plan.

L
LR

Many of the transport routes we use today follow the treditional Songlines, trade
routes and ceremonial paths in Country that Aboriginal people followed for
thousonds of years.

It is appropnate that the Narandera Shire has on Active Transport Plan that plans
for new connections to Country under a systematic approach with oppropricte
levels of community engagement.

a
.’.

A ‘Connecting with Country’ opproach will also help us all meet any statutory
requirements to sustainably manage Aboriginal culture ond heritage in the built
environment.

%
%e

N
.:o-'."-
e o'®

Marrandera Active Transport
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PAGE4 |

Narrandera Active Transport Plan

MESSAGE FROM
THE MAYOR

| am pleased to present the first Active Transport Plan to support walking, cycling
and personal mobility in the Narrandera Shire.

Since the adoption of the Namandera Community Strategic Plan in 2012, Council
has been moking informed decisions about development and infrastructure
projects under its Integrated Planning and Reporting Framewark. The Narranderg
Shire Active Transport Plan is our most recent plon to help programme
improvements 1o the transport netwaork.

The Narrandera 2034 Community Strategic Plan highlights the community’s
aspirgtion 1o be o shire that strives for an inclusive community with greot lifestyle
opportunities and o clear direction for long term sustainable development.

Walking and cycling, otherwise referred to 03 active tronsport, is environmentally
friendly and good for your health, not to mention the social and economic
benefits. To ochieve a connected, safe and well used active transport network, we
need a plan to make active transport part of our evenyday routines.

The State government hos a goal to double octive transport trips in 20 years and
it is one thot | very much support for the Namrandera Shire, given our beautiful
connections to Country and interesting urban streetscopes.

Qur goal is to create accessible towns ond great local destinations and rmany
options to get there.

MNarrandera Active Transport
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PAGE 6 | SECTIONOL1 | INTRODUCTION

PROJECT
INTRODUCTION

Mamrandera Shire Council hos prepared the first Active
Transport Plan to opply in the Narrandera Shire. The Active
Transport Plan is proudly funded by the NSW Government in
association with Narmandera Shire Council.

Marrandera Shire has a large network of constructed
feotpaths within the main tewns and a smaller cycling and
shored path network. Public amenities, directionol signoge,
water points, seating, bicycle racks, streetlights ond trees as
weill as other urban focilities all support this network.

Travel pottems are dispersed across Namandera Shire

and highly dependent on motorised vehicles for long ond
short trips. As a result, the rood network can become quite
busy, particularly along highways and main reads as well

s local roads during the harvest season, peck shopping
times, schaol zones times ond around weekend sporting and
community events,

The Narrandera ATP draws on the Marrandera Shire
Pedestrion Access and Mobility Plan 2016 as well as the
Transport for NSW Future Transport Strategy and Active
Transport Strategy, both released in 2022, The aim is 1o make
active transport the preferred way to undertake short trips,
with Transport for NSW encouraging regional councils to
assist with achieving the NSW target to double the number
of active transport trips within 20 years.

The Narandera ATP identifies o range of infrastructure
improvements and social initiatives, aimed at enhancing
padestrian and cycling opportunities within the Namandera
Shire, with o particular focus on urban aneas where the

A BTN

highest level of active transport occurs. Given there

are limited funds available to undertake this work, the
MNamrandera ATP proposes targeted improvements that are
assessed to have the greatest benefits and user support.

Stokeholder engagement and investigations have clready
commenced through surveys, workshops ond meetings with
vanous agencies, interest groups ond residents. Feedback
recened so for provides valuable insight on active tronsport
behaviour, attitudes and aspirations. It suggests the
community is supportive of o more comprehensive and safer
active transport network throughout the Marrandera Shire.

Public exhibition of the Marrandera ATP wos the next

step in the process, followed by community input on the
recommended actions in the NMarrandera ATP and final
adoption by Narmandera Shire Council. The Active Transport
Plan will be used as a planning tool by Council to assist with
the programming of new projects.

Marrandera Active Transport
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PAGE 7 | SECTION 02 |

THE
VISION

VISION

The State Vision

The Transport for NSW Future Transport Strategy 2022 sets out the key actions to connect
communities and encourage more people to choose octive transport, including:

+  Delivering continuous and connected cycling networks.,

+  Improving the safety and comfort of people walking and riding bikes by providing
fit-for-purpose active tronsport infrastructure ond oppropriate road speeds.

+ Facilitating children’s and young people’s independent mobility by improving safe
walking and bike riding options for travel to and from schoal.

+  Supporting multimodal journeys by integrating octive and public transport.

+  Encouraging o shift to walking and cycling trips by delivering walking and cycling
infrastructure to support mode shift.

+  Supporting emerging technology choices such as e-bikes and other micro-mobility
devices.

The Transport for NSW Active Transport Strategy 2022 drows on the NSW Future
Transport Strotegy 2022 and its vision for wolking, riding and personal mobility. The NSW
Gaovernment wants walking and bike riding to be the preferred way to maoke short trips
ond a viable, safe ond efficient option for longer trips. The vision of the NSW Active
Transport Strategy 2022 is to double active transport trips in NSW over the next 20 years
by focussing on five areas:

+  Enable 15-minute neighbourhoods.

Deliver continuous and connected cycling networks.

Provide safer ond better precincts and main streets.
+  Promote walking and cycling and encourage behaviour change.
+ Support our partners and accelerate change.

The NSW Active Transport Strategy odvocates for councils to odopt longer term ambitions
[through the development of active transport plans) 1o guide planning, investment and
priority octions for octive transport across NSW, including regional and rural oreas.

Future Transport
Strategy

O o g S Sprugur =

MNarrandera Active Transport
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PAGE 8 | SECTIONOZ | VISION

The Vision for the Region

Marrandera is within the Rivering Muray Region, which is one of
the strongest agricultural regions in Australio ond well connected
to national road and rail cormdors

The Riverina Murray Regional Plan 204] provides the NSW
Govemmant's vision for land-use in the region, including the
natural environment, future hazards, housing and related
infrastructure, industry, employment areas and town centres.

While not specifically torgeting transport planning, the Rivering
Murray Regional Plan 2041 supports the expansion of transport
networks and improved connections between centres ond other
regions to bolster business and industry growth.

Other recent regional planning work such as the NSW 2040
Economic Blueprint, Transport for MSW Future Transport 2054,
MN5W Services and Infrastructure Plan, regional economic
development strategies ond regional water strategies have been
incorporated into the regional plan.

Qur
Narrandera Shire
2034

COMMUNITY
STRATEGIC

-
.

i
-

arrandera

The Narrandera Community Vision

The Marandera 2034 Community Strategic Plon sets the
following long-term vision for Marmanderg Shire:

‘The vision of our Community Strategic Plan is ‘to preserve
and enhance the lfestyle of our communities by ancouraging,

promoting and focilitating the sustainable development of the
Shire! We do this by ‘Achieving Together.”

Five focus areas have been agreed upon 10 achieve the
community’s ospirations and vision for Norrandera Shire, s
follows:

+  OurCommunity.

*  Our Environment.

+  QOur Economy.

*  Qurinfrostructure.

*+  OurCivic Lecdership.

Narrandera Active Transport
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PAGES | SECTIONOZ | VISION

Delivery
Program

The Narrandera Delivery Framework

The Namrandera Shire Council 2022 - 2026 Delivery Program
is Council's four-year commitrnent to the progression of work
highlighted for greater focus.

Council's Operational Plans provide specific detail on the
delivery of projects within each financial year, including
budgets.

The Namrandera Shire Council Road Sofety Action Plan is a
four year plan for the delivery of local road sofety projects 1o
June 2025. This plan incorporates analysis of local crash dato
to identify issues to be oddressed through educotion and
behaviour change progroms.

Ictri:;ort

'

Narrandera Active Transport Plan

The Narmandera ATP (this report) proposes a targeted project
opproach to the progressive improvement of the octive
transport network over a 10 to 20 yeor period.

Projects identified in the Narandera ATP have been visualised
in mapping and prioritised to focilitate inclusion in Council's
Delivery Program and Operation Plans.

Council will refer to the Narrandera ATP when seeking grant
funding ossistance or raising the profile of importont projects
with other orgonisations, residents and stakeholder groups.

Marrandera Active Transport
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PAGE 10 | SECTION 03 | CHALLENGES + OPPORTUNITIES

CHALLENGES +
OPPORTUNITIES

Recent Changes

Alot has chonged since the adoption of the Narrandera Shire
Pedestrion Access and Mobility Plan 20014, including:

+  Floods and bushfires hove demanstrated the need to
build more resilient towns ond multi-modal tronsport
systems.

+  The COVID-I% pandemic has shown how quickly we
can adapt and adopt new habits such as remote
working, different transport choices beyond motor
wehicles and a rethink of work / life balance and the
five-day work commute.

+  There is more urgency around reducing greenhouse
gas emissions from transpart, with a growing demand
for electric vehicles and the NSW government making
o commitment to Met Zero for transport operations by
20385,

+ Connecting with Country now informs the planning,
design, and delivery of built environment projects in
NSW.

+ The & Cities Region of Greoter Sydney has supplonted
the Metropolis of Three Cities, and there is renewed
emphasis on regional planning and development.

The Meovement and Place framework introduced in
2018 is now fully embedded in Transport for NSW paolicy.

+

New targets for 15-minute neighbourhoods’ have been
adopted by Transport for NSW policy under the NSW
Active Transport Strategy 2022,

Other Important policies that support active transport
infrastructure hove been released, including the NSW
Road User Space Allocation, Providing for Walking and
Cyeling in Tronspaort Projects, the Walking Spoce Guide
and the Cycleway Design Toolbox

Improvements in taxi, uber and rdeshare serices and
public transpart ticketing technology is empowering
customers to be more comfortoble choosing the best
mode for a trip and switching between modes.

Micro-mobility in the form of mobility scooters,
e-bikes and e-scooters is growing strongly, requinng
consideration of these new transport modes in the
rood environmant.

Recent State government funding for the preparation
of the Narandera ATP allows Council to undertoke
mone detailed plonning of its walking and cycling
Program.

Marrandera Active Transport
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Opportunities

+  The size of the Mamrandera Shire and
distances between centres,

+  Social and cultural connections to
Country, with 11396 of the population
being from Aboriginal or Torres Strait
Islander heritage.

+  Health, well-being and access, with
almost 30% of the population 55 years
old and over.

+  Heavyvehicle and through traffic along
urban and rural roads, with the Newell
Highwary and Sturt Highways running
through the shire.

+  High motor vehicle dependency, with
over 75% of the people using motor
vehicle transport to travel to work.

+ Flooding of the Murrumbidgee River,
drought and bushfires.

+  Work and lifestyle challenges.

+ Weeds and sediment movements over
paths and porkland focilities.

Unique and beautiful ploces = iparian
areqs, Maotionol Porks and reserves,
with locals ond visitors wanting to
expenence open freedoms, natural
wildlife including koolas ond other
connections to Country.

Supportive communities, with water
and land management innavations,
resource sharing, heglth, education
and transport being ot the forefront of
community focus.

Building even more resilient / connected
communities around health, education,
sports, notural landscopes, rural lond
management and local businesses.

Providing octive transport facilities
10 attroctorns such as 1o commaercial
precincts, schools, hospitals, sports
facilities and npanan areas,

Using active transport initiatives to
promote heaclth, safety, environmental
and econamic goals.

Conditions at Narmandera are ideal for
walking and cycling. A high proportion
of the town population lives within a
walkable distonce of the Marrondera
CBD and many of the schools and

workploces,

Marrandera Active Transport
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APPROACH +
METHODOLOGY

Active transport users ane far more attuned to the
emdronment in which they are maoving than faster moving
Motorists.

Planning for pedestrians and cyclists does not follow the
same logic as moter traffic planning, which normally invelves
a‘car - trips’ - ‘routes’ - ‘traffic network. It ploces more
emphasis on the environment and the conditions along
routes and ot ottractors.

An important aspect of the Narmandera ATP is to build

an understonding of the elements that will make a good
pedestrian and cycling network in the local context. These
include on understanding of the following:

+  The types of existing / potentiol pedestrions and
cyclists and their needs.

+ The condition of the existing pedestrion and cycling
network (including existing poths, gops ond barriers),

+  Where pedestrions and cyclists are going and why.

+  The traffic environment (speed and volume) that
pedestrions and cyclists must deal with.

+  The most oppropriate design options that meet
pedestrion and cyclists needs, including standard
and innovative options.

+ The views and aspirations of stokeholders.

+  The key planning and enginearnng principles that
underpin an effective and usable network.

+  Mechanisms to program / fund improvements to the
octive tronspart netwaork.

The approach is to develop new octive tronsport plans.
that build upon existing infrastructure and that address
the key issues and aspirations identified from community
consultation and audits.

To achieve this opproach, the Normandera ATP was
undertaken in the following stages:

Stage 1 - Asset Review

The main elements of the existing network of active
transport focilities have been recorded on o series of maps in
the Narrandera ATR. This local data hos been presented to
key Council staff, Transport for NSW and other stakeholders
as the basis for reviewing the long-term management of the
active transport network in Marmrandera Shire.

Stage 2 - Independent Audit Investigations
Consultant planners and traffic engineers specialising in
active transport plonning haove been engaged by Council
to independently investigate the existing active transport
network. This audit work was undertaken by

+  Drive-through ond walk-through surveys of the study
area, with particular focus on settlement aneas,
primary routes ond attroctors.

+  On-site meetings with community members where
specific sites / issues needed to be observed /
discussed.

The audits were not meant to gather o comprehensive
inventory of pedestrion and cycling ossets in the Namrandera
Shire, The emphasis of the audits wos on identifying gops
inthe network as well as the bamiers to people using the
neTwork.

Stage 3 - Promotion

Information about the Nammandera ATP was published in local
medio and Council’s website to inform community members
about the preparation of the new plan. Emails were clso sent
out to stokeholders known to Council to hove an interestin
pedestrion and cycling activities.

Stage 4 - Online Survey

An online survey was made available to abtain maore
information from community members about walking and
cycling behaviour and attitudes. Sixty (60] surveys were
completed which provided great insights on existing active
transport activity ond community aspirations into the future,

Narrandera Active Transport
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Community workshops were held in Barellan,
Grong Grong and Narrandera in December
2022, The workshops were structured cround o
series of local area maps to define issues and
places of interest. Questions were asked about
the pedestnian and cycling netwaork and local
conditions that led the conversation to allow
for problems, solutions, suggested routes and
feedback to be coverad within the allocated
workshop. Throughout the workshops, the
responses given had commaon themes which
reiterated the desire for addmonal paths to
popular destinations and routes within the
COMMANItY.

Stage 6 - Local Data Review and
Planning

The oudits and stokeholder feedback revealed
avariety of pedestrian and cycling focilities
provided in Narrandera Shire in varying
canditions. Expectedly, the investigations
identified o number of deficiencies and
barriers in the network, which are discussed
later in this report. Where these involved
minor issues, they were discussed with Council
staff for addressing. Project planning and
development issues were olso discussed with
relevont staff to assist with the fermulation of
projects and priorities in the Narrandera ATP.

%ga? - Narrandera Active Transport
n

The Narrandera ATP was prepared to record
the relevant information in one succinct
strategy document. Incorporated into the
Narrandera ATP are o series of maps dealing
with the audit and engagement findings

as well as octive transport project plons for
Barellan, Grong Grong ond Narmanderno.

These plans ‘visualise' the additional facilities
required to achieve g connected network

in each town. A Matrix Toble in Section 8
provides full visibility on how priorities and
actions were decided. Concept designs of the
top phonty projects recommended for action
ane also shown in the Narmandera ATP along
with project costings and any notes relating to
preject implementation.

Stage 8 - Public Exhibition

Formal public exhibition of the draft
Naorrandera ATP was completed in cccordance
with the Normondera Community Participation
Plan. The draft plan was made available for
viewing at the Narrandera Council Chambers
and on Council's website.

Stage ¢ - Review of Submissions and
Finalisation of Narrandera ATP

The final task was to review the draft plon
and finalise the programme of infrastructure
projects for odoption by Council.

MNarrandera Active Transport
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Narrandera Shire

Marrandero Shire is centred on the Murrumbidgee River,
approximotely 550 kilometres south-west of Sydney ond 437
kilomatres north of Melbourne.

Narrandera is located at the junction of the Murumbidgee
River, Newell and Sturt Highways. The junction marks the
transition between the extensive broad acre agricultural
areas of the western slopes and plains to the east ond the
highly productive Murrumbidgee Irrigation Area (MIA) to the
wiesL

The Narrandera Shire has o population of around 5,905
people (2021 Census) spread over a relatively large area
of 417 square kilometres. It includes the townships of
Marrandera, Barellan and Grong Grong, with Binya village
and a number of farming localities cll contributing to the
unique characteristics of the region.

The mainstay of the Norrandera Shire economy is agriculture,

with 24% of the Shire’s workforce employed in this sector.

qr

P

Analysis of car ownership from 2021 Census data indicotes
over #0% of households in Norrondera Shire own one or more
motor vehicles. The dependency on motor vehicles is lorgely
the result of limited public transport coverage ond the lorge
distances between ongins and destinations.

Only o small proportion of the community use alternative
methods to travel to wark, with walking being the most
prefermed with oround 6% of people advising they walk to
work in the 2021 ABS Census.

Accessto education and support senvices and o long-term
fecus on improving health and well-being are important
issues to cater to the needs of existing and future residents.
Poor occess to public transport contributes 1o social
disadvantage and accessibility issues in some sections of the
community.

MNarrandera Active Transport
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Preliminary consultation and audit findings

| Footpaths

There is a need 1o provide safier crossing
conditions at Yopunyah Street near the
centre of business and visitor activity
[west of the intersection of Yopurwah ond
Boree Street). The constructed footpath
network south of Yopunyah Street is
potchy, particularly clong Myall Street
and Mulga Street which are readily used
by residents, students and recreational
walkers. Given the concentration of
facilities south of Yopumyah Street there is
a need w provide additional connections
to link the western part of Yapuryoh
Street (including Barellon Post Office]

to Barellon Central School, Barellon
Swimming Pool and Barellan Sports
Ground as well gs residentiol properties
south of the main street.

| Shared Paths

There are no shared paths within Borellon.,
The community is supportive of shaned
paths where they can fit within the
footpath reserve.

| Kerb Ramps

In general, the provision of kerb ramps
along existing paths is patchy, non-
compliont and affected by water
ponding within gutters and the rood
shoulder. There is o need to undertake
a comprehensive review, repairand / or
replacement program of all kerb ramps
in Barellan. New kerb ramps should form
port of any new footpoth tregtments.

| School Zones

Barellan Central School has an
established school zone, There is an
existing footpath network (focused
primarily on Mulga Street and Baree
Street) connecting the school to other

nearby attractors including Barellon
Swimming Pool, Barellan Sports Ground
ond key commercial / community uses
on Yopunyah Street. The installation

of an additional footpath connection
to Yopunyah Street via Myall Street
would benefit school children as well os
residents living in the southern areas of
Barellon looking to walk and / or cycle to
the District War Memarial Club and Post
Office ond other attroctors in this areo.

| Bicycle Lanes

There are no on-road cyeling lanes or
exclusive cycling paths in Barellan. There
does not oppear to be any need to
provide dedicated bike lanes or off-rood
cycle paths at this stoge.

| Road crossings

There is generally limited use of kerb
extensions and blisters to reduce
effective road camiageway width and
provide more effective road crossing
POInts.

There is a need to provide sofer crossing
conditions of Yapunyah Street to connect
the Genercl Store and Barellan Hall
(south side of street) to the public toilets,
barbecue facilities, CWA Rest House,
parking and tourist focilities located on
the northem side of Yapunyoh Street.

The drginoge conditions around Barellan
need 1o be reviewed 1o ensune footpath
and road crossing points are free draining
and are not offected by water ponding
after rain events. This is particularly
important along Yapunyah Street, which
has minimal fall and no undenground
drainage system. Improved crossing
points, underground droinage and / or

regular maintenance and cleoning of
gutters would ovoid incidences of people
walking on roads and crossing roods ot
inapprophate locations.

| Barriers

The railway and traffic along Yopuryah
Street act as slight barriers to wolking and
cycling movernents.

| Obstacles

Water ponding along Yapunyah Street
and open drainoge swoles ot some
lecations act as temporary obstocles
ofter rain events. No street furniture,
$igns or other structures were observed
1o present major obstocles or hazords to
pedestrians or cyclists on constructed
paths.

| Trip hazards

Some kerb ramps and grassed footpaths
present os trip hazards. Provision of
concrete feotpaths and new kerb ramps
aleng main walkwoys would help oddress
potential trips and falls.

| Lighting
Mo major issues were raised / noted.
| Tactile indicators

Generally absent in Borellon and not
required at this stoge.

| End of trip facilities

Evonne Goolagong Park provides end of
trip focilities.

I Signage

Generally absent at main visitor
attractors.

Marrandera Active Transport
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Grong Grong

Overview

| Footpaths

There ore constructad footpaths along
Junee Street adjoining the main street
shops. There ore also smoll sections

of constructed footpaths along the
street frontages of the Grong Grong
Commemaration Hall and the Royal
Hotel. The blue ines on the map show the
existing footpaths in Grong Grong. The
balance of streets have grassed footpath
verges. The blue dash lines show parts of
the road network that are being readily
used by pedestrians that do not have
constructed footpaths.

| Shared Paths

There are no shared paths within Grong
Grong.
| Kerb Ramps

There are kerb ramps along constructed
feotpaths with varying levels of
comphance. In general, the provision

of kerb remps along existing paths is
potchy and non-existent where there
are no constructed paths. New kerb
ramps should form port of any new path
treatments.

| Sehool Zones

There are no schools in Grong Grong
and there is no need for school zones or
Crossings.

| Bicycle Lanes

There are no on-rood cycling lones or
exclusive cycling paths in Grong Grong,
naor are they warranted ot this stoge.

| Road crossings

There are no constructed road crossings
in Grong Grong.

| Barriers

The railway ond Newell Highway oct os
barriers to active transport movement.
The warrant for o formal crossing paint of
the Newell Highway is low due to the lack
of lond-use attroctors on the western side
of Berrembed Street.

There is 0 need to provide o formalised
crassing of the Junee to Hay Roitway.

The path crossing the railway is not
recommended as it is not locoted on the
public: rood network. A new path along
Canola Way would provide a safe cross of
the railway.

| Obstacles

Mo street furniture, signs or other
structures were observed to present major
obstacles or hazords to pedestrhians or
cyclists on constructed paths,

| Trip hazards

Grassed footpaths present as patential
trip hozards, Provision of concrete
footpaths and new kerb romps along
main walkweoys would help address
paotentiol trips and falls.

| Lighting
No mMojor issues wene raised [/ noted,
| Tactile indicators

Generally absent in Grong Grong and not
required ot this stoge.

| End of trip facilities

The park adjeining the Post Office
provides end of tnp facilities.

| Signage
Generally absent.
| Other

The roodside environment neor the Royal
Hotel includes a bus stop thot is used os
a central drop-off and pick-up point for
Countrylink and school buses,

Narrandera Active Transport
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Narrandera

Overview

Narrandera is home to approsimately two-thirds of the
Shire's population and has the mainstay of services and
(CBD). Narrandera Art and Community Centre, Narrandera
District Hospital, Marie Bashir Park, public and private
schools, TAFE, administrative buildings (police station, post
office, courthouse, council buildings) and the Narmandera
Showground.

Cenditions at Narrandera are ideal forwalking and eyeling.
Owver 90% of the town population lives within one kilometre
of the Narrandera CBD, schools and workplaces. Many of
the streets in Narrandera are quite wide ond have lower
traffic volumes than in larger regionol centres. The parklonds
and riparion areas in Normondera offer ideal conditions for
residents and visitors to conveniently access natural and
OURAOOr SpOces.

Trew lined streets, heritoge buildings, beautiful natural
environs, koala colony, rich natural wilkdlife and the Loke
Tolbot i = ti s doilywalking and
cycling by many residents as part of their regular exercise
routine. The rich diversity of riparian bushland is also catering
to a burgeoning visitor economy that is seeking connection to
Caountry, wildiife and friendly locals.

A new pedestrian bridge linking Lake Drive to Ookbank Street
has been constructed and this improves access over the main
canal, which forms part of the progrom of riparian bridge
crossings to create a comprehensive active transport plan for
MNamrandera.

Preliminary consultation and audit findings

A number of opportunities and constraints were identified in
the Narrandera active transport network, which are reported
inthis section. A mop summarising the audit / consultation
findings of the Narrandera investigations is also presented.

| Footpaths

The blue lines on the map show existing
footpaths. The blue dash lines show
the streets with no footpaths that were
observed to be used by pedestrians.
All community members consulted are
supportive of more footpaths.

| Shared Paths

The purple lines on the map show the
existing shored path network, which
include bitumen sealed ond concrete
surfaces. The purple dash lines on the
map show parts of the rood network that
are being readily used by pedestrians
and cyclists which would benefit from

@ shared poth, All community members
consulted are supportive of more shared
paths.

| Kerb Ramps

There are a number of kerb ramps that
need to be provided or need replocing
due to poor alignment, grade or
condition.

| School Zones

Schools in Narrandera are generally
provided with constructed footpaths

and / or shared paths. Conditions around
Marmandera High School, Norrandera
Public School and 5t Josephs Primary
School are quite busy during school zone
times and require o more comprehensive
active transport network. For Narrandera
East Infants School, pick-up ond drop-offs

occurwithin school grounds, however
maintaining quality footpath and shared
path connections would encourage
active tronsport to this facility.

| Bicycle Lanes

There is one small section of on-road
cycling lane in Marrandera. Consultation
with community members suggested o
focus on off-road shared paths over the
provision of dedicated bicycle lanes on
roads. There are some regular cyclists
who seek on-road cycling for leisure or
training. The section of Imgation Way
between Narrandera and Weir Pork Road
was identified as a hazardous ride for
cyclists, particularly the bridge crossing of
the main canal approximately 1.7km from
the outskirts of town.,

| Read crossings

There is generally limited use of kerb
blisters and refuge islands to reduce
effective road cariogeway width and
provide more effective road crossing
points. The main existing crossing points
are shown on the gudit mop,

There is o need to provide sofer crossing
conditions of canals and river crossings
to create a more connected active
transport network.

The bridge crossing of the main conal on
Larmer Street was raised os a potential
safety issue by residents in the areq that
needed addressing by Council as soon as
practical.

| Barriers

The Junee to Hay Roilway running
through Norandera and the Newel
Highway bath act as major bamers for
octive transport movements north and
south of town. Limited crossing points
tend to concentrate active transport
movement along main reads. Community
members consulted raised issues about
informal rail crossing points used by some
pedestrions. It was generally opprecioted
that negotioting OCCess Ogreements Over
ronhercry resenves for octive tronsport use
was difficult and often requires many
years of plonning. It was suggested the
focus should be on providing paths that
incorporate existing rood crossing points
to ensure coherent, safe and direct paths.
Using road crossing points aver candals
was olso raised as o potentiol barrier.

| Obstacles

No street furniture, signs or other
structures were observed to present major
obstacles or hazards to pedestrions or
cyclists on constructed poths.

| Trip hazards

Footpath cracking and sections of
broken paving were observed on some
footpaths in the central business district
and along some residential streets. Some
constructed paths finish before the rood
pavement which creates potential trip
hozord areas.

Narrandera Active Transport
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Many existing kerb romps present as

trip hazards due 1o poor alignment,
grade or condition. Provision of concrete
footpoths, shared paths and new kerb
remps along main walkways to the edge
of the secled road camageway would
help address potential trips ond falls.

Lighting
No major issues were raised / noted.
| Tactile indicators
Generally absent in Narrandera CBD and
other public areos.
| End of trip facilities
There are o good number of public

parks and facilities providing end-of-trip
facilities throughout Narrandera.

Other

There cre a number of otiroctors on

the outskirts of Narrandera (Rocky
Woaterholes, Mountain Bike Trails, Carella
Woods, Aboriginal Cultural areas] thot
are being occessed by people walking or
ricling their bike.

There was o need to provide greater focus
on cyclists and bike riding activity, with
maost people asking for more constructed
shared paths to avoid traffic and
punciures from catheads and bindies.

The Newell Highway was raised as a road
corridor requiring off-rood paths.

| Signage
Generally obsent.

Marrandera Active Transport
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Iconic walks and rural attractions

The bushland walking trails around Narmondera wamrant
speciol attention as they provide o wide range of
opportunities for locols and visitors to exercise, socialise
and enjoy the natural beauty of the Murrumbidgee River
and riparian forested oreas.

Improvements to the off-road active transport network
is seen by mony as important in supporting the health,
fitness and safety of the local community as well os the
wider visitor economy.

A Bike and Hike Norrondera’ mop hos been produced
to show the general location of walking paths and
destinations around the outskirts of Narrandera. This
map needs updating, and the level of detoil is likely
inadequate to satisfy the requirements of visitors to plan
trips into these areas.

MNavigational and interpretative signoge around
Narrandera is also inadequate to provide people with
enough information to fully explore cttractions.

Improvements in mapping and signage, and the genaral
availability of this information (in hard copy maps,
brachures and online) would likely improve sotisfaction
levels of visitor expenences to local tourist attractions
and destingtions.

B o hnsasend

There are no formal pedestrian or cycle routes
connecting towns and villages in the Narrandera Shire,
Cycling between towns and to ather rural destinations
within Narrandera Shire is generolly undertaken by
indnaduals and small bunch rides via a number of well-
estoblished routes known to local cyclists.

Narandera has a local cycling club known as ‘Narbugs.
The club holds regulor weekend training rides and other
planned events. There ane also active cycling clubs and
groups established in nearby centres such s Griffith
and Woggae Waggo.

The mode of choice for cyclists appears to be road
bikes and all-terrain bicycles. Rood bike rides alang
sealed roods was described by o number of locals as
potentially harardous due to traffic and the conditions
along rural roads. This was especially highlighted for
bike riders observed riding clong Imigation Way between
Naorrondera and Leeton where there is o narmow bridge
approximately 2.7km from the westem outskirts of
MNarrandera that presents as a hazord, Some bike riders
suggested if road conditions could be improved west

of Narrandera, the local road network then ‘opens-up’
to give bike riders more options to access quieter rural
roads. it was discussed that improving Octive transport
conditions along this section of Imgation Way is difficult
due to traffic volumes, bridge barriers and the costs
associated with creating effective improvements.

Locals seeking recrectional cycling octivity tend to ride
mare sturdy all-temain bikes (e.g. flat bar touring bikes
and mountain bikes) due 1o the existing rood conditions
and the freedom they provide in accessing quieter
gravel roods and rural attroctions.

In the community workshops a number of people
expressed the desire 1o see mare recreational cycling
routes connecting to the Murrumbidgee River and
riparian forested oreos. The Bike ond Hike Narrandera
map [right of page) shows some of the main walking and
cycling routes used by locals and visitors.,

,\mw - 1Verina B’,’mﬁ*

Points of interest

(P parking
#* public Toilets
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Planning decisions at a lecal level are influenced by broader global, +  Tounderstand the projects, links and netwark connections

Mational, Stote and regicnal issues, trends, needs and planning being planned in odjoining local government areos that

priorities, might benefit the strategy.

The review of supportive documents serves the following purposes: + To help understand the correct methodology and approach
when preparing the strategy.

+  Toensure the Narrandera ATP aligns with regional, State
and national policy directions. + To help identify ony deficiencies within the cumrent network

+ Toensure the Narrandera ATP aligns with the wider context R ot mcy hinder angoing o

of transport and lond-use planning policy dinections. The following documents are particularty important.

Movement and Place Practitioner’s Guide Walking Space Guide Cycleway Design Toolbox
Explaing how Provides a set of Pronades guidonce
built emvironment standards and on desired outcomes
practitioners can apply tools to ensure that for cycling and
a Maovement and sufficient spoce is micromodbility. It
Places approach to provided on streets to establishes design
projects and plans achieve comfortable principles for cycleways

environments which in specific contexts,
encourage people to including temporary
walk. initiatives ond public
. bicycle parking
facilities.

Metwork Planning in Precincts Guide MSW Public Spaces Charter MNSW Guide to Walkable Public Space
Provides best il The NSW Public Spaces B8 Cutlines why walkable
practice principles, Charter has been = public spoces are
tools, examples and developed to support needed. It includes
case studies of a the planning, design, NSW Guide ideas and opportunities
transport network management and to ' Walkable for how they can
that focilitotes the activation of public Public Space ™ be creoted and
efficient movement of spaces in NSW. It e r— @1 metheds for tialling
people and goods while identifies 10 principles LL T ond evaluating
supporting 15 minute for quality public spoce. improvements.

STRATEGIC = &

CONTEXT

MNarrandera Active Transport
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Healthy Lifestyle Creating a comprehensive active transport
. . network

Leading an active lifestyle brings many benefits for the : ) )

general health and well-being of Narmandera Shire residents. Comprehensive rood environments are ones that incorporate

Using footpaths, bicycle lones and shared paths provide o efficient ransport eptions lreads, public transport, feotpaths

cheap means of incorporating exercise into our daily routine, and cycleways) os well os gesthetic presentation and

As o regulor activity, welking, running, bike riding, scooter general walkobility. Guality footpaths aond shared poths are

ricling of skateboarding can aid the prevention of; particularty influential in encouraging people ocross all ages

1o lead more octive lifestyles.

The transport network throughout the wider Narandera

+ Heart dizease.

* Swcke. Shire is largely based around private motor vehicles on
+  Type 2 diabetes. roods. Creating a comprehensive active transport network
L . throughout the non-urban areos of Narrandera Shire is not
+ Toks, TiochEsE ane INes [ RoUOu ADEERer possible within the scope of the Namrandera Shire Active
strength and coordination). Transport Plan. What is achievable is the progressive
+  Hypertension. development of comprehensive active transport networks in
urban areas.

Active tronsport octivity can also improve psychological
well-being, metabalism, muscle strength and flexibility, As the centres with the most octivity and growth in the shire,

endurance, respiratory function, energy levels and weight Barellan, Grong Grong and Narrandera all need their own
management. All this 0ids in 0 speedy retumn to good health uc1me transport pln:ﬂec't plan to cater for the growing needs
in the event of illness or recovery from trauma / surgery. of residents and visitors.

Children's health should include regular physical activity, with

BEN EF'TS OF at least 40 minutes of moderate to vigorous physical activity
being recommended for children 5 to 18 years of age to keep

healthy. Outdoor activity, such as playing, walking, running,

ACTIVE TRANSPORT s cing sconteiing o sctabocraing con contrte
to children's health, as well as their development of physical,

P LAN N I N G procticol, emotional and social skills.

The presence of footpaths, shored paths and cycleways are
associated with active travel across all age groups.

Marrandera Active Transport
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Safety Benefits Economic Benefits

Pedestrians and cyclists are considered vulneroble due to their For the wider community, leading o heolthier lifestyle reduces
lock of protection agaoinst motor vehicles in the event of o the impacts on our health care system., It olso reduces

crash. Itisimportont for rood sofety reasons that focilities are costs of lving and boasts industry productivity from fit ond
availoble for active transport users that minimise their exposung healthy workers, Active transport creates more footfall for

to potential conflict with motor vehicles. local businesses and coters to the burgeoning visitor market

interested in explonng main street environmants, hertage

Connected active transport networks have been shown to be walking trails, riparian areas and bushlond trails, either on foot

associated with mone walking in older adults and children, but

onhy when traffic-related issues are managed, and the local ESra .

streets are perceived 1o be safe. Connected street networks

that ore perceived as safe by users tend to encourage greater

levels of active transport across oll oge groups. Older adults, Social Benefits

particulary women, are mone fearful and more vulnerable to

crime thus the design and location of active transport focilities Active transport, particularly walking is one of the most

to achieve good levels of perceived / actual safety is important saciglly inclusive medes of transport. It provides opportunities

to avoid people constraining their behaviour. 1o sociolise with friends ond neighbours and creates o safer,
friendlier ond more connected community. Benefits include:

Evidence indicates that Crime Prevention Through _ ) )

Environmental Design (CPTED) elements, such as good street +  Encouraging family and community connectedness.

lighting, neighbourhood upkeep, and less physical incivilities +  Improving social skills and networks.

(e.g. itter, graffiti and vandalism) con encourage active

transport. The design of commercial buildings and their +  Reducing isolation and loneliness.

relation 1o the street also has the potential to increase natural +  Enhancing self-esteem and confidence.

surveillance which improves safety and feelings of safety.

Previding safe, well-lit building entrances that foce the street + Prolonging independent living for older people in the

and are directly accessible from the street, footpath and cor community.

parks has been shown 10 encourage active maodes of transport
to and from buildings.

Evidence suggests that active transport infrastructure,
particularly footpaths arcund local shops and community
facilities, are important for encouraging social interaction
ond social capital. Such focilities provide cosual and chance
interactions with ather members of the community as well as
providing places for people to meet friends and fomily and
engage in social activities,

MNarrandera Active Transport
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Great Places

The way we design ond build our streets and neighbourhoods has an effect
on many residents’ social connections, sense of community and social
capital, and thus their use of octive tronsport focilities. Neighbourhood
‘walkability’ (o combination of residential density, mixed-use planning and
street connectivity) is particularly associated with walking for transport
and general walking.

Lond-use decisions affect social connection by determining the ploces
available for people to interact and spend time, and how far people have
to trovel to get to ploces where they con interact with others, A connected
street network that is clearly defined and proctical for all users is likely

to enable more movement choices around town. This ncourages maorne
walking and cycling, allowing for more interactions between neighbours
and residents, which in turn increases the sense of community in residents.

Shorter travel distances between land-uses can enable easy occess to
facilities and services for oll people, including the very young, older persons
and people with a disability, which can reduce sacial isolation for these
groups. For example, living within close proximity (400-800m) of o mix of
destinations is associated with higher levels of active travel across oll age
groups.

In terms of active transport behaviours, increased connectivity reduces the
distances between origins and destinations and provides a range of routes
to choose from, increasing the likelihood of walking and cycling between
locations.

Traditionally designed neighbourhoods tend to have a grid-style street
layout, which create few barriers to direct trovel, resulting in high levels

of connectivity and a choice of routes. In contrast, more modem
neighbourhoods are developed arcund a network of hierarchicel roads,
which often result in creating low levels of connectivity. Residents have
little or no choice of route, as often there is only one road in and out of the
development, and the indirect cunvilinear streets increase active transport
distonces between destinations.

A review of the walking ond cycling conditions in urban areas is therefore
important and may provide opportunities for the review of other lond-use /
transport policies, particularty the overuse of cul-de-sacs that can result in
adisconnected street system and general lack of active travel facilities in
new residenticl estates.

Marrandera Active Transport
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NETWORK
PLANNING

Pedestrian Types + Needs

Everyone is o pedestrion, be it walking 30 metres from the
cor to o ploce of work, wolking to school or the shops, using
wheeled devices on footpaths or walking and running for
fitness.

Pedestrions are considered vulnerable due to the severe
outcomes that can occur when they come into conflict with
mator vehicles. In the five years from 2017-2021, about one
in six people killed on our roads was a pedestrion.

In the Marandera Shire context, the main pedestrian
groups are as follows:

Older pedestrians

Are generally less mobile than other pedestrians and prefer
footpaths and shared paths with minimal gradients / steps
and a high degree of safety and personal security.

Commuters

This group comprises adults ond adolescents who use the
feotpath netwark mainly as a mode of ransport for joumeys
to and from a workploce. They prefer the fostest safe route
between their arigin and destinotion and ore generally more
skilled and experienced. On-road lanes and footpaths are
suitable for commuters.

Utility / shopping

Trips are generated for specific purposes, such as running
emands, shopping, visiting friends and relatives and points of
interest. Local trips are often short length trips and con be
unpredictable. Users may be constrained by time and vary
widely in skill and experience. They prefer footpaths, shared
paths, low volume roads, minimal gradients and a high
degree of sofety and persanal security.

Secondary / tertiary students

Secondary and tertiory age students hove similar
characteristics as commuters and utility / shopping users,
using the footpath network mainly as o mode of transport for
journeys to an education focility. Footpaths, on-road lanes
and shared paths are suitoble for older students.

Infants / primary school students

Infant and primary school aged pedestrians have
undeveloped cognitive skills, lock good peripheral vision,
and have little knowledge of road traffic rules. They require
adult supervision and / or off-road paths and focilities. Rood
Ccrossing points must be corefully designed 1o give greater
visibility / priority to children,

Fitness

Sports people use the road environment for fitness and
training purposes and to occess sporting events. They often
travel olone or in smoll groups - seeking long distances for
training purposes which con take them onto busier roads,
Fitness pedestrians prefer footpaths and shared paths but
will use any path or the road / rood shoulder if necessary.

Marrandera Active Transport
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Cyclist Types + Needs

There ane a range of cyclists who access different parts
of the Narandera Shire on their bike for recreational,
educational, shopping, commuting and other purposes.

Cyclists are considered vulnerable due to the severe
outcomes that can sccurwhen a rider crashes their bike

or when they come into conflict with motor vehicles. Most
cyclists are gware of their vulnerability on the road network
and use safety lights, helmets and high visibility gearwhen
nding.

The different cyclist groups in the Narrandera Shire are
detailed in this section.

Older bike riders
Qlder people in the local context are tending to avoid using
bicycles.

Commuters

This group comprises predominanthy adults who use the rood
to cycle to work. They prefer the fastest sofe route between
their origin and destination and are generally more skilled and
experienced. On-rooad lones and shared paths are suitable

for commuter cyclists. Commuters ride reasonable distances,
typically less thon 20km. They prefer flat, direct routes, but
may tolerate up to 109 gradients, or 15% with a-bikes. Bike
commuters desire all day secure parking, showers ond change
facilities.

Utility / shopping

A small percentoge of people use a bicycle to run errands and
do the shopping as well as visit friends, locaol destinations ond
points of interest. Local trips may be ‘spare-of-the-moment’
decisions, where o bicycle is used to visit the shops for last
minute supplies. Users may be constrained by time and vary
widely in skill and experience, They may use footpaths, shared
paths and roads to access their destination, ond sometimes
may forget to toke appropriate sofety precautions.

Secondary / tertiary students
Older students in the local context are tending to avoid using

bicycles, other than to access weekend sports, skate porks ond
friends.

Infants / primary school students

Infant and primory school aged cyclists hove undeveloped
cognitive skills, lack good peripheral vision, and have little
knowledge of road traffic rules. Fear of traffic and bike theft

appear to be factors limiting those in this age group frem riding

their bikes regularly.

Fitness

Adult riders are more confident mixing with troffic. If riding for
training purposes, may ride very long distances, sometimes
more than 100km. A number of different bikes are available
(road, flot-bar touring and mountain bikes) for fitness and
recreation. Rood and touring cyclists often travel in small
groups or larger bunch rides seeking long distances for training
and recreational purposes, which can take them onto busier
roads. Mountain bike riders often travel indridually or in small
groups and seek quieter roads and off-road trails.

Families with children

Prefer seporation from traffic, Ride shorter distonces. Prefer flat
reutes with less than 5% gradient. Adults / guardians may be
walking alongside young children on bicycles.

Marrandera Active Transport
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Access Impaired Needs

Disability is on issue that offects o significant proportion of the population, The 2018 ABS Survey

of Disability. Ageing ond Carers reported thot 17.7% of Australians had a long-term disability thot
restricted their everyday octivities.

Planning for the transport needs of disabled persons presents its own unique challenges, with a
person in o wheelchair requiring different assistonce to negotiate the active transport network than
a person who is sight impaired. Navigation to end of trip facilities, such as porking facilities, water
points and toilets also requires speciol consideration.

Motarized scooter usage is o growth industry and there is o need to review cumrent and future
inmovations in these mobility devices to ensure infrastructure improvements are aligned with
technology.

A key focus of the Marrandera ATP should be to provide mobility and occess facilities for disabled aond
older persons in cur community, particulorly in high activity areas such os the Narrandera CBD.

Aged Access Needs

Age is related to o voriety of chorocteristics and skills thot influence the risk of traffic injury, These
age-related choracteristics can also affect the way in which people of different ages interact with
the movement network. In the 2000 NSW Health Falls Prevention Basaline Survey, 26.79% of people
aged 45 and older, reported limiting their walking because of fear of folling whilst walking over rough
or uneven surfaces, steps or stairs. The main needs of aged persons are for level walking surfaces that
are free of hazards. Aged persons also appreciate end of trip facilities, such as seating, water paints
and toilets,

Older people continue 1o be over presented in pedestrion crashes. As shown by Job RFS, Pedestrians
ot Traffic Light Controlled Intersections: Crossing Behaviour in the Elderty and Non-elderly, several
factors work together to increase the risk of older people:

+  Deterioration in visual acuity may have a negotive impact on an older person’s ability to cross
the road safely.

+ Reduced mobility con render older people uncble to react quickly in imminent donger to
avoid a crash.

+ Underlying health conditions or frailty can result in greater injury severity when a crash occurs.

+ Reduced speed when crossing the road can be on issue ot outomated signals that do not
allow sufficient time for slower pedestrians to cross safely.

A key focus of the Narrondera ATP should be to provide mobility and access facilities for disabled and
older persons in our community, particularly in high activity areas such as the Narrandera CBD. The
following measures have been adapted from the WHO Pedestrion Safety Manual 2013 and the NSW
Centre for Rood Safety to improve the sofety, comfort ond omenity of elderly pedestrions:

#+  Install high-visibility crossings and advance stop bars.

+  Repair broken kerbs and pedestrian ramps.

+ Replace missing and / or upgrode existing signs.

+  Install pedestrian refuge islands or, preferably, roised medians.

+  Norrow roodways with traffic-calming techniques.

+ Roise public owareness about the safety needs of elderly pedestrians,
+ Reduce legal speed limits where necessary.

+ Swengthen enforcement of laws on speed limits, and drink-driving.

MNarrandera Active Transport
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Needs of Young Children

Children are highly vulnerable road users. Preschool,
infant and primary school aged children need their
parents or other adult supervision when they ride along
the road network, but they also need our confidence 1o
explore their environment and leam how to do things
independenthy.

Children con use the some focilities as adults (ond con
ride on the footpath) however they are still at risk from
traffic for many reasons. Preschool, infant and primary
school aged bike ond scooter riders have undeveloped
cognitive skills, lock good peripheral vision, and have little
knowledge of road traffic rules. Although children may
think they can handle the rood network, Kidsafe NSW
advises they are:

+  Eaosily distrocted ond focus only on one aspect of
what is happening.

+  Theyare smaller and harder for drivers to see, ond
less predictable than other road users.

+ Cannot accurately judge the speed aond distance
of moving vehicles.

+ Cannot accurately predict the direction that
sounds are coming from.

+  Unable to cope with sudden changes in traffic
conditions.

+ Do notunderstond abstroct ideos, such os rood
safety.

+  They may lack the ability to distinguish between
safe and unsafe crossing gops and sites, putting
them at risk as they cross the road.

+  They may lack understanding of the dangers
presented under different conditions, such as wet
weather or dorkness.

In general, less school aged children are nding to school
due to a number of factors, including fear of troffic and

bike theft, comvenience of walking, availability of school
bus services and parents driving their children to school.

An extensive network of structured sporting activities is
available for children in Narandero Shire that helps to
keep them active and engaged. There are also a number
of areas where children can go ‘off-rood” and explore

the environment and proctice skills on their own or with
friends.

Key objectives of the Mamrandera ATP should be to
highlight areas that provide opportunities for off-rood
play on bikes and kick-scooters and to link these areas to
residenticl neighbourhoods and the wider network.
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Network Planning Principles

The planning focus of the new active travel network is 1o make
pedestrion and cycling octivities a safe, healthy and attroctive
travel option throughout the Narrandera Shire. To achieve

this over such a vast area requires a targeted and systematic
approach, based on a number of principles which are explored
further in this section.

Coherence

Coherence can be characterised by the completeness of the
network or the completeness of connecting routes. A cohesive
network should be continuous and it should be clear to the
user where the path leads. Sign-posting ond line-marking
should indicate major destinations s well as the ‘serious
transport intent’ of sections of road routes. The quality of
network facilities should be consistent throughout the length
of the route regardless of whether the focility uses o seporate
or shared road profile. End of trip focilities, such as seating,
watefing stations, toilets, change room focilities, bicycle
rocks and storage facilities should also be integrated into the
cohesive network.

15 minute neighbourhoods

People will generally walk or use assisted mobility for 10-15
minutes to access local shops and services, depending on their
age, health, the waolking environment and the weather, Active
transport networks are based on active transport trip distances
of 15 minutes.

Suitability for all users

Quality environments must be available to oll who choose to
use them. Paths and facilities must have oppropriate grodients
and be continucus and free of obstructions such as signoge,
street furniture and overhanging tree branches. The neads

of hearing and vision-impaired users should be considered at
primary attractors, especially where user safety is an issue.

Safety

Perceived and octual safety is very important to pedestrians
and cyclists, Pedestrions of all ages and genders need to feel
that it is safe to walk, whenever they choose to do so. Route
safety ond security is important to pedestrians, who desire well-
Iit pathways and open-to-viewer routes. Rood crossings present
the greatest danger to pedestrians. Therefore, safe crossing
lacations need to be provided ot regular intervals along major
streets orwhere there are key desire lines to cross mojor streets,
Pedestrions will rarely walk along on indirect route to occess
safe crossing points, 50 frequent crossing points must be
provided.

Cyclists travel faster than pedestrions and therefore are less
concerned about personal secunty. However, cyclists are still
slower and smaller than motor cors and trucks, making them
less kely to be seen. When they do come into conflict, cyclists
have little protection in a collision. On-road paths ond off-rood
paths reduce the risk of collision with motor vehicles, but still
endonger cyclists ot squeeze points and intersections with
roads. They can olso imvohve potential conflict with pedestrians
where the off-rood focility is a shared path. The general
principles of predictability and clear priority remain important
for off-road paths, including directional segregation and high
wvisibility for all users.

Directness

Pedestrians and cyclists do not like 1o travel out of their way
to reach a destination. This is a natural response to avoid the
extrg effort involved in walking or riding extra distances. Paths
serving desire lines between octivity areas need to be direct
and clearly defined in order to provide for and encourage
walking and riding trips. Wherever possible, bamiers should be
overcome, with slight deviations or additionol safe crossing
points. A coreful bolance must be found between providing

a direct route and also one free of delays, excessive enengy
expenditure, or safety concems.

People are more likely to walk or cycle in an attractive
environment because it is enjoyable, Areas with high volumes
of vehicular traffic, excessive noise and poor pavements

may discourage walking ond cycling. Urbon areas should be
maintained at a human scale that provides an attroctive and
safe environment. Pedestrian and cycling facilities should be
designed to fit into the surrounding environment so that the
enjoyment of the experience is enhanced. The route should
be scenic, quiet, and free of heavy traffic ond traffic travelling
at high speeds. The best walking and cycling environments
are often found along quiet rural roads, in urbon parklands or
residential areas that have been traffic calmed.
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Identifying Activity Generators

There are certain areas of the Marrandera Shire that generate significantly
more pedestrian and cycling octivity than other areas. Identifying octivity
generators is particulary important to consider in the preparation of new
active transport plans. The different activity generotors have been divided
into four main groups and are presented in this section. The oudit maps
show the generators in Morrandera Shire.

Primary Activity Areas

Primary activity oneas include commercial precincts, large schools ond
haspitals as well as other areas that attract large concentrations of people.
Safety, connected / wide footpaths, road crossing points, disability access
infrastructure, secure bike parking and end of trip focilities ane important
design goals for primary activity areas.

Secondary Activity Areas

These include neighbourhood shops, smaller schools, popular sporting and
recreational facilities, clubs, smaller hospitals and community facilities such
as the larger congregation churches that are not centrally located within
primary activity areas. These land-uses are busy places ot certain times

of the day orweek. Safety, connected footpath networks and end of trip
facilities are important design goals for secondary activity genenators.

Primary Routes

These are routes from residential areas to the pimary activity aneas and
secondary activity generators. They are collector level routes, which do
not reach every property but instead form o network of routes thot are
accessible to a significont cotchment of population.

Hazard Areas

Through the analysis of crash dato ond consultation undertaken, there are
a number of areas / routes that haove been noted from crash reports or from
road users as being potentially dongerous or particularty stressful places for
pedestrion and cyclists.
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Identifying Appropriate Paths

The selection of the oppropriate path type treatment depends

on a combination of factors, including the level of demand for the
path, the conditions present in the surmounding environment (traffic
speed and volume), the availability of space in which to provide the
path, and whether poth usage is for exclusive pedestrian or cycle
use or shared use. The overall goal is to install focilities that are sofe,
practical and that respond 1o local conditions. A number of different
path treatments can be applied, which are covered in this section:

Footpaths

Footpaths are suitable for a wide range of pedestrian situations.
Footpaths are required 1o be designed and built to meet minimum
dimension requirements. Design elements of footpaths include width,
gradient, pavement materials that ore slip resistant, type of kerb ond
adequate setback distonce of the footpath from the roodway.

According to the Austroads Guide and other guidelines refemred 1o in
Section 4, the general minimum footpath width of 1.2m for 1.0Om as an
absolute minimum) is adequate for most read and street situations
except in commaercial and shopping environments. A fostpath

wider than the minimum may also be necessary at locations where
pedestrians gather such as the entrance Lo schools and associated
crossings, recreation focilities and bus stops or on routes with high
pedestrian traffic volumes.
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NETWORK PLANNING

Shared paths

Shored use paths are o type of off-road facility that ore generally
wider than footpaths and allow common use of the focility by both
cyclists and pedestrians. The minimum width for a shared pathiis
2.0m, the desirable width is 2.5m and in some situations a path width
of 3.0m may be required depending on the location, purpose and
anticipated level of walking / cycling activity).

According to the Austroods Guide and other guidelines referred

to in Section 4, 0 shared use path may be appropriate where
demand exists for both 0 pedestrion path and o bicycle path but
where the intensity of use is not expected to be sufficiently great to
provide separate focilities. Shared paths are a popular response to
connecting attroctors and as paths in lorge parklands.

In some situations shared paths may cause friction between
pedestrions and cyclists. Displaying highly visible signs and
rules applying to the proper use of share paths are importont
cansiderations when planning these paths.

Shared streets

Shored local streets have ‘design speeds’ that provide greater safety
for pedestrians, cyclists and motorists. The Cycleways Design Toolbox
recommends the shoring of traffic lanes only where design speeds are
30km/h or less and traffic volumes are very low.
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NETWORK PLANNING

Exclusive off-road cycle paths

Exclusive bicycle paths are most appropriote when there is o
significant cycling demand and very few pedestrians desire to use
the path or a separate footpath is provided, and there is very limited
mator vehicle access across the path.

According to the Austroads Guide to Rood Design Part 6A: Paths
for Walking and Cycling, the recommended width varies based on
the volume of cyclists with the suggested width ranging from 2.0m
minimum to a typical maximum of 3.0m for a local access path.

On-road cycle paths
On-read cycle paths are “bicycle lanes’ located alongside the motor
vehicle traffic lane ona road.

According to the Austroods Guide 10 Road Design Part 03 - Geometric
Design [Table 4.18), the recommended width for exclusive bike lones

in urbon areas varies from 1.2m to 3.0m depending on the road speed
limit and local conditions (including clearances, physical or visual
separationsk

Generally, exclusive on-rood cycle paths are delineated by line-
marking and / or green colour, and located on the far left of the road,
and often on the bitumen secled road shoulder. Where considered
necessary / feasible in regional settings, on-rooad cycle paths

should comply with curment design stondards and undergo periodic
monitoring to ensure painted line-marking remains clear and legible.

On-road painted bike lanes and road shoulders in typical road
environments do not provide ricers with protection from passing
traffic ond are often percieved os unsofe by current and potentiol
everyday bike riders. For this reason, on-road cycle paths are not
particularty effective in encouraging maore local cycling trips unless
they are physically seporated and f or properdy protected from
troffic lones, ond without such treatment on-road cycle lones ore not
the preferred method of providing for short, everyday cycling trips.
Where possible, the Narandera ATP should give preference to new
shared path installations s a strategy for increasing cycling activity
throughout Narrandera LGA.
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Pavement Surfaces

There are a variety of pavernent materials
commonly used as part of the construction
of new active transport infrastructure, These
are described os follows.

Concrete and Asphalt

This provides a hard surface
and is generally functionally
appropriate, This material is
ideal where footpaths areona
gradient and exposed to water,
as the texture of these surfoce
matenals ane sip resistont. Most
feotpaths in Mamandera Shire
are of these construction types.
Some main street beautification
works use o combingtion of
asphalt, concrete and brick
pover to provide vanety and
interest.

Pavers and Bricks

For aesthetic reasons and to
odd interest and variety, pavers
and brick paving are often
used. Pavers have been used
extensively in commercial areas
and at tourist destinations.
When used for pedestrian
paths, glozed surfaces should
be avoided as they are slippery
whenwet Stone path surfoces
should also be ovoided as they
can fail flotness tests. Pavers
are ideal for sight impained
pedestrians as o guidance using
different pavement colours,
however overuse of colours con
also be confusing.

Spray seal emulsion
Generally less hard wearing than
concrete, asphalt or pavers.

Itis often used as a cheaper
option in low trafficked areas
where drainoge is not an issue.
It may also be considered where
a new path is being trialled

to determine its longer-term
material type.

Loose surface material

These materials such as exposed
aggregate, gravel, soil, sond,
grass and tanbark should be
ovoided along heavily used
routes. They can be very difficult
1o walk on aond maoke it difficult
for people in wheelchairs.
Hewever, gravel surfaces may
be suitoble for fitness walkers,
runners and mountain bike riders,

Ideally loose surface paths
should be free of cbstructions
and therefore should not include
staps, stainways or obstacles that
affect safety.
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Lighting

Night-time outdoor lighting has most often been designed for
the vethicle driver, rather than for pedestrions and cyclists.

Where footpaths, bicycle lanes and shared pathways cormry o
substontiol number of pedestrions aond cyclists during periods
of darkness, consideration should be given to the provision of
path lighting. Lighting will increase both octual ond perceived
safety along the network and should be targeted along key
pedestrian routes and activity zones [Austroads, 2009).

The main objectives of pedestrian lighting are to ensure
adequate lighting is provided to identify pedestrion routes
and signage, illuminate pedestrions to other rood users and
to achieve facial recognition of ancther pedestrian at o
reasonable distance.

The main cbjective of cycleways lighting is to ensure adequate
lighting is provided so that cyclists, travelling ot reasonable
speed are able to avoid potholes and any other traffic hazards.

Generally provision for public lighting for bicycles may occur
where:

+  Paths for oycling ossocioted with promenades or o
centre for night-time activity.

+  Paths for cycling used for commuting by workers or
students.

Lighting should be ploced along key routes, key crossing points,

intersections and places where people congregate. Direction
and height of illumination, background land illumination levels
are key considerations that should be addressed within the
design.

End of Trip Facilities

Public amenities can be important mid-way or end of trip
resources for pedestrions and cyclists. Examples of end of trip
facilities including:

+  Bicycle porking / repair stotions

+  Seating /rest stops

+  Woter points

+ Toilets

+  Shode structures

+  Woy-finding signage

+ Personal storoge lockers

+  Drying facilities
Exercise equipment is also being used / provided in some parks
to focilitote more intensive fitness training. These facilities are
the ‘outdoor’ equivalent of a gym, and may include weights and
resistance benches, step-up and pull-up devices.
Providing end of trip focilities is another means of encouraging
maore people to make walking and cycling port of their daily
routine, as they provide ploces to rest, re-energise and / or
safely stone their bikes upon arrival. Generally, end of trip
facilities enhance the overall experience for pedestrians and

cyclists, ensuring they have o comfortable and stress-free
transition from gctive transport to their end destination.

Landscape Design

Landscape works which are poorly planned and designed con
have negotive impact on pathway use. It is important that
landscaping is designed, constructed and managed to:

+  Provide clear sightlines.

+  Promote good visibility.

+ Provide safe side cleorances.
*

Prevents intrusien into pedestrian / cycling operating
space.

Manages tree root domage to pathways.

+  Provide passive surveillance and promotes an open
easy - supenisad emironment.
+ Manage weeds, especially catheads.
Technical advice on key considerations for londscope design

are provided in the Austroods Guide and other guidelines
referred to in Section 4.

+
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Signage and Line Marking

Signage and or markings should be provided throughout the entine network to guide pedestrians ond cyclists use
of the bicycle and shared path network.

Signage and / or markings should include both directional ond informative infermation and be designed to be
easily identifioble and consistent across both on-road and off-roed networks. They will inform users of the direction
and distonce to key destinations, provide warning of changing conditions (e.g. intersection) and of approaching
hozords and provide clear travel pattern advice, which is particulorly important ot intersections.

Signage and / or markings should be provided as new on-road bicycle and shared pathways are constructed and
should be progressively retro-fitted across the existing network.

The use of o green surfoce for bicycle lones which drows motorists’ attention to the presence of bicycles is
recommended at busy or higher-speed locations and areas where the road layout is complex.

Technical advice on signage and marking treatments is provided in the Austroads Guide and other guidelines
referred to in Section &,

Pedestrian Crossings

Pedestrian crossings provide designated areas for pedestrions to cross the road safely, reducing the risk of
accidents and promaoting walking activity. With well-ploced crossings, walking becomes more accessible to people
of all ages and abilities and may encourage morne individuals within the community to choose walking os a mode
of transport.

The locations of existing pedestrian crossing facilities should be property identified in the Narrandera ATP and
new crossing focilities incorporated into proposed network improvements where it con be identified that it would
provide a benefit in terms of supporting sofe active tronsport trips.

In the Narrondera LGA, there are a limited number of pedestrian crossings and these are generally located in key
activity areas of the CBD.

Other Crossings

Centre refuge islonds, kerb extensions / blisters provide cltemate ways to improve the safety of pedestrions
crossing a rood. With well-placed read crossing facilities, walking becomes more accessible to people of all ages
and abilities and may encourage more individuals within the community to choose walking as a mode of transport.

The locations of existing road crossings should be properly identified in the Narmandera ATP and new crossing
facilities incorporated into proposed network improvements where it con be identified thot it would provide o
benefit in termns of supporting safe active transport trips.

In the Norrondera LGA context, centre refuge islonds, kerb extensions / blisters are preferred ond are already
well utilised in key locations within the CBD and other high activity areos such as schools, porks ond community
facilities.
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ACTIVE TRANSPORT
PROJECT PLANS

Active Transport Project Plans have been prepored for
Barellon, Grong Grong and Marrandera,

The Active Transport Project Plons are presented in g sernies of
maps, as necessary, for each locations and typically include
the fellowing detail:

+  Public Roads (sealed, unsealed, tracks-in-use).
+  Roibway Infrostructure,

+  Primary Activity Areas.

+  Secondary Activity Areas.

+  Primory Routes.

+ Hazard Aregs.

+  Other key lond-uses and / or landmarks.

+  Existing and proposed footpath locations.

+ Existing ond proposed shared path locations.
+  Existing ond proposed off-rood path locations.
+  Bxdsting ond proposed end of trip focilities.

Guiding Principles

Focusing efforts in areas of highest importance
Effective and useful planning relies on focusing effort and
resources in oreas thot it is most needed. MNorrondera Shire
Council hos limited funds for improvements and these funds
need 1o be carefully directed towards ochieving optimal
outcomes. The Narrandera ATP focuses efforts on areas with
high levels of pedestrion and cyclist activity as well as the
desire lines of high potential ond demand. Consideration
should also be given to locations which may merit o review of
road conditions based on a poor safety record.

Focusing on potential pedestrian and cyclists

It is important to consider existing pedestrions and cyclists,
however, the biggest advantage in terms of increasing
potronage is 1o target people who currently ore not active
pedestrians or cychists, but who are likely 1o become so if
conditions improve. The Narrandera ATP needs to consider
ways to promote behaviour changes thot encourages new
US@rs.

Developing effective infrastructure to improve
conditions

The Marandera ATP aims to develop innovative infrastructure
interventions, bosed on the N5W guidelines aond other
applicable guidelines ond standards.

Setting achievable targets

Funds are imited and there is 0 need to focus on specific
actions that are achievable by Council. There is no sense

in developing an action plan that proposes excessive
expenditure beyond the means of the community. Itis better
to set targets that con be realistically achieved over the
intended 10 - 20 year implementation period. Should extra
funding become availoble and targets are met earlier, itis o
relatively simple task of reviewing the action plan to set more
goals and targets.
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PRIORITIES +
ACTIONS

BEMEFIT

Higher Higher

Benefit Benefit

Lower_ Higher
Complexity Complexity

Lower Lower

Benefit Benefit

Lower_ Higher
Complexity Complexity

- = COMPLEXITY

The facilities ond treatments required to create o mone
cohesive, safe, direct and attractive network forms the basis
of the new Active Travel Project Plans developed for Barellan,
Grong Grong and Marrandera.

The Active Travel Project Plans are the resull of the
consideration of o number of variables that have been
examined in previous sections. A senes of questions were

asked and given o ronking score to reflect their importance in
pedestrian and bicycle planning outcomes and these are listed
below:

+ Doesitfil o gap in the network?

+  Wasitidentified in consultation, surveys, audits or
inspections?

+ Wil it banefit more than one user type? [recreation,
commuter, fitness, shopping / short tips, student)

+ Wil it be suitable for all users? (safe, direct,
comfortable, coherent)

+ Lk itlocated in a high activity area? (primary activity
anea, secondary octivity generator, primary routes)?

Is it located in a hozard orea? (In o black spot, or
near miss areq, artenal or collector road, school zone,
a ploce visited at night, or ploce where alcohol is
available)?

Will it improve separation for motor vehicles?

Is it an iconic link that inspires greater uptake of
walking ond cycling?

Will it increase active transport trips ond change
behaviour?

Is it practical and cost effective?
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Project Description

From
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Does it filll o network gop?

Has it been identified in
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Is it suitable for all usens?
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effective?
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Grong Grong Strect Name Streat Name

Project & 1

Project @ 2
Project @ 3

Project i 4

Feotpath installation along Balaro Stroet

Footpath installation along Berrmed Strest

Footpath installation along Canola Way to Bushland
Park
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Project Description

Barellan
Project # 1
Project # 2

Project & 3
Project & 4
Project # 5

PRIORITIES + ACTIONS

Yapunyah Street crossing instollation

Yapunyoh Street westen crossing installation and footpath
extonsion

Feotpath installotion glong Myoll Street

Centre refuge instollation on Mulgo Street

Bareflan Community Heolth Centre accessibility
mprovemants

From
Street Nome

Wast of Yapuryoh and
Boree Streets intersection

East of Myall Street

Yapunyoh Stroet
Mulga Street

Bendes Street

To
Street Nome

Weast of Yapunyah and
Boree Streels intersection

Evonne Gooloogong Park

Mulga Street
Mulga Street

Bendes Street

Does it fill o network gap?

Has it been identified n

consultation?

Is it suitoblo for all users?

Are there user lype benefits?

Is it in @ high activity crea?
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%\apporting a Culture of Active

Even a locally tailored evidence-based plan of action is
not a guarantee of lasting results once completed and
implemented. According to the WHO Pedestrion Safety
Manual 2013, safe road-user behaviour and increasing user
support depends on o number of factors, including:

+ Social acceptonce o norms ond change models.
+ Engineering measures.
+ Lowenforcement.

As this is o strategic document, detoiled behaviour-change
interventions and road safety progroms have not been
cansidered comprehensively. These issues need to be

) addressed over a longer period and with greater community
+  Knowledge and skills, input.

+  Leoders. The following community owareness, education and
+  Community support activation strategies are suggested for further consideration
by Marrandera Shire Council and the wider local community

+  Perception of vulnerability and risk. over the life of the Namandera ATE.

Actions Time-frame
Create a cycling routes guide and / or way-finding mop for Narmandera. 1-Syears
Review active transport poth signoge and investigate opportunities for e
improvements. e
Encouroge shared path etiquette, including signoge and use of social 1-5 years
media.

Investigate community crowd funding models that ensure delivery of

1-5 years
priarity projects for Narmandera Shire. yed

Install bicycle parking focilities, and encourage the inclusion of change
room focilities in new employment generating developments. 5-10 years
Investigate /implement street tree plantings in appropriate locations

along walking and cycling routes. 0 ywars
Partnerwith the NSW government and community organisations to
deliver skills development and road safety awareness initiatives, ongoing

ONGOING
RESPONSIBILITIES

Marrandera Active Transport
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mingﬂreAcﬂWTmmport

The development of a comprehensive maintenance program
which identifies key tasks and frequency of warks is on
important part of a quality network.

Monitoring Progress

Implementing the priorities of the Maorrandera ATP will require
on-going review of progress and regulor feedback to key
stakeholders and the wider community. Council will monitor,
review and report on its progress under the Narrondera

ATP using the existing Integrated Plonning and Reporting
Framework under the Local Government Act 1993 to ensure that
its planning priorities are being achieved,

ruF:ing Progrr.:ums. Initiatives +

Moving forward, Council has the opportunity to make
significant upgrades to walking and cycling infrastructure
across the Narrandera Shire with support from other
govemment autharities.

Options for funding the octions outlined within the Active
Transport Action Plan include:

+ Section 71l contributions = collected from new
development in the relevant areas. However, these
contributions will not be able to fund all of the actions
in this Plan:

+ Grants and contributions [operational and capital)
- Council will actively pursue grant funding and
other contributions to assist in the delivery of new
infrostrscture; and

+  Delivery partnerships - where Council and key partners
[such os State Government agencies or private
developers] colloborate to deliver a new infrastructure.

+

The following grant programs are currently available for active
transport in NSW:

Transport, through the Get NSW Active grant program -
funds grants to local and state governments forwalking
and eyeling infrastructure as well as the development
of strategies that support walking and cycling in local
communities. To fund the development and delivery

of the 15-minute neighbourhoods, the Get NSW Active
grant program will be in part re-purpased for the
delivery of links and networks that support 1S-minute
neighbourhoods, including the local links and networks
that integrate with strategic cycleways.

The Liveable and Safe Urban Communities Initiative

- will deliver torgeted, orea-based actions and
treatments to improve safety. In busy urban places,
the Safer Roads Program will deliver traffic calming,
pedestrion facilities, and the exponsion of sofer speed
settings.

The Streets as Shared Spoces progrom - provides
grants for MSW Councils to deliver temporary and
demonstration projects that test and pilot innovative
ideas for streets as safe, shared public spaces. The
program tests possible permanent changes that can
strengthen the amenity, accessibility and economic
witality of a high street and surrounding areas.

MNarrandera Active Transport
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LANDY e
=TT

Arumber of project sheets
heve been developed to
support the octive transport
projects in Namandera,
Barellan and Grong Grong.
These project sheets are
presented in the following
sections of the Active
Transport Plan.

PROJECT
SHEETS

MNarrandera Active Transport
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Narrandera Project # 1

Q P Nt

Traedid o Ui

Project Description Project Specifications Lincasl Bivcaell Bt
Lormer Street pedestrion bridge crossing Pedestnon badge. os quoted by o speciclist bridge === PrimaryRoad Netwerk
impe il builcher o goeell Ry

" " s 5
Project Benefit @ Speed Signage « &um
Improvements 1o the masting badge in Lamnar @ Puske Todens
Street hos been highbghted os o prority project & Bus Stops
from residents in this locality. The provsion of @ Crigting Kaet Blater
o safe crossing pont of the main candal along @ Contre Ratuge Hiowd
Lormes Street will have o wide range of benefits for ®  Emtting Pedesttion Croteng

resdents ond people wishing 10 occess Town Beoch,
Construction of o pedestrion badge on the narthem
side of the exsting rood brdge i proposed to
separate pedestrions ond cyclists from motonsts. it
i recommended that agnoge bBe ingtalled 1o requere

Frapowed Centra Batuge Imand
(] Bngrasg s et
B Agcepebelity Wnprovementy
1w tiny Tharnraifl Parthig

bike nders to glight from their bike and cross the Exiiting Ororetl Pothg
1wty 1 et Pyt B,
new bridge on faot R

Wl ool i
— PR Pedailins B0

— O rnd Bile e
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== v Proposed foolpoths
Wale Featuie
Lomduie - Reorgoten
Lo L omanaedy
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Lowibe « Generol Corierasciol

Lo#iurtas « BTl
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Narrandera Project # 3
Sroiect Dascrion

Footpath instollation clong Dundas, Mitchell and
King Streats, linking Namoandeno High School 1o the

Namandera CBD

Project Benefit

The project will improve conditions for octive
rensport movement clong an identified route thet
15 well used by students occessing the Narmondero
CBD. Provision of the new path will alio serve

resadents Ining in the anéa
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Narrandera Project # 5
Sroiect Dascrion

Footpath instollation clong western boundory of
Mathieson Chval Link to Rupert Street vwa Whitton
Streat

Project Benefit

The project will improve inkoges between the
Norandera High School end nearty Henry
Mothieson Oval which provides volued recreationol
opportumnties for school uters and rendents i this
pom of Nomondens

Proiect Specificati
Footpath x 520m

Kerb Romps

Drainoage and feotpath renabilitation

Traffic control

Q

¢

Mot Murslbars

Trgchs o Las

| T FENR LT PR
Py Boona RNetwe ik
Craweld Boady

Biniaeinyd

Soeed Sghage - #um
Pubdhe Todens

By Stcgn

T wertondy Kaety Blater

Cmeiire Rl e Hiord
Emnting Pedeutnags Croiung
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"“r R T ekt
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[ mintingy Shamred Pathg
Bty O freil PO
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Narrandera Project # 10
Sroiect Dascrion

Shored path installotions connecting Newell
Highwaoy and Melbourne / East Streels to Brewery
Flat Oval and the Town Commeon. The shared path
installation will generally follow the abgnment of Old
Brewery Rood ond QOokbonk Street ond cross the
conal vic the néw loatbndge.

Project Benefit

This project provides GCtive LroNSpon connections
froem O New pedestngn Brdge Ocross the moan
congl, south of Narronderg CBD 1o link with sports
Fields, comp grounds ond boat namp focilities as
wel g5 g link to the Newell Highwaoy,

Proiect Specificati
Shared path x 450m

Kerh Romps x 2

Drainoage and feotpath renabilitation

Traffic control
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Narrandera Project # 11 - Sheet 010f 02

Proiect Descripti

Shared path installotion olong Newell Highway,

Project Benefit

These is intenest from locol community members

ond visitors on how 10 0CCess the Murrumbidgese

River and npanan bushlond aneos south and south-
west of Normondero, A proect hot been identifed

to nstell 0 shared cleng the Newell Highwoy 1o the
Murrumbsigee e [soarthern e 1o the Mamrandens
Tocumwal Rolway. This pathwory would utilise eostng
pedestricn bndge crossings as well as negotate under
an an @asting bridge 1o ocheve 9 continuous path
along this busy highwoy. The poth would oho provide
Opportunities to ink with other iy OTUOCTON in the
aneg inchuding the Newell Motor Inn ond Nomanderg
Corgvon Pork.

Shored poth {25 - 3.0m] x 2.950m
Construction work @ bridge underpass
Drosnoge and footpoth rehabilnotion
Traffic control

End of trip facilties seating, signoge ond water ponts)

Proi c i .
The successful completion of this progect requires
the negotgtion of o number of bormers and potential
hazards that have been identified along a possible
propect route.

The eastem sice of @asting bridge crodsing of the
Murrumbidgee River NCorponanes o pedestnan footpath
that is appropnately seporated from the troffic lones.
The poth is too narmow 1o function as o shored poth and
signage will be required to requine cyclists to dismount
when negotiating namrow bndge paths.

Asafe crossng of the Néwell Highwoy is réguired, with.o
possible locouon being identified undemeath o bndge
clang the Newsll Highwoy, approcamately 700m norh
of the intersection of the Sturt Highway ond the Newel
Highwaary.

The emvironment undemeath the bridge has not been
designed S constructed with intent for pedestian and
cyclist use. The following issues. risks ond $ITe CONSTTONTS
will need w0 be considensd 0s part of the detailed design
of the project

* E;lli‘tlﬁg' topagrophy, ste levels and path grodes,
The path will need to be suitable for all users,
ncluding people with o disabdity.

+  Flood risk. The poth design needs 1o account
for flood inundation. The design will need to be
jupported by o detoil survey, showing ground
surfoce levels / firushed path level in relonon to
known flocd hasghts, Structural enginesnng of
the shared path focilities, inchuding handrails
and other supporting structures cbove ground
level will olso need 10 be undertaken. Warning
signage will also be requined.

+  Lighting. Subject to more detailed onalyss of
user requerements ond CPTED assessment, the
existing brdge underpass may requine hghting
o ensure user safety.

+  Maointenonce. On-going mointenance of
fockues is requered 1o be considered 10 orme
at ¢ robust pathway desgn 1o withstond flood
NuNGQUon and SITOLON.

Sections of the new thared poth abgnment are likely
1o be located in ancos of the roadside stormwater
draingge system. A specol design response is likely
required to ensune shared path construchons ane
compaotible with stormmwoter funchions and that public
safety risks are appropnately connidenad.

Site Photograph

Sections of the new shared poth alignment may olso
conton impediments thot need 10 be property locoted
and consdered as port of o detaled deugn. Public
utility instollabons, roodsice infrastructure (guoarnd rodls)
and any sudden changes n dlevaton will need 1o e
accounted for.

The entry / exit locations of the Ampol and Mobil
Highway Senvice Centres and the Norrondera Rest
Anea and their gssocioted truck porking oneas present
o patentol conflict ponts batween motor vehecles
and octive transport users. Consultotion with key
stakeholders including landowners and Tronspart for
MNSW will be requered o determine the most acceplcble
design response for drveway Crossangs

A detailed costng exedcise it ikely requared in oider
to determing the cost-benefit ngtio for the prosect.
Significont Costs MOy De associated with project
tosks including detol sunsy, sorthworks, dromage.
vegetation remonal and rehabililation, engineening
deugn ond construction.

Concepl diogroms have been prepared for the project,
and shown over poge. The diogroms visualise the man
iS50 05s0CioTed with this project for The purposes of
engoging with key stokeholders,

Site Photogroph
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Narrandera Project # Tl - Sheet 02 of 02

(/-Conccptbiugromﬂo,l
Bridge Undearpass - Plan Detoil
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Narrandera Project # 12
Sroiect Dascrion

Shared path instollotons along Old Wagge Rood,
connecting the wban area of Nomandera to Rocky
Weoterholes

Project Benefit

The forested npanon aneos around Rocky
Woeterholes one populon with locol communty
members and wiiton to Nomandera, These aneos
ane cumently occessed by Cyclists, runners and
wolliers wio Old Wogga Rocd who one particulary
wvulngrgble 1o rood trafhic. The instollabhon of

a shared path nk clong Old Woggao Rood 1o

this sconc destinalon would further establsh
Narrandera as an imporiont destination offering
actrae transport, heclth, emaronmentel and tounsm
benefits ond expenences

Proi S i "
Concrete shared poth along Old Woggo Read x
3.200m

Droinoge and bushland rehobilitation as necessory

Traffic control

End of tnp focilites (seating, signage and water
pointsl
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Narrandera Project # 14

Proiect Descrioti
Murrumbidgee River Riail Bridge project

Project Benefit

Re-use of the wonic rail badge over the
Murrumbidigee River has been a long:

term gool of the Narmandera community.
Provision of & quality shared path to the
bridge would further estoblish Narrandera
o on importont destinabion of fenng active
ronsport, hentoge, health, emarcnmental
and tounim expenences ond benefits. The
propect could clso link with Newell Highway
shored path progects to fooktote occess to
the Murrumbsdgee River and the forrested
riporon aneas south-west of Nomandero

Proiect Specificati

Subject 10 detoded design ond
specificabons

Project Considerations

A structurs] ossessment is required 10
determing the sutobdlity of converting the
existing raibway bridge for active transport
use,

Some sections of the path ghgnment are
located on doping topography. Detailed
e plannIng, sufvery ond engineenng
nvestigotons ane required o determine
appropiote olignments aond grodes for the
proposed shared path installaton,

A detoiled costing exercise i likedy required
in order to determine the cost-benefit roto
for the project. Sgnificont costs may be
assocated with project tasks including
earthworks, drancge, vegetation remaval
and rehobilitation, engineenng design ond
ovegll proyect implementobion.

Sectons of the poth are hikely to be locoted
in areqas that are subject to frequent
nundation from Noodwatens of the
Murrumbiggee River, The project design
should conuder relevont issues reloting

to the flood compatibility, construction
techrques, ON-QoINg MoINtencnce
requerements and the manogement of
public safety:
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Grong Grong Project #1

Footpath instollatcn olong Boloro Street,
connecting from the existing path locabion on
Junee Street 10 the entry 1o the Grong Grong Rodec

Ground.

Project Benefit

This areg expenences the mast amount of

actve ransport movements in Grong Grong
and would link Jurvee Street sops and parklond,
theCommemonation Hall and School of Arts, the
Church ond Grong Grong Rodes Ground,
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Barellan Project #1
Proiect Dascriof

Yopunyoh Street crossing installation

Project Benefit

Yapunyoh Street is the moin commencal precanct
for Barellan and is also the route of the Burley
Gnffin Way. The street is guite busy with trucks
and through treffic and motor vehicle speed ond
porking congestuon hos been raised by locols and
wisitors, There goe visitor focilities both sides of
Yorunyoh Street and pedestrions ore observed
crossing this busy rood at various uncontrolicd

peants. Thére is 0 nedd To prosnde iImproved Crossing

of the Mainstreet

Rood refuge slond

Kerb sade blisters x 2

Raad shoulder and footpath rehabiltation
Austroban Rood Rules signoge x 4 signs

Tresffic control
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Barellan Project # 2
Proiect Dascriof

Yopunyoh Street western crossing installation and
feotpoth extensaon

Project Benefit

There is a great decl of active Transpon movemant
both sides of Yopunyah Street, which forms port of
the Burley Grilfith Wy, There are visitors lociities
thot need 1o be linked both sides of the street. This
pothwould alio link 1o other footpaths propotsed to
link school and communiTy TOCIltes 10 the south

Foolpath « 528m

Rood refuge slond

Kerb side blisters x 2

Rood shoulde: ond footpath rehabilitation

Traffic control
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Barellan Project # 3
oiect Descriot

Myall Street Toatpoth instollotion

Project Benefit

The progect will improve condmaons for active
transport movement along an identifed route that
15 well used by students occessing the southemn
areas of Boreban, and wiuch also provides inks from
Yapuryoh Street to other ottroctors including the
Destrict War Memanal Club, Dronoge ond street
Lreds reQuing Comeful CoONSaenaDon in COMpISTNng
this progect
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Footpoth x 245m
Kerh Romps x 2

Drainoage and feotpath renabilitation

Traffic control

Q

°

Mot Murslbars

oy o Lia

cmtadl Buncd Malwed s
Py Raena etwadh

e areed Boasdy

Biniaeinyd

Soeed Sghage - #um
Pubde Todets

By Stcgn

T wertondy Kaety Blater

Comeitrm Bl g Bl
Emnting Pedeutnags Croiung
Proposed Cantre e tuge mand
Bongrang s bl 4
Agceyikeity MR+ ovementy
1 wintinegy Shmrad Parthg
Exteng Qoo Pt

T e tionary 1 et Py i,

Wl ol w1
Peoposid Pedettnas Badge
O rpd Bl Lorsn
PRapoLed PEns Wetarang
apeanedd Lrared Paths
Proposed Foolpothg

Wated Featyie

Londuie « Recreoton
e
La~duie - Lebutoton
Loribuss « Generol Comereds il

Lo ahurtas « Burral

e
A
I pu"*’d.t
i
l |
""--.._____ |
=
fag
&=
ey
i
Project Location Mop

Site Photograph Site Photograph

Item 20.2- Attachment 2 Page 86 of 183



Ordinary Council Meeting Attachments 15 August 2023

CURRAJONG Narrandera
Shire Council
POSTAL ADDRESS POSTAL ADDRESS POSTAL ADDRESS
205A Clarinda Street 270 Surmmer Street 14l East Street
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Narrandera Shire Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Contents Page
Understanding Council's Financial Statements 3
Statement by Councillers and Management 4

Primary Financial Statements:

Income Statement 5
Statement of Comprehensive Income 6
Statement of Financial Position 7
Statement of Changes in Equity 8
Statement of Cash Flows 9
Notes to the Financial Statements 10
Independent Auditor's Reports:

On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [2]) 76
On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [3]) 7

Overview
Narrandera Shire Council is conslituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of business at:

141 East St
MNarrandera NSW 2700

Council's guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

« principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by council,

+ principles 1o be applied when making decisions,

+ principles of community participation,

+ principles of sound financial management, and

+ principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.
A description of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Mote B1-2.

Through the use of the internel, we have ensured that our reporling is limely, complete and available at minimum cost. All
press releases, financial statements and other information are publicly available on our websile: www.narrandera.nsw.gov.ay
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Narrandera Shire Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Understanding Council's Financial Statements

Introduction
Each year NSW local governments are required to present audited financial statements to their council and community.
What you will find in the Statements

The financial statements set out the financial performance, financial posilion and cash flows of Council for the financial year
ended 30 June 2023.

The format of the financial statements is standard across all NSW Councils and complies with both the accounting and reporting
requirements of Auslralian Accounling Standards and requirements as sel down by the Office of Local Government.

About the Councillor/Management Statement

The financial statements must be cerlified by senior staff as ‘presenting fairly’ the Council's financial results for the year and
are required to be adopted by Council - ensuring both responsibility for and ownership of the financial statements.

About the Primary Financial Statements

The financial statements incorporate five "primary” financial statements:

1. The Income Statement

Summarises Council's financial performance for the year, listing all income and expenses. This statement also displays
Council's original adopted budget lo provide a comparison between what was projected and what actually occurred.

2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income
Primarily records changes in the fair value of Council's Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.

3. The Statement of Financial Position
A 30 June snapshot of Council's financial position indicating its assets, liabilities and “net wealth”,

4. The Statement of Changes in Equity
The overall change for the year (in dollars) of Council's “net weallh®.

5. The Statement of Cash Flows
Indicates where Council's cash came from and where it was spent. This statement also displays Council's original adopted
budget to provide a comparison between what was projecled and what actually occurred,
About the Notes to the Financial Statements
The Notes to the Financial Statements provide greater detail and additional information on the five primary financial statements,
About the Auditor's Reports
Council's financial statements are required to be audited by the NSW Audit Office.
In NSW the auditor provides 2 audil reports:
1. an opinion on whether the financial statements present fairly the Council’s financial performance and position, and
2. their observalions on the conduct of the audit, including commentary on the Council’s financial perfformance and financial
position.
Who uses the Financial Statements?

The financial statements are publicly available documents and musl be presented at a Council meeting between seven days
and five weeks after the date of the audit report.

The public can make submissions to Council up to seven days subsequent to the public presentation of the financial statements.

Council is required to forward an audited set of financial stalements to the Office of Local Government.
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Narrandera Shire Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to Section 413 (2¢) of the Local
Government Act 1993 (NSW)

The attached general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:
+ the Local Government Act 1993 and the regulations made thereunder,
+ the Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board

+ the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
+  present fairly the Council's operating result and financial position for the year
+ accord with Council's accounting and other records.
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 15 August 2023,

Mr Neville Kschenka Mr Cameron Lander

Mayor Councillor

15 August 2023 15 August 2023

Mr George Cowan Mr Martin Hiscox

General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
15 August 2023 15 August 2023

Mr Shane Wilson
Deputy General Manager Infrastructure
15 August 2023
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MNarrandera Shire Council | Income Statement | for the year ended 30 June 2023

Narrandera Shire Council

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Original
unaudited
budget
2023

8,597
3,213
721
7,643
7.739
226
225
a2

28,456

8,450
5,732
46

6,123
403

20,754
7,702
7,702

(37)

The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

$"000

Income from continuing operations

Rates and annual charges

User charges and fees

Olher revenues

Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes
Granls and conlributions provided for capital purposes
Interest and investment income

Other income

Met gain from the disposal of assets

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits and on-costs

Materials and services

Borrowing costs

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial
assets

Olher expenses

Met loss from the disposal of assets

Total expenses from continuing operations

Operating result from continuing operations

B2-2

B2-3

B2-4
B2-5
B2-&
B4-1

B3-1
B3-2
B3.3

B34

Net operating result for the year attributable to Council

Net operating result for the year before grants and contributions

provided for capital purposes

Actual Aclual
2023 2022
8,586 8,362
3,854 3,873
1,508 1,357
14,187 9,267
5175 6.824
658 188
217 209

- 363
34,185 30,443
8,559 8,234
9,007 8,392
64 39
6,596 5,980
514 637

22 -
24,762 23,282
9,423 7.161
9,423 7,161
4,248 337
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Marrandera Shire Council | Statement of Comprehensive Income | for the year ended 30 June 2023

Narrandera Shire Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2023

$'000

Moles 2023 2022

Met operating result for the year — from Income Statement 9,423 7,161

Other comprehensive income:

Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result
Gainf{loss) on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment C1-7 29,394 (1,082)
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating

result 29,394 (1,082)
Total other comprehensive income for the year 29,394 (1.082)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to Council 38,817 6,079

The above Staterent of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Narrandera Shire Council

Narrandera Shire Council | Slatement of Financial Position | for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2023
$'000

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables

Inventories

Conlracl assels and conlract cost assets
Other

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Receivables
Inventories

Infrastructure, propertly, plant and equipment (IPPE) Ci.7

Right of use assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Payables

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Employee benefit provisions
Total current liabilities

Mon-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Employee benefit provisions
Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
MNet assets

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus
IPPE revaluation reserve

Total equity

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles.

G331
C3-2
c2-1
C33

C3-4

C21
C3.3
C34
C3-5

C4-1
C4-1

G000 00

2023 2022
3,716 1,396
32,563 27,846
2,360 2,201

447 791

1,224 644

26 -
40,336 32,878

- 26

161 -
255,738 224,164
12 -
255,911 224190
296,247 257,068
1,862 2,003
2,702 2,057

5 -

147 144

2,443 2,518
7,159 6,722

6 -

1,757 1,904

88 90

500 432

2,351 2,426
9,510 9,148
286,737 247,920
175,298 165,875
111,439 82,045
286,737 247 920
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Narrandera Shire Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Opening balance at 1 July
Opening balance

Net operating result for the yoar
Net operating result for the period

Other comprehensive income
Gain (loss) on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment c1
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
Closing balance at 30 June

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles.

Narrandera Shire Council | Stalement of Changes in Equity | for the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 2022

IPPE IPPE
Accumulated revaluation Total Accumulated revaluation Total
surplus reserve equity surplus. reserve equity
165,875 82,045 247,920 158,714 83127 241,841
165,875 82,045 247,920 158,714 83,127 241,841
9,423 - 9,423 7,161 - 7,181
9,423 - 9,423 7,161 - 7,161
- 29,394 29,394 - {1,082) (1,082}
- 29,394 29,394 - (1.082) (1.082)
9,423 29,394 38.817 7.161 (1.082) 6,079
175,298 111,439 286,737 165,875 82,045 247,920
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Marrandera Shire Council | Statement of Cash Flows | for the year ended 30 June 2023

Narrandera Shire Council

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Original
unaudited
budget
2023

8,604
3,175
224
15,132

1,095

(8,380)
(5.814)
(46)

401
13,589

592

455

(15.913)

(14.866)

2,000

(144)

1,856
579

579

17.339
17,918

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

$ m MNoleg

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:

Rates and annual charges

User charges and fees

Interest received

Granls and conltributions

Bonds, deposits and retentions received
Olher

Payments:

Payments to employees

Paymenis for malerials and services
Borrowing costs

Bonds, deposits and retentions refunded
Other

Net cash flows from operating activities G111

Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:

Sale of investments

Sale of real estate assels

Proceeds from sale of IPPE

Deferred debtors receipts

Payments:

Purchase of investments

Acquisition of term deposils
Payments for IPPE

Purchase of real eslate assels
Deferred debtors and advances made

Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts:

Proceeds from borrowings

Payments:

Repayment of borrowings

Principal component of lease paymenis

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year C1-1

plus: Invesimenls on hand at end of year ci-2
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments

Actual Aclual
2023 2022
8,651 8,502
3,752 4,00
409 173
19,426 15,494
30 -
3,599 3,705
(8,679) (8,184)
(9,198) (8.626)
(47) (28)

- (66)
(2,162) (2,066)
15,781 12,995
27,846 25,836
1,325 212
101 339

- 1
(27,846) (25,836)
(4,717) {3.000)
(9,174) (12,519)
(774) (5)
(73) -
(13,312) (14.972)
- 1.620

(144) (97)
(5) -
{149) 1,523
2,320 (454)
1,396 1,850
3,716 1,396
32,563 27,846
36,279 29,242
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Marrandera Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2023

Narrandera Shire Council

Contents for the notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

A About Council and these financial statements
A1-1 Basis of preparation

B Financial Performance

B1 Functions or activities
B1-1 Functions or aclivities - income, expenses and assets
B1-2 Components of functions or activities

B2 Sources of income
B2-1 Rates and annual charges
B2-2 User charges and fees
B2-3 Other revenues
B2-4 Grants and contributions
B2-5 Interest and investment income
B2-6 Other income

B3 Costs of providing services
B3-1 Employee benefits and on-costs
B3-2 Materials and services
B3-3 Bomrowing cosls
B3-4 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets
B3-5 Other expenses

B4 Gains or losses
B4-1 Gain or loss from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of assets

BS Performance against budget
B5-1 Material budget variations

C Financial position

C1 Assets we manage
C1-1 Cash and cash equivalents
C1-2 Financial investments
C1-3 Restricted and allocated cash, cash equivalents and investments
C1-4 Receivables
C1-5 Inventories
C1-6 Confract assets and Contract cost assels
C1-7 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
C1-8 Other

C2 Leasing activities
C2-1 Council as a lessee
C2-2 Council as a lessor

C3 Liabilities of Council
C3-1 Payables
C3-2 Contract Liabilities
C3-3 Borrowings
C3-4 Employee benefit provisions
C3-5 Provisions

12
12

14

14
14
15

16
16
17
18
19
23
23

24
24
25
25
26
27

27
27

29
29

31

31
31
31
33
35
36
37
38
41

42
42
44

45
45
46
47
48
48
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Marrandera Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2023

Narrandera Shire Council

Contents for the notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

C4 Reserves
C4-1 Nature and purpose of reserves

D Council structure

D1 Results by fund
D1-1 Income Statement by fund
D1-2 Statement of Financial Position by fund
D1-3 Details of internal loans

D2 Interests in other entities
D2-1 Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates not recognised

E Risks and accounting uncertainties
E1-1 Risks relaling to financial instruments held
E2-1 Fair value measurement
E3-1 Contingencies

F People and relationships

F1 Related party disclosures
F1-1 Key management personnel (KMP)
F1-2 Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses

F2 Other relationships
F2-1 Audit fees

G Other matters
G1-1 Statement of Cash Flows information
G2-1 Commitments
G3-1 Events occurring after the reporting date

G4 Statement of developer contributions as at 30 June 2023
G4-1 Summary of developer contributions
G4-2 Developer contributions by plan

G5 Statement of performance measures
G5-1 Statemenl of performance measures — consolidaled results
G5-2 Statement of performance measures by fund

H Additional Council disclosures (unaudited)
H1-1 Slatement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)
H1-2 Council information and contact details

50
50

50

50
50
51
52

53
53

54
54
57
62

65

65
65
66

66
66

67
67
68
68

69
69
69

70

70
A

73
73
75
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Marrandera Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2023
A About Council and these financial statements

A1-1 Basis of preparation

These financial stalements were aulhorised for issue by Council on 15 August 2023. Council has the power to amend and
reissue these financial stalements in cases where crilical information is received from public submissions or where the OLG
directs Council to amend the financial stalemenls.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consoclidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These general purpose financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993 (Act) and Local Government (General) Regufation 2021
(Regulation), and the Local Governmenlt Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporling.

Council is a not for-profit enlity.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Council's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Council and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Council makes estimations and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting eslimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resulls.

The eslimates and assumplions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year include:

i. estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — refer Note C1-7
ii. employee benefit provisions = refer Note C3-4.
iii. estimated tip remediation provisions - refer Note C3-5

Significant judgements in applying the Council’s accounting policies

i. Impairment of receivables — refer Note C1-4.

ii. Determinalion of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific and whether the confract is within the scope
of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and / or AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities - refer to Noles
B2-2 - B2-4.

Monies and other assets received by Council
The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the Local Governmenl Act 1993 (NSW), all money and property received
by Council is held in the Council's Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Council's Trust Fund.

Cash and other assets of the following activities have been included as part of the Consolidated Fund:

General purpose operalions

Water service

Sewerage service

Barellan Hall and Museum

Grong Grong Hall

MNarrandera Railway Management Commitiee

Narrandera Koala Regeneration Cenlre Supervisory Commitlee
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A1-1 Basis of preparation (continued)

=  Arls Centre and Narrandera Museum

The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Government Act 1933 (NSW) (as amended), a separate and
distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and property received by the council in trust which must be applied
only for the purposes of, or in accordance with, the trusts relating to those monies.

Trust monies and property subject to Council's conirol have been included in these reporls.

A separate statement of monies held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at the council office by any person free of
charge.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of associaled GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the laxation authorily. In this case it is recognised as parl of the cost of acquisition of the assel or as part
of the expense.

Receivables and payables are slated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from invesling or financing aclivities
lhat are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation autherily, are presented as operaling cash flows.

Volunteer services
Council makes use of volunleers for the community transport program, museums al Narrandera and Barellan and also

library services. The estimated value of these services has been included in the financial stalements based on an average
salary and on coslts council would be required to pay if the services were not donated.

New accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations (ie. pronouncements) have been published by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2023 reporting period.

Council has not applied any pronouncements before its operative date in the annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2022,
As al lhe dale of authorisalion of these financial statements Council does nol consider that any of these new (and slill to be

applied) standards and interprelations are likely to have a material impact on the Council's future financial statements, financial
paosilion, financial performance or cash flows.

New accounting standards adopted during the year

During the year, Council adopted all standards which were mandatorily effective for the first time at 30 June 2023,

None of these standards had an impact on the reported posilion or performance.
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B Financial Performance
B1 Functions or activities

B1-1 Functions or activities — income, expenses and assets

Narrandera Shire Council | NMoles o the Financial Stalements 30 June 2023

Income, expenses and assels have been directly attributed to the following functions or activities. Delails of those functions or activilies are provided in Note B1-2.

Income Expenses Operating result Grants and contributions Carrying amount of assets
§°000 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Functions or activities
Our Community 7,151 5579 6,210 6,117 941 (538) 5873 4357 40,066 34 636
Owr Environment 1,324 1.488 1.636 1.624 (312) (136) 219 496 3129 2,89
Our Economy 1,644 2655 2,853 3.332 {1,209) (677) 7 343 7,540 7.096
Qur Infrastructure 10,104 7.581 10,700 9,014 (596) (1,433) 5,531 4,006 223,235 193,645
Our Civic Leadership 13,962 13,140 3,363 3.195 10,599 9,945 7,732 6,889 22,277 18,800
Total functions and activities 34,185 30,443 24,762 23,282 9,423 7.161 19,362 16,091 296,247 257,068
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B1-2 Components of functions or activities

Details relating to the Council's funclions or activilies as reported in B1-1 are as follows:

Our Community

Security cameras, emergency services, health, aged & disabled services, social support, home modification and maintenance,
community transport, community options, youth and childcare services, street lighting, public cemeteries, library, swimming
pools, sportsgrounds, parks & reserves, Lake Talbot, sports stadium, cultural services, roads safety officer, arts cenilre,

Our Environment
Ordinance and ranger services, insect & vermin conltrol, noxious weeds, wasle management, public toilets, environmental
protection, development control.

Qur Economy
State Roads contract, economic development/real eslate, indusirial subdivision, industrial promotion, marketing & tourism,
visitors centre, saleyards, caravan parks, private works, council land & buildings, aerodrome.

Our Infrastructure
Infrastructure services, slormwater, urban & rural roads, regional roads, bridges, Roads lo Recovery, roads ancilliary, car
parking, waler & sewer services.

Our Civic Leadership

Governance, council chambers, administration, finance, human resources & work health and safely, information technology,
properly/revenue, employment overheads, plant operalions, external plant revenue and general purposes income.
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B2  Sources of income

B2-1 Rates and annual charges

£'000 2023 2022
Ordinary rates

Residenlial 1,712 1.674
Farmland 3114 3,067
Business 461 445
Less: pensioner rebates (131) {1386)
Rates levied to ratepayers 5,156 5,050
Pensioner rate subsidies received 74 74
Total ordinary rates 5,230 5,124
Annual charges (pursuant to s496, 496A, 4968, 501 & 611)

Domastic waste managemaent services 807 792
Stormwater managemenl services 75 7
Water supply services 865 810
Sewerage services 1,516 1,475
Wasle management services 126 124
Less: pensioner rebates (7T4) (76)
Annual charges levied 3,315 3,196
Pensioner subsidies received:

- Water 22 22
- Sewerage 19 20
Total annual charges 3,356 3,238
Total rates and annual charges 8,586 8,362
Timing of revenue recognition for rates and annual charges

Rales and annual charges recognised al a point in time 8,586 8,362
Total rates and annual charges 8,586 8,362

Council has used 2022 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

Accounting policy
Raltes and annual charges are recognised as revenue at the beginning of the rating period to which they relate. Prepaid rales
are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of the rating period.

Pensioner rebates relate to reductions in rates and certain annual charges for eligible pensioners’ place of residence in the
local government council area.

Pensioner rate subsidies are received from the NSW Government to provide a contribution towards the pensioner rebates and
are recognised within the underlying revenue item based on their substance.
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B2-2 User charges and fees

£'000 Timing 2023 2022
User charges

Waler supply services 2 1.334 1.067
Sewerage services 2 122 116
Total User charges 1,456 1,183
Fees

(i) Fees — statutory and regulatory functions (per s.608)

Inspeclion services 2 4 5
Planning and building regulation 2 118 123
Private works — section 67 2 350 839
Section 10.7 certificates (EP&A Act) 2 14 22
Section 603 cerlificates 2 15 22
Companion animals fees 2 1 1
Total Fees — statutory/regulatory 502 1,012
(ii) Fees — other (incl. general user charges (per 5.608))

Aerodrome 2 81 34
Aged care 2 741 632
Cemeleries 2 173 152
Leaseback fees = Council vehicles 2 23 28
Multipurpose centre 2 15 12
Transport for NSW (formerly RMS) charges (state roads not controlled by

Council) 2 662 277
Transporl for NSW (formerly RMS) charges (ordered works) 2 - 388
Sundry sales 2 2 1
Waste disposal tipping fees 2 34 22
Connection fees 2 21 23
Sportsground Fees 2 20 7
Halls 2 1

Library 2 5

Stadium Fees 2 62 42
Truck Wash 2 30 36
Other 2 26 21
Total Fees — other 1,896 1,678
Total Fees 2,398 2,690
Total user charges and fees 3,854 3,873
Timing of revenue recognition for user charges and fees

User charges and fees recognised at a point in time (2) 3,854 3.873
Total user charges and fees 3,854 3,873

Accounting policy
Revenue arising from user charges and fees is recognised when or as the performance obligation is completed and the
customer receives the benefil of the goods / services being provided.

The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment
terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases such as caravan parks, the customer is required to
pay on arrival or a deposit in advance. There is no material obligation for Council in relation to refunds or returns.

Licences granted by Council are all either short-term or low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the time that
the licence is granted rather than over the term of the licence.
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B2-3 Other revenues

$°000 Tirming 2023 2022
Fines 2 5 5
Legal fees recovery - rates and charges (exira charges) 2 54 89
Insurance claims recoveries 2 208 171
Commissions and agency fees 2 42 43
Recycling income (non-domestic) 2 24 12
Diesel rebate 2 73 68
Sales - general 2 38 3s
Incentive insurance rebate 2 27 27
Insurance reimbursement 2 8 34
Rural fire service reimbursement 2 161 98
Sale of scrap materials 2 6 18
Temporary Sale of Waler Allocation 2 288 288
Volunleer Services 2 529 456
Other 2 45 13
Total other revenue 1,508 1,357
Timing of revenue recognition for other revenue

Other revenue recognised at a point in time (2) 1,508 1,357
Total other revenue 1,508 1,357

Accounting policy for other revenue
Where the revenue is eamed for the provision of specified goods / services under an enforceable contract, revenue is
recognised when or as the obligations are satisfied.

Statutory fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the paymentl is received or when
the penalty has been applied, whichever occurs first.

Other revenue is recorded when the payment is due, the value of the payment is notified, or the payment is received, whichever
occurs first.
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B2-4 Grants and contributions

$ '000

General purpose grants and non-developer
contributions (untied)

General purpose (untied)

Current year allocation

Financial assistance

Payment in advance - future year allocation
Financial assistance

Amount recognised as income during current

year

Special purpose grants and non-developer
contributions (tied)

Cash contributions

Water supplies

Sewerage

Aged care

Bushfire and emergency services
Employment and training programs
Heritage and cultural

Library

Library — per capita

Library — special projects

Noxious weeds

Community services

Floodplain mapping and land use

Crown Lands

Street lighting

Stronger Country Communities - Council Projects
Stronger Country Communities - Community Grants
Drought Communities - Council Projects
Drought Communities - Communily Projecls
Local Roads & Community Infrastructure
Truck Wash

Playground on The Murrumbidgee

Regional Airports

Recreation and culture

Planning portal

Community Building Partnership

Transport (roads lo recovery)

Drainage

Health and safety

Transporl (other roads and bridges funding)
Other specific grants

Tourism

Recreation and culture

Transport for NSW contributions (regional roads, block

grant)

Other conlributions

Leeton Shire Council aegrodrome contributions
Disaster Recovery Funding

Total special purpose grants and
non-developer contributions — cash

Non-cash contributions
Rural Fire Services - Red Fleel
Total other contributions — non-cash

ronbiniied an nevl nane
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Marrandera Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2023

Operating Operating Capital Capital
2023 2022 2023 2022
1,597 2,682 - -
6,119 4,125 - .
7,716 6,807 - -
- - 24 -

- - 332 226

11 - - -

- a2 - -

16 82 -

65 28 - -

- 1 36 -

61 60 - -

19 19 - -
44 44 - -
43 10 - =
109 153 - -

- - - 87

87 33 - -

- = 207 141

- 11 - -

- - - ]

= - 633 684

- - 2,990 1,762

- - 7 344

9 - - 552

- 80 - -

- - - 26
603 aa7 - -
- - 106 -

63 - - -
3,454 51 414 1,844
238 35 - -
14 132 - -

- - a3 73

574 564 az 100

- - 1 -

61 68 4 149
1,000 - - -
6,471 2,460 5,019 5,994
- - 46 527

- - 46 527
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

$ '000

Total special purpose grants and

non-developer contributions (tied)

Total grants and non-developer

contributions

ronbiniied an nevl nane

Operating Operating Capital Capital
Timing 2023 2022 2023 2022
6,471 2,460 5,065 6,521

14,187 9267 5,065 6,521
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Operating Operating Capital Capilal
$°'000 Tirning 2023 2022 2023 2022
Comprising:
= Commonwealth funding 8,346 7.887 633 1,242
- State funding 5,611 1,227 4,298 4,530
— Other funding 230 153 134 749

14,187 9,267 5,065 6,521

Developer contributions

Operating Operating Capital Capital
£'000 Motes Tirning 2023 2022 2023 2022
Developer contributions: G4
(s7.4 & s7.11 - EP&A Act, 564 of the
LGA):

Cash contributions

§ 7.4 — contributions using planning

agreements 2 - - - 250
S 7.11 - contributions towards

amenilies/services 2 - = - 20
5 7.12 - fixed development consent levies 2 = - 55 17
S 64 - water supply contributions 2 - - 43 16
S 64 - sewerage service contribulions 2 - - 12 -
Total developer contributions — cash - - 110 303
Total developer contributions - - 110 303
Total contributions - - 110 303
Total grants and contributions 14,187 9,267 5,175 6,824
Timing of revenue recognition for grants and

contributions

Granls and conltributions recognised over lime (1) - 11 4,494 3,814
Grants and contributions recognised at a point in time

(2) 14,187 9,256 681 3,010
Total grants and contributions 14,187 9,267 5,175 6,824
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Unspent grants and contributions

Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on lhe condition they be spent in a specified manner or in a future
period but which are not yet spent in accordance with those conditions are as follows:

Operating Operating Capital Capital
$'000 2023 2022 2023 2022

Unspent grants and contributions
Unspent funds at 1 July 1,256 1,066 2,777 2,178

Add: Funds recognised as revenue in the
reporting year but not yet spent in

accordance with the conditions 5,306 843 129 308
Add: Funds received and nol recognised as
revenue in the current year - - 1,510 1,948

Less: Funds recognised as revenue in previous

years that have been spent during the

reporting year (784) (642) (10) (179)
Less: Funds received in prior year but revenue

recognised and funds spent in current

year (5) {11) (860) (1.478)
Unspent funds at 30 June 5,773 1,256 3,546 2,777

Accounting policy
Grants and contributions - enforceable agreement with sufficiently specific performance obligations

Grant and contribution revenue from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific perfformance
obligations is recognised as or when control of each performance obligations is transferred.

The performance obligalions vary according to the agreement but include evidence of the event taking place or salisfaclory
achievement of milestones. Payment lerms vary depending on lhe terms of the grant, cash is received upfront for some granis
and on lhe achievementl of certain payment milestones for others.

Performance obligations may be satisfied either at a point in time or over time and this is reflected in the revenue recognition
pattern. Point in time recognition occurs when the beneficiary obtains control of the goods / services at a single time (e.g.
completion of the project when a reporl / outcome is provided), whereas over lime recognition is where the control of the
services is ongoing throughout the project (e.g. provision of community health services through the year),

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input melhods being either costs or lime incurred are deemed lo be the
masl appropriale methods to reflect the ransler of benefil.

Capital grants

Capiltal grants received by Council under an enforceable contract for the acquisilion or construction of infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment to identified specifications which will be under Council's control on complelion are recognised as revenue
as and when the obligation to construct or purchase is completed.

For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is
deemed to be the most appropriate measure of the completeness of the construction project.

For acquisitions of assets, lhe revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the Council.
Developer contributions

Council has obligations lo provide facilities from contribulion revenues levied on developers under the provisions of sections
7.4, 7.11 and 7.12 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act).

While Council generally incorporates these amounts as part of a Development Consents Order, such developer conftributions
are only recognised as income upon receipt by Council, due to the possibility that individual development consents may not
be acted upon by the applicant and, accordingly, would not be payable to Council.

Developer contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the conltributions were required, but Council may
apply contribulions according to the priorilies established in work schedules for the contribulion plan,
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Other grants and contributions

Assels, including cash, received from other grants and contributions are recognised at fair value when the assel is received.
Council considers whether there are any related liability or equity iters associated with the asset which are recognised in
accordance with the relevant accounting standard.

Once the assets and liabililies have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining assel value at the lime
that the assel is received.

B2-5 Interest and investment income

$'000 2023 2022
Interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost

- Overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates) 46 52
- Cash and investments 611 135
Dividend income (other) 1 1
Total interest and investment income (losses) 658 188

Interest and investment income is attributable to:

Unrestricted investments/financial assets:

Overdue rates and annual charges (general fund) 24 30
General Council cash and investments 376 Ia
Restricted investmentsifunds — external:

Development contributions

- Section 7.4 Planning Agreements 6 1
- Section 7.11 2 -
- Section 7.12 5

— Seclion 64 7

Water fund operations 146 50
Sewerage fund operations 66 20
Domestic wasle management operations 26 13
Total interest and investment income 658 188

Accounting policy
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate al the date thal interest is earned.

Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

B2-6 Other income

$ '000 Notes 2023 2022

Rental income
Other lease income

Aerodrome Hangers 10 13
Caravan Park 93 89
Housing 46 41
Reverse Vending Machine 2 -
Shops & Offices 27 26
Tower Rental v 35
Other 2 5
Total other lease income 217 209
Total rental income c2-2 217 209
Total other income 217 209
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B3  Costs of providing services

B3-1 Employee benefits and on-costs

$ 000 2023 2022
Salaries and wages 7.002 7.074
Employee leave entitlements (ELE) 1,516 131
Superannuation 864 833
Workers' compensation insurance 183 282
Fringe benefit tax (FBT) 38 26
Sick leave insurance - 14
Other 10 14
Total employee costs 9,613 9.554
Less: capitalised costs (1,054) {1,320}
Total employee costs expensed 8,559 8,234
Number of full-time equivalent’ employees (FTE) at year end 100 103

Accounting policy
Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.

All employees of the Council are enlitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes to various defined
benefit plans and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees.

Conlributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset 1o the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Council participates in a defined benefit plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, however, sufficient
information lo accounl for the plan as a defined benefit is not available and therefore Council accounts for its obligations to
defined benefil plans on the same basis as ils obligations to defined conlribulion plans, i.e. as an expense when it becomes
payable - refer lo Nole E3-1 for more information.
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B3-2 Materials and services

£'000 Notes 2023 2022
Advertising 11 7
Audit Fees F2-1 87 89
Bank charges 57 52
Conlraclor cosls 1,213 898
Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses F1-2 181 145
Election expenses - 55
Electricity and heating 662 505
Fire control expenses 68 67
Insurance 450 428
Olher expenses 70 9
Postage 22 20
Printing and stalionery 24 30
Raw malerials and consumables 5,267 5,232
Street lighting 99 a7
Subscriplions and publications a0 86
Telephone and communications 80 65
Valuation fees " 29
Volunteer Services expense 529 456
Legal expenses:

- Legal expenses: planning and development - 6
- Legal expenses: debl recovery 54 89
- Legal expenses: other - 24
Expenses from leases of low value assels 9 1
Variable lease expensa relating to usage 3 2
Total materials and services 9,007 8,392
Total materials and services 9,007 8,392
Accounting policy

Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Council receives the goods or services.

B3-3 Borrowing costs

$°000 Notes 2023 2022
(i) Interest bearing liability costs

Interest on leases 1 -
Interest on loans 46 28
Discount adjustments relating to movements in provisions (other than ELE) - -
- Remediation liabililies C35 17 11
Total borrowing costs expensed 64 39

Accounting policy
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.
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B3-4 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets

$ ‘000 Notes 2023 2022
Depreciation and amortisation

Planl and equipment 674 684
Plant and equipment - specialised (RFS Red Fleet) 181 164
Office equipment 158 162
Fumniture and fittings 5 6
Land improvements 5 5
Infrastructure: c1-7

- Buildings - non-specialised 77 7
— Buildings — specialised 488 431
~ Other structures 675 642
- Roads 1,900 1,831
- Bridges 145 149
- Foolpaths 21 19
- Stormwater drainage 82 79
- Water supply network 633 497
- Sewerage network 348 305
- Swimming pools 105 103
- Other open spacefrecreational assels 116 105
Right of use assets c21 4 =
Other assets:

— Library books 26 22
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration assets:

- Tip assets C1-7 14 16
Total gross depreciation and amortisation costs 6,297 5,937
Impairment / revaluation decrement of IPPE

Infrastructure: -7

- Buildings — specialised (43) 43
— Other structures 1 .
- Roads 341 -
Total gross IPPE impairment / revaluation decrement costs 299 43

Total IPPE impairment / revaluation decrement costs charged
to Income Statement 299 43

Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment for
non-financial assets 6,596 5,980

Accounting policy

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their eslimated useful lives.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Council assels held at fair value that are not held primarily for their ability to generate net cash flow, and that are deemed to
be specialised, are not tested for impairment since these assets are assessed on an annual basis to ensure that the carrying
amount is not materially different from fair value and therefore, an impairment loss would be captured during this assessment.

Other assets are tested forimpairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carmmying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assel's camying amount exceeds ils recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, asseats are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assels or groups of assels (cash-generating units).
Nen-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment losses for revalued assels are firslly offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of asset,
with only the excess to be recognised in the Income Statement.
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B3-5 Other expenses

$'000 2023 2022
Impairment of receivables

Other 7 47
Total impairment of receivables 7 47
Other

Confributionsflevies to other levels of government

- Emergency services levy (includes FRNSW, SES, and RFS levies) 342 259
- Western Riverina Library 32 33
Donalions, contribulions and assistance o other organisations (Seclion 356) 27 28
Street Lighting 106 270
Total other 507 590
Total other expenses 514 637

Accounting policy
Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis when Council has an obligation for the expenses. Impairment expenses
are recognised when identified.

B4  Gains or losses

B4-1 Gain or loss from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of assets

$'000 Notes 2023 2022
Gain (or loss) on disposal of property (excl. investment property)

Less: carrying amount of property assels sold/written off {4) -
Gain (or loss) on disposal (4) -
Gain (or loss) on disposal of plant and equipment c17

Proceeds from disposal — plant and equipment 101 339
Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold/written off (22) {140)
Gain (or loss) on disposal 79 199
Gain (or loss) on disposal of infrastructure c1-7

Proceeds from disposal — infrastruclure - -
Less: carrying amount of infrastructure assets sold/written off {285) (19}
Gain (or loss) on disposal (285) (19)
Gain (or loss) on disposal of real estate assets held for sale c1-5

Proceeds from disposal — real estate assels 1,325 212
Less: carrying amount of real eslate assels sold/writlen off (1,000) (20)
Gain (or loss) on disposal 325 192
Gain (or loss) on disposal of investments £1-2

Proceeds from disposal/redemptions/maturities — investments 27,846 25.836
Less: carrying amount of investments sold/redeemed/matured (27,846) (25,8386)

Gain (or loss) on disposal - -

Gain (or loss) on disposal of plant and equipment - specialised

Proceeds from disposal - plant and equipment - specialised - -
Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment - specialised assets

soldiwritlen off - {9)

Gain (or loss) on disposal - (9)

Gain (or loss) on disposal of office equipment
Less: carrying amount of office equipment assels sold/written off {7) -~
Gain (or loss) on disposal (7) -
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B4-1 Gain or loss from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of assets

$ 000 2023 2022
Gain (or loss) on disposal of work in progress

Less: carrying amount of work in progress assets soldiwritten off (130) -
Gain (or loss) on disposal (130) —
Net gain (or loss) from disposal of assets (22) 363

Accounting policy
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. The gain or loss on sale of an
asset is determined when control of the asset has irevocably passed to the buyer and the asset is de-recognised.
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BS Performance against budget

B5-1 Material budget variations

Council's original budget was adopted by the Council on 21 June 2022 and is nol required to be audited. The original projections
on which the budget was based have been affecled by a number of factors. These include stale and federal government
decisions, including new grant programs, changing economic activily, environmental factors, and by decisions made by
Council.

While these General Purpose Financial Statements include the original budget adopted by Council, the Act requires Council to
review its financial budget on a quarterly basis, so itis able to manage the variation between actuals and budget that invariably
occur during the year.

Material variations of more than 10% between original budget and actual results or where the variance is considered material
by nature are explained below.

Variation Key: F = Favourable budget vanation, U = Unfavourable budget variation.

2023 2023 2023
$'000 Budget Actual Variance
Revenues
Rates and annual charges 8,597 8,586 (11) 0% U
User charges and fees 3.213 3,854 641 20% F

= Higher than anticipated revenues for:
=  Private works $206,000
= State Roads contract (Transport NSW) offset by expenses in materials and services $483,000

Other revenues 721 1,508 787 109% F
= Volunteer services revenue of $526,000 recognised in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standard (offsel by
expenses in malerials and services).
» Insurance income received relating lo the 21-22 storm event $180,000

Operating grants and contributions 7,643 14,187 6,544 86% F
s Council received several operaling grants in the 22-23 reporting period, including
= Financial Assistance Grant 100% prepayment $6.119m
= Pothole repair grant $535,000
= Regional & Local Road Repair Program $2.837m

Capital grants and contributions 7.739 5175 (2,564) (33)% U
= Council has been seeking granis to assist with the cost of the below projects. at reporting date a successul grant has
not been received
» Lake Talbot Deepening works $2m
» Urban Stormwater Upgrade $2m

Interest and investment revenue 226 658 432 191% F
= Council has benefited from higher than anticipated term deposil interest rates.

Net gains from disposal of assels 92 - 92) {(1o0)% U
s Council disposed of serveral infrastructure assels in 22-23 resulfing in a loss on disposal of assets

Other income 225 217 (8) (4)% U
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B5-1 Material budget variations (continued)

2023 2023 2023
$ 000 Budget Actual wemeeeee Wariance —eeee---
Expenses
Employee benefits and on-costs 8,450 8,559 (109) (1% U
Materials and services 5732 9,007 (3,275) (57)% U

= Higher than anticipated expenses relating lo:
= Volunteer Expenses (offset in other revenues) $526,000
State road conlracl expenses (offset by income in user charges & fees) $483,000
Private works expenses (offsel by income in user charges & fees) $185,000
Flood event expenses 3375,000
Parks expenses $183,000
Airport expenses $250,000
Water operation expenses $140,000
Grant programs $480,000
Roads expenses $183,000
Regional roads $142,000
Gravel Pit expenses $80,000
Consultant expenses $110,000
Toilet contract $65,000
Street Lighting contribution $105,000
Workshop expenses $150,000

Borrowing costs 46 64 (18) (39)% U
= Council recognised a provision for the remedialion of the landfill area in 21-22, lhe variance is the subsequent interest
applicable to the provision and was not known al the time of budget completion.

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of
non-financial assets

Other expenses 403 514 (111) (28)% U
» Council provided a contribulion for the cosls of LED slreet lighling replacemen.

6,123 6,596 (473) ®% U

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities 13,589 15,781 2,192 16% F
=  Cash flows from operaling aclivites budgel variance relales Lo higher than anficipaled grants and contirbulion revenues
offset by increased materials and services cosls

Cash flows from investing activities (14,866) (13,312) 1,554 (10)% F
= Council was unable to complete the 22-23 capital program due diverting resources to repond to the natural disaster
events within the Local Government area.

Cash flows from financing activities 1,856 (149) (2,005) (108)% U
s Council anticipated the drawdown of a loan for the Urban Stormwater upgrade project, the loan has been deferred to
June 2024,
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C Financial position

C1  Assets we manage

C1-1 Cash and cash equivalents
£ 000

Cash assets

Cash at bank and on hand

Cash equivalent assets

— Deposits at call
Total cash and cash equivalents

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents per Slatement of Financial Position

Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting policy

2023 2022
536 338
3,180 1,058
3,716 1,396
3,716 1,396
3,716 1,396

For Stalemenl of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand; deposils held at call
with financial institutions; other short-term, highly liquid investiments with original maturities of three months or less that are

readily convertible to known amounls of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

C1-2 Financial investments

2023 2023 2022 2022
$°000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Financial assets at fair value through the profit
and loss
Unlisted equity securities 10 - 10 =
Total 10 - 10 -
Debt securities at amortised cost
Long term deposits 32,553 - 27.836 -
Total 32,553 - 27,836 -
Total financial investments 32,563 - 27,846 -
Total cash assets, cash equivalents and
investments 36,279 - 29,242 -

Accounting policy

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Council becomes party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction cosls (except for instruments

measured al fair value through profit or loss where transaclion costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial assets

All recognised financial assels are subsequenlly measured in Lheir entirely al either amortised cos!t or fair value, depending

on the classification of the financial assels.

Classification
Council classifies ils financial assels in the following categories:

+ financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
« financial assets at amortised cost;
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C1-2 Financial investments (continued)

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investmenls were acquired,

Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, in the case of assels classified as held-
to-malurity, re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

Amortised cost

Council's financial assels measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables, term deposits and cash and cash
equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position. Term deposits with an initial term of more than 3 months are classified as
investments rather than cash and cash equivalents.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less
provision for impairment.

Interest income, impairment and gains or loss on de-recognition are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets through profit or loss
All financial assets not classified as measured al amortised cost are measured al fair value through profit or loss.

MNet gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Council's inancial assets measured al fair value through profit or loss are invesiments in Narrandera Dislrict Invesiments Lid.
(Bendigo Bank).
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C1-3 Restricted and allocated cash, cash equivalents and investments
£'000 2023 2022

(a) Externally restricted cash,
cash equivalents and

investments
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 36,279 29,242
Less: Externally restricted cash, cash equivalents and invesimenls (19,972) (14.726)
Cash, cash equivalents and investments not subject to external
restrictions 16,307 14,516

External restrictions

External restrictions — included in liabilities
Exlernal resltrictions included in cash, cash equivalents and inveslments above comprise:

Specific purpose unexpended loans — sewer 1,451 1,562
Specific purpose unexpended grants — general fund 2,546 1,953
Unexpended contribulions - general fund 155 103
External restrictions — included in liabilities 4,152 3618

External restrictions
External restrictions included in cash, cash equivalents and investments above

comprise:;

Developer contribulions — general 524 466
Developer contributions — water fund 219 171
Developer contributions — sewer fund 92 78
Transporl for NSW contributions 103 101
Specific purpose unexpended grants (recognised as revenue) — general fund 5373 1,159
Water fund 5,204 5113
Waler supplies — carry over works 883 1,058
Water supplies — Retention 21 21
Sewer fund 394 268
Sewerage services — carry over works 732 529
Stormwater management 369 500
Crown lands 302 214
Domeslic wasle management 1,604 1,430
External restrictions 15,820 11,108
Total external restrictions 19,972 14,726

Cash, cash equivalents and investments subject to external restrictions are those which are only available for specific use
by Council due to a resiriction placed by legislation or third-party contractual agreement.

$ '000 2023 2022
(b) Internal allocations

Cash, cash equivalents and investments not subject to external

restrictions 16,307 14,516
Less: Internally restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments {16,092) (14.372)
Unrestricted and unallocated cash, cash equivalents and investments 215 144

Internal allocations
At 30 June, Council has internally allocated funds to the following:

Plant and vehicle replacement 1,892 1.468
Organisational service assets & projects 2,924 5,076
Employees leave enlillement 1,178 1,288
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C1-3 Restricted and allocated cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued)

$ '000

Carry over works revenue funded
Deposils, relentions and bonds

Financial assistance grant received in advance
Information technology renewal & replacement

Property development

Quarry rehabilitation

Cemelery perpelual maintenance
Council committees

Other

Total internal allocations

2023 2022
1,198 901
185 156
6,119 4,124
670 590
762 244
17 35
455 404
60 57
632 29
16,092 14,372

Cash, cash equivalents and investments not subject to external restrictions may be internally allocated by resolution or

policy of the elected Council.

$'000 2023 2022
(c) Unrestricted and unallocated
Unrestricted and unallocated cash, cash equivalents and investments 215 144
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C1-4 Receivables

2023 2023 2022 2022
$°'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Rates and annual charges 646 - 657 26
Interest and exira charges B89 - 66 -
User charges and fees 485 - 383 =
Accrued revenues
- Interest on investments 310 - 84 -
= Other income accruals 126 - 256 -
- User charges and fees (Water consumption) 121 - - -
Deferred deblors 73 - - -
Government grants and subsidies 411 = 456 —
Net GST receivable 39 - 258 =
RMS receivables a5 - 74 -
Other debtors - - 2 -
Total 2,395 - 2,236 26
Less: provision for impairment
Rates and annual charges (26) - {26) -
Interest and extra charges (2) - {2) -
User charges and fees (7) - {7) .
Total provision for impairment -
receivables (35) - {35) -
Total net receivables 2,360 - 2,201 26

Accounting policy

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for setllement within 30 days.

Impairment
Impairment of financial assets measured al amortised cost is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis.

When estimating ECL, Council considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on Council's historical experience
and informed credit assessment, and including forward-looking information.

Council uses the simplified approach for trade receivables where the expected lifelime credit losses are recognised on day 1.

When considering the ECL for rates and annual charges debtors, Council takes inlo account that unpaid rates represent a
charge against the rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold.

Credil losses are measured at the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contracl, and the cash flows expecled to be received. This is applied using a probability weighted approach.

Council writes off a receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs first,

None of the receivables that have been wrillen off are subject to enforcement activity.

Where Council renegotiates the terms of receivables due from certain customers, the new expected cash flows are discounted
al the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference o the carrying value is recognised in profil or loss.
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C1-5 Inventories

$'000

(i) Inventories at cost
Real estate for resale

Stores and materials
Trading stock

Total inventories at cost

Total inventories

(i) Other disclosures

$ '000

(a) Details for real estate development

Industrial/commercial
Total real estate for resale

Accounting policy

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

Marrandera Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2023

2023 2023 2022 2022
Currant  Non-current Current Non-current
19 161 406 -

412 - 364 -

16 - 21 -

447 161 791 -
447 161 791 -
2023 2023 2022 2022
Current  Non-current Current Non-current
19 161 406 -

19 161 406 -

Raw malerials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are staled at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighled average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the eslimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimaled cosls of completion and the eslimated cosls necessary lo make the sale.

Land held for resale

Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by specific identification and
includes the cost of acquisition, and development and borrowing costs during development. When development is completed,
borrowing costs and other holding charges are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for resale are those costs that would have been avoided if the expenditure
on the acquisition and development of lhe land had not been made. Borrowing cosls incurred while aclive development is
interrupted for extended periods are recognised as expenses.
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C1-6 Contract assets and Contract cost assets

2023 2023 2022 2022
$ "000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Confract assets 1,224 - 644 -
Total contract assets and contract

cost assets 1,224 - 644 -
Contract assets

Construction of Transport assels 25 - 269 -
Construction of Sewer 123 - 130 -
Other 21 - 78 -
Construction of Recrealion Assets 831 - 167 -
Construclion of Waler 24 - - -
Total contract assets 1,224 - 644 -

Significant changes in contract assets
During 2022-2023 Council has undertaken many large grant programs including assets for recreation, airport, sewer and
communily activities,

Accounting policy

Contract assets
Contract assets represent Councils right to payment in exchange for goods or services the Council has transferred to a
customer when that right is conditional on something other than the passage of time.

Conlract assets arise when the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of various mileslones established in
the contract and therefore the amounts recognised as revenue in a given period do not necessarily coincide with the amounls
billed to or cerlified by the customer. Once an invoice or payment claim is raised or the relevant milestone is reached, Council
recognises a receivable.

Impairment of contract assets is assessed using the simplified expected credit loss model where lifetime credit losses are
recognised on initial recognition.

Contract cost asset — costs to fulfil a contract
Where costs are incurred to fulfil a contract and these cosls are outside the scope of another accounting standard, they are
capilalised as contracl cosl assels if the following crileria are mel:

- the costs relate directly lo a contract
- the cosls generale or enhance resources of Council that will be used to satisfy performance obligations in the future and
- the costs are expected to be recovered.

The capilalised costs are recognised in the Income stalemenl on a systemalic basis consistenl with the timing of revenue
recognition.

Refer to B3-4 for the accounting policy for impairment of contract cost assets.
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MNarrandera Shire Council | Noles o the Financial Stalements 30 June 2023
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C1-7 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)
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C1-7 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Accounting policy
Initial recognition of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE)

IPPE is measured initially at cost. Cost includes the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the asset (net of discounts
and rebates) and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use (inclusive of import
dulies and taxes.

When infrastruclure, property, plant and equipment is acquired by Council at significantly below fair value, the assels are
initially recognised at their fair value at acquisition date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriale, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during the financial peried in which they are
incurmed.,

Useful lives of IPPE

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line metheod to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment Years Other equipment Years

Office equipment 5to 10 Playground equipment 1510 40

Office furniture 51020 Benches, seals etc. 30

Computer equipment 4

Vehicles S5to& Buildings

Heavy plantiroad making equipment S5to 15 Buildings: masonry 1010 150

Other plant and equipment Sto 15 Buildings: other 3010 50

Water and sewer assets Stormwater assets

Reservoirs 801to 100 Drains 135

Bores 20to 80 Culverts 135

Reticulation pipes: PVC a0

Reticulation pipes: other 251075 Other infrastructure assels

Pumps and telemetry 15t0 50 Swimming pools 40
Other open space/recreational assels 1010 50

Transportation assets Other Slruclures 10 1o 100

Sealed roads: surface 23

Sealed roads: structure 40

Sealed raods: pavements 100

Bridge: concrete 100

Bridge: other 50

Unsealed road pavements 30 to 40

Kerb, gutter and footpalths 75

The assels’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriale, at each reporling date.
Revaluation model

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Comprehensive valuations are performed al least every
5 years, however the carrying amount of assels is assessed by Council at each reporling dale to confirm that it is not materially
different from current fair value.

Waler and sewerage network assets are indexed al each reporting period in accordance with the Rales Reference Manual
issued by Department of Planning. Industry and Environment — Water.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the IPPE revalualion reserve. To the extent thal the
increase reverses a decrease previously recognising profil or loss relating to thal asset class, the increase is first recognised as
profit or loss. Decreases thal reverse previous increases of assels in the same class are first charged against IPPE revaluation
reserve lo the extent of the remaining reserve allributable lo the class; all other decreases are charged to the Income Stalement.

Land under roads
Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips and median strips.
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C1-7 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Council has elecled nol to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008. Land under roads acquired afler 1 July
2008 is recognised in accordance with the IPPE accounting policy.

Crown reserves

Crown reserves under Council’s care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While ownership of the reserves
remains wilh the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and is responsible for their maintenance and use
in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated.

Improvements on Crown reserves are also recorded as assels, while mainlenance cosls incurred by Council and revenues
relating to the reserves are recognised within Council’s Income Statement.

Rural Fire Service assets

Under Seclion 119 of the Rural Fire Services Acl 1997 (NSW), “all firefighling equipment purchased or construcled wholly
or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vesled in the council of the area for or on behalf of which the firefighting
equipmenl has been purchased or conslrucled”.

These Rural Fire Service assets are recognised as assets of the Council in these financial stalements.

C1-8 Other

Other assets

2023 2023 2022 2022
$°'000 Current  Non-current Current MNon-current
Prepaymenls 26 - - =
Total other assels 26 - - _
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C2 Leasing activities

C2-1 Council as a lessee

(i) Council as a lessee

Council has leases for office equipment and vehicles. Information relating to the leases in place and associated balances and
transactions is provided below.

Terms and conditions of leases

Vehicles

Council leases vehicles with a lease lerms varying of 3 years; the lease payments are fixed during the lease term and there
is generally no renewal oplion,

Office and IT equipment

Leases for pholocopiers are considered low value assels. The leases are for 5 years with no renewal option, the payments
are fixed, however some of the leases include variable payments based on usage.

(a) Right of use assets

£'000 Vehicles Total
2023

Opening balance at 1 July - -
Additions to right-of-use assets 16 16
Depreciation charge 4) (4)
Balance at 30 June 12 12
2022

Opening balance at 1 July - -

Depreciation charge - .
Balance at 30 June - -

(b) Lease liabilities

2023 2023 2022 2022
$ 000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Lease liabilities 5 [ - -
Total lease liabilities 5 6 - —

(c) (i) The maturity analysis

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below:

Total per

Statement of

Financial

$'000 <1 year 1-5years > 5 years Total Position
2023

Cash flows 5 6 - 11 "
2022

Cash flows - - - -~ -
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C2-1 Council as a lessee (continued)

(d) Income Statement

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relaling to leases where Council is a lessee are shown below:

$°'000 2023 2022

Interest on lease liabilities 1 -

Variable lease payments based on usage nol included in the measurement of lease

liabilities 3 2

Depreciation of right of use assets 4 -

Expenses relating o low-value leases ] 11
17 13

(e) Statement of Cash Flows

Total cash outflow for leases 17 13
17 13

(f) Leases at significantly below market value — concessionary / peppercorn leases

Council has a number of leases at significantly below market for land and buildings which are used for:
+  Council Works Depot
+  Cemelery
+ |Lake Talbot Water Park
+ Old Railway Station

The leases have varying terms and require payments of less than $1,000 per year. The use of the right-lo-use assel is restricted
by the lessors to specified communily services which Council must provide, these services are detailed in the leases.

Council does not believe that any of the leases in place are individually material from a statement of financial position or
performance perspective.

Accounting policy

At inception of a conlract, Council assesses whether a lease exists — i.e. does the conlract convey the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration?

Council has elected not lo separale non-lease components from lease componenls for any class of asset and has accounted
for payments as a single component.

At the lease commencement, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the lease term. The
lease term includes extension periods where Council believes it is reasonably certain thal the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use assel is measured using the cosl model where cosl on initial recognilion comprises: the lease liability, initial
direct cosls, prepaid lease payments, estimaled cos! of removal and restoralion, less any lease incenlives received. The
right-of-use is depreciated over the lease lerm on a straighl-line basis and assessed for impairment in accordance with the
impairment of assel accounling policy.

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the
lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then the Council's
incremental borrowing rate for a similar term with similar security is used.

Subsequent lo inilial recognition, the lease liability is measured al amorlised cosl using the effective inlerest rate method. The
lease liability is re-measured when there is a lease modification, or change in estimate of the lease lerm or index upon which
the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI).

Where the lease liability is re-measured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the re-measurement.

Exceptions to lease accounting
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C2-1 Council as a lessee (continued)
Council has applied the exceptions lo lease accounling for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal
lo 12 months) and leases of low-value assels, Council recognises the paymenls associated wilh these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Leases at significantly below market value / concessionary leases

Council has elected lo measure the right of use asset arising from the concessionary leases at cost which is based on the
associated lease liability at initial recognition.

C2-2 Council as a lessor

Operating leases

£ '000 2023 2022

(i) Assets held as property, plant and equipment

Council provides operating leases on Council properties for the purpose of stafl housing,
health services, lraining providers, emergency services, caravan park and community
groups, the lable below relates to operating leases on assels disclosed in C1-8,

Lease income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an index or rate) 217 209
Total income relating to operating leases for Council assets 217 209

Amount of IPPE leased out by Council under operating leases

Land 978 672
Buildings 3,519 2,880
Structures 5,155 5214
Other recreation 81 13
Pools 2,930 3.064
Total amount of IPPE leased out by Council under operating leases 12,663 11,843

(i) Maturity analysis of contractual lease income

Maturity analysis of fulure lease income receivable showing the undiscounted lease
payments to be received after reporting date for operating leases:

<1 year 236 236
1-2 years 239 241
2-3 years 243 229
34 years 249 250
4-5 years 238 242
> 5 years 243 230
Total undiscounted lease payments to be received 1,448 1.428

Accounting policy

When Council is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inceplion date, based on whether
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have been transferred lo the lessee. If the risks
and rewards have been transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease.

When Council has a sub-lease over an asset and is the intermediate lessor then the head lease and sub-lease are accounted

for separately. The classification of the sub-lease is based on the right-of-use asset which arises from the head lease rather
than the uselul life of the underlying asset.
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C2-2 Council as a lessor (continued)

If the lease conlains lease and non-lease componenis, the non-lease components are accounted for in accordance wilth AASE
15 Revenue from Contracls with Cuslomers.

The lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term for an operating lease and as finance income
using amorlised cost basis for finance leases.

C3 Liabilities of Council
C3-1 Payables

2023 2023 2022 2022
$'000 Current Non-current Current MNon-current
Payables
Goods and services — operating expenditure 966 - 1.114 -
Accrued expenses:

- Salaries and wages 323 - 366 -
Security bonds, deposits and retentions 206 - 176 =
Other 8 - 16 -
Prepaid rates 359 - 33 =
Total payables 1,862 - 2,003 =
Total payables 1,862 - 2,003 -

Accounting policy
Council measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities are
measured al amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Payables
Payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Council prior to the end of financial year that are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognilion.
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C3-2 Contract Liabilities

2023 2023 2022 2022
$°'000 Notes Current Non-current Current Non-current
Grants and contributions received in
advance:

Unexpended capital grants (to

construct Council controlled assets) I 2,547 - 1.948 -
Unexpended operating grants

(received prior lo performance

obligation being satisfied) (i) - - 5 -
Unexpended capital contributions (to

construct Council controlled assets) 155 - 104 -
Total grants received in

advance 2,702 - 2,057 -
Total contract liabilities 2,702 - 2,057 -
Notes

(i) Council has received funding lo conslruct assels including sporting facilities and other recreation infrastructure. The funds
received are under an enforceable contract which require Council lo conslruct an identified asset which will be under Council's
control on completion. The revenue is recognised as Council construcls lhe assel and the contract liability reflects the funding
received which cannol yel be recognised as revenue. The revenue is expecled lo be recognised in the next 12 months.

(ii) The contracl liability relates to granls received prior lo the revenue recognition crileria in AASB 15 being satisfied since
the performance obligalions are ongoing.

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period

£ 000 2023 2022
Grants and contributions received in advance:

Capital grants (to construct Council controlled assets) 860 1,477
Operaling grants (received prior lo performance obligalion being salisfied) 5 11

Total revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability
balance at the beginning of the period 865 1,488

Significant changes in contract liabilities
Council spent all grants previously held as liabilities, one contribution was not spent. There is a significant transfer to the
liability as at 30 June due to the number of Commonweallh and state funded programs currently being undertaken.

Accounting policy
Conlracl liabilities are recorded when consideration is received from a customer / fund provider prior lo Council transferring
a good or service to the customer, Council presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract liability.
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C3-3 Borrowings

2023 2023 2022 2022
£'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Loans — secured ' 147 1,757 144 1,904
Total borrowings 147 1,757 144 1,904

(1 Loans are secured over the general raling income of Council,
Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures, fair value disclosures and security can be found in Note E1-1.

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
2022 b, 2023

Opaning Closing
$ 000 Balance Cash flows Acquisition balance
Loans — secured 2,048 (144) - 1,904
Lease liability (Note C2-1b) - (5) 16 1
Total liabilities from financing activities 2,048 (149) 16 1,915
(b) Financing arrangements
$°'000 2023 2022
Total financing facilities available to Council at the reporting date are:
Bank overdrafl facililies ' 350 350
Credit cards/purchase cards 45 45
Total financing arrangements 395 3495
Financing facilities drawn down at the reporting date are:
- Credit cards/purchase cards 7 8
Total drawn financing arrangements 7 8

Undrawn financing facilities available to the Council at the reporting date are:

- Bank overdraft facilities 350 3s0
- Credit cards/purchase cards 38 37
Total undrawn financing arrangements 388 as7

("} The bank overdrafl facilily may be drawn al any lime and may be terminated by the bank without nolice.

Accounting policy
Council measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less lransaction cosls, subsequenlly financial liabilities are
measured al amortised coslt using the effeclive interest rate melhod.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as lransaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

Bomrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Posilion when lhe obligation specified in the conlract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between lhe camrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred lo ancther party and the consideralion paid, including any non-cash assels transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in olher income or borrowing cosls.
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C3-4 Employee benefit provisions

2023 2023 2022 2022
£'000 Current  Non-current Current Non-current
Annual leave 715 - 752 =
Long service leave 1,679 88 1.712 90
Rostered days off 49 - H4 -
Total employee benefit provisions 2,443 88 2,518 90

Current employee benefit provisions not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months

$'000 2023 2022

The following provisions, even though classified as current, are not expecled to be setlled
in the next 12 months.,

Provisions — employees benefils 1,434 1.631
1,434 1,631

Accounting policy

Employee benefit provisions are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if Council does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur and therefore all annual leave and vesled long service leave (or that which vests within 12
months) is presented as current.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries (including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expecled to be
wholly setlled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service) are recognised
in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounis expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liability for annual leave and accumulaling sick leave is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long-service leave and annual leave that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as lhe present value of expected fulure payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with tlerms to maturity and currency that malch, as closely as
possible, the eslimated fulure cash outflows.

On-costs
The employee benefit provisions include the aggregate on-cost liabilities that will arise when payment of current employee
benefits is made in future periods.

These amounts include superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation expenses which will be payable upon the future
payment of certain leave liabilities which employees are entitled to at the reporting period.

C3-5 Provisions

2023 2023 2022 2022
£'000 Current Non-Current Current Mon-Current
Asset remediation/restoration:

Assel remediation/restoration (future works) - 500 - 432
Sub-total - asset remediation/restoration = 500 - 432
Total provisions - 500 - 432
Movements in provisions
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C3-5 Provisions (continued)

Net
Asset carrying
$ 000 remediation amount
as at 30/06/23
At beginning of year 432 432
Unwinding of discount 17 17
Remeasurement effects 51 51
Total other provisions at end of year 500 500
as at 30/06/22
At beginning of year 467 467
Unwinding of discount 11 11
Remeasurement effects (46) (48)
Total ather provisions al end of year 432 432

Mature and purpose of provisions

Asset remediation
The asset remedialion provision represents the present value estimalte of future costs Council will incur to restore, rehabilitate
and reinstate the tip as a result of past operations.

Accounting policy
Provisions are recognised when Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to sefttle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outfiow with respect lo
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a borrowing cost.

Asset remediation — tips and quarries

Close-down and restoralion cosls include the dismantling and demolition of infrastruclure, and the removal of residual materials
and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimaled close-down and resloralion costs are provided for in the accounting period when
the obligalion arising from the related disturbance occurs, whelher this occurs during the development or during the operation
phase, based on the net present value of estimated future cosls. Provisions for close-down and restoration costs do not include
any additional obligations which are expecled to arise from fulure disturbance. The cosl eslimates are calculated annually
during the life of the operalion to reflect known developments, e.g. updaled cost eslimates and revisions to lhe estimalted lives
of operalions, and are subject to formal review al regular inlervals,

The ultimate cost of environmental remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response lo many factors, including
changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new resloration techniques, or experience al other locations.
The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in response to changes in quarry reserves or production
rates. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the provision for close down and restoration and environmental
clean-up, which would affect fulure financial results.

Olher movements in the provisions for close-down and resloration cosls, including those resulting from new disturbance,

updated cosl estimales, changes to the estimated lives of operalions, and revisions lo discount rates, are capitalised within
infrastructure, property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated over the lives of the assels to which they relate,
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C4 Reserves

C4-1 Nature and purpose of reserves

IPPE Revaluation reserve
The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE) revalualion reserve is used to record increments and decrements
in the revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.

D Council structure
D1 Results by fund

General fund refers to all Council activities other than water and sewer. All amounts disclosed in this note are gross i.e.
inclusive of internal charges and recoveries made between the funds. Assels and liabilities shown in the waler and sewer
columns are reslricted for use for these activilies.

D1-1 Income Statement by fund

General Water Sewer
£'000 2023 2023 2023
Income from continuing operations
Rales and annual charges 6,237 848 1.501
User charges and fees 2,320 1,361 173
Interest and investiment income 441 153 69
Other revenues 1,508 - -
Granis and contributions provided for operating purposes 14,187 - -
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 4 764 67 344
Met gains from disposal of assets 249 - -
Other income 217 - -
Total income from continuing operations 29,923 2429 2,087
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 7,692 528 339
Materials and services 6,768 1479 760
Borrowing costs 30 = 39
Deprecialion, amortisalion and impairment of non-financial assels 5,590 651 355
Other expenses 514 - -
Net losses from the disposal of assels - 271 -
Total expenses from continuing operations 20,594 2,929 1,493
Operating result from continuing operations 9,329 (500) 594
Net operating result for the year 9,329 (500) 594
Net operating result attributable to each council fund G329 (500) 504
Net operating result for the year before grants and
contributions provided for capital purposes 4,565 (567) 250
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D1-2 Statement of Financial Position by fund

General Water Sewer
%000 2023 2023 2023
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,585 89 42
Invesiments 23,787 6,155 2,621
Receivables 1,701 519 176
Inventories 447 - -
Conlracl assets and contract cost assets 877 24 323
Other 26 - -
Total current assets 30423 6.787 3.162
Non-current assets
Receivables - 127 -
Inventories 161 - -
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 214,101 23.951 17.686
Right of use assets 12 - -
Total non-current assets 214 274 24078 17,686
Total assets 244 697 30,865 20,848
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 1,738 124 =
Conlracl liabilities 2,702 - -
Lease liabilities 5 - -
Borrowings a0 - 93
Employee benefit provision 2,443 - -
Total current liabilities 6,978 124 93
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 6 - -
Borrowings 493 - 1,391
Employee benefit provision 88 - -
Provisions 500 = =
Total non-current liabilities 1,087 - 1,391
Total liabilities 8,065 124 1,484
Net assets 236,632 30,741 19,364
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 144 511 17,733 13.054
Revalualion reserves 92,121 13,008 6,310
Council equity interest 236,632 30,741 19,364
Total equity 236,632 30,741 19,364
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D1-3 Details of internal loans

(in accordance with s410(3) of the Local Government Act 1993)

Details of individual internal loans
Borrower (by purpose)
Lender (by purpose)

Date of Minister's approval
Date raised

Term years
Dates of maturity

Rate of interest (%)
Amount originally raised ($'000)

Details of individual internal loans

Borrower (by purpose)

Lender (by purpose)

Dale of Minister's approval
Date raised

Term years

Dales of maturity

Rate of interest (%)

Amount originally raised ($'000)

Council 1D/
Ref 278

Coaches Box

Water Fund

28/06/2017
30/06/2017

10
30/06/2027

2.87%
150

Council ID /
Ref 280

Asrodrome
Lighting
Water Fund

2810672017
30/06/2017

10
30/06/2027

2.87%
100

Council ID /
Ref 284

Barellan
Change
Room
Water Fund
261072017
30/06/2018
10
30/06/2028
2.87%

50

Marrandera Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2023

Council ID /
Ref 285

Festoon
Lighting
Waler Fund

26M10/2017
30/06/2018

10
30/06/2028

2.87%
60

Council 1D/
Ref 287

Lake Talbolt
Water Park

Waste Fund

3112/2020
15
3112/2035
2.87T%
1.450
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D2 Interests in other entities

D2-1 Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates not recognised

The following subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associales have not been recognised in this financial report.

2023 ' 2023 °
Name of entity/operation Principal activity/type of entity Net profit  Net assets
Western Riverina Library Provision of library services to member local government
Saervices areas 48 670

Reasons for non-recognition

Council holds 7.23% equily share in Weslern Riverina Library Service, and has assessed this as nol malerial, hence not
recognised. The informalion provided above is for 2022 as this is the latest information available at the time of Council
preparing the Financial Statements.

('} The dala represents the 2022 financial year for lhe Weslemn Riverina Library Services
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E Risks and accounting uncertainties

E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held
Council's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.
Council's objective is to maximise ils return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of liquidity and
preserving capital. The finance leam manages the cash and Investments portfolio with the assistance of independent advisors.
Council has an investmenl policy which complies with the s 625 of the Act and the Ministerial Investment Order. The policy
is regularly reviewed by Council and a monthly investment report is provided to Council setting out the make-up performance
of the portfolio as required by local government regulations.
Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign currency risk.
Financial risk management is carried oul by the finance team under policies approved by the Councillors.
The fair value of Council’s financial assets and financial liabilities approximates their carrying amount.
The risks associated with the financial instruments held are:

+ interesl rale risk - the risk lhat movements in interest rates could affect relums

+ liquidity risk — lthe risk that Council will nol be able to pay its debls as and when they fall due.

« credit risk - the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument, resulting in
a financial loss to the Council.

Council manages these risks by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing investmenls with high credit ratings or capital
guarantees.

(a) Market risk — interest rate risk

£ '000 2023 2022
The impact on result for the year and equity of a reasonably possible movement in the price

of investments held and interest rates is shown below. The reasonably possible movements

were determined based on historical movements and economic conditions in place at the

reporting date.

Impact of a 1% movement in interest rates

- Equity / Income Statement 357 292

(b)  Credit risk
Council's major receivables comprise rales, annual charges, user charges and fees.

Council manages the credil risk associated wilh these receivables by moniloring outstanding debt and employing siringent
debl recovery procedures.

The credit risk for liquid funds and other shor-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
repulable banks with high quality external credil ralings.

There are no significant concentralions of credit risk other than Council has significanl credit risk exposures in ils local area
given the nature of Council activilies.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly. The balances of receivables that remain within initial trade
terms (as detailed in the table) are considered to be of high credit quality.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of each class of receivable in the financial
statements.

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.
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E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held (continued)

Credit risk profile

Receivables - rates and annual charges

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land relating to the
debls - thal is, the land can be sold lo recover the debl. Council is also able to charge interest on overdue rates and annual
charges al higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

Not yet overdue rates and annual charges

$'000 overdue < 5 years 2 5 years Total
2023
Gross carrying amount - 625 2 646
2022
Gross carrying amount - 642 41 683

Receivables - non-rates and annual charges and contract assets

Council applies the simplified approach for non-rates and annual charges debtors and contract assets to provide for expected
credit losses, which permits the use of the lifelime expected loss provision at inception. To measure the expected credit losses,
non-rates and annual charges deblors and contract assels have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

The loss allowance provision is determined as follows. The expecled credil losses incorporale forward-looking information.

Not yet Overdue debts

$ 000 overdue 0 - 30 days 31 - 60 days 61 - 90 days > 91 days Total
2023

Gross carrying amount 2,686 - 36 51 - 2,973
Expected loss rate (%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 23.68% 0.00% 0.41%
ECL provision - - - 12 - 12
2022

Gross carmying amount 2,130 60 10 23 - 2,223
Expected loss rate (%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 23.68% 0.00% 0.25%
ECL provision - - = 5 - 5
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E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Payables, lease liabililies and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk; thal is, the risk thal insufficient funds may be on
hand to meel paymenl obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels, and by maintaining an adequate cash
buffer. Payment terms can be extended, and overdraft facilities drawn upon in extenuating circumstances.

Borrowings are also subject 1o inlerest rate risk: the risk thal movements in inlerest rates could adversely affect funding cosls.

The timing of cash flows presented in the table below to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement
dates. The timing of expected outflows is not expected to be materially different from contracted cashflows.

The amounts disclosed in the lable are the undiscounted contracled cash flows for non-lease liabilities (refer to Mote C2-1(b)
for lease liabilities) and therefore the balances in the table may not equal the balances in the Statement of Financial Position
due to the effect of discounting.

Weighted

average  Subject payable in: Actual

interest to no 1-5 Total cash carrying
%000 rate  maturity 51 Year Years S Years outflows values
2023
Payables 0.00% 206 1,589 - - 1,795 1,862
Borrowings 0.00% - 147 783 974 1,904 1,904
Total financial liabilities 206 1,736 T83 974 3,699 3,766
2022
Payables 0.00% 176 1,496 - - 1,672 2,003
Borrowings 2.01% - 144 606 1,298 2,048 2,048
Total financial liabilities 176 1.640 606 1,298 3,720 4,051
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E2-1 Fair value measurement

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:

- Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
- Financial assets and liabilities

Fair value hierarchy

All assels measured at fair value are assigned to a level in lhe fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the enlity can access at the

measurement dale

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for lhe asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly
Level 3: Uncbservable inputs for the asset or liability

The table below shows the assigned level for each asset and liability held at fair value by Council:

Fair value measurement hierarchy

Level 2 Significant Level 3 Significant

observable inputs unobservable inputs Total
$ ‘000 Matas 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets
Financial investments C1-2
Al fair value through profit
or loss — designated at fair
value on initial recognition - = 10 10 10 10
Total financial assets - - 10 10 10 10
Infrastructure, €17
property, plant and
equipment
Plant and equipment - - 3,552 3.761 3,552 3,761
Plant and equipment -
specialised - - 2,260 2,395 2,260 2,365
Office squipment = - 428 506 428 506
Fumiture and fittings - - 7 12 7 12
Operational land 3622 2,396 - - 3622 2,396
Community land - - 6,661 5.021 6,661 5.021
Land under roads (posl|
30/06/08) - - 66 25 66 25
Land Improvements —
non-depreciable = - 288 251 288 251
Land Improvements -
depreciable - - 236 21 236 21
Buildings - non-specialised - - 10,811 10,328 10,811 10,328
Buildings - specialised - - 9,044 B.805 9,044 8,805
Other structures - - 12,490 11,102 12,490 11,102
Roads, bridges, footpaths,
bulk garthworks - - 144,901 122,098 144,901 122,098
Stormwaler drainage - - T7.710 7T.283 7,710 T.283
Sewerage network - - 16,416 15,565 16,416 15,565
Water supply network - - 22,706 20,235 22,706 20,235
Library books - - 219 184 219 184
Swimming pools - - 3,004 3,036 3,094 3,038
Other open
space/recreational assels - - 1,024 B39 1,024 B39
Tip assels - = 442 406 442 406
Total infrastructure,
property, plant and
equipment 3,622 2,396 242,355 212,063 245977 214,459
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Valuation techniques

Where Council is unable to derive fair valuations using quoted markel prices of identical assels (ie. level 1 inputs) Council
instead ulilises a spread of both observable inputs (level 2 inpuls) and unobservable inpuls (level 3 inputs).

The fair valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising level 2 and level 3 inputs are as follows:

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE)

Plant & Equipment, Office Equipment, Furniture & Fittings, Land Improvements and Library Books

Flant & Equipment, Office Equipment, Furniture & Fittings, Land Improvements and Library Books are valued at cost but are
disclosed al fair value in the notes. The carrying amount of these assets is assumed to approximate fair value due to the nature
of the items. Examples of assets within these classes are as follows:

+ Plant & Equipmenl - Graders, trucks, rollers, lraclors and molor vehicles,

+ Dffice Equipment - Computer, photocopiers, tablels elc.

* Fumiture & Fillings - Chairs, desks, cupboards elc.

* Land Improvements - Formation of land.

+ Library Books - Books and audio visual,

Land improvement assets have been revalued internally as at 30 June 2021. An assessment has been undertaken on this
asset class redsulting in an indexation being applied for 30 June 2023.

There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.
Operational & Community Land

Community land was revalued as at 30 June 2022 inhouse using the Land Value provided by the Valuer-General where
available. Community land has been valued using level 3 valuation inputs.

Operational land was revalued as at 30 June 2023 by an external valuer, Auslralis Asset Advisory Group. Community land
has been valued using level 2 valuation inputs.

The valuation is the valuer's opinion of the Market Value of the property as at the date of inspection having regard 1o the supply
and demand condilions for this calegory of property.

Market value is defined as the eslimated amounl for which a property should exchange on the date of valualion between a
willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm's length transaction afler proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and withoul compulsion.

An assessment has been undertaken on communily land assets resulting in an indexation applied for 30 June 2023.
Buildings — Non-Specialised & Specialised

Mon-Specialised & Specialised Buildings are valued by an external valuer, AssetVal Pty Ltd and have been revalued as at
30 June 2021, The cost approach has been used whereby replacement cost was estimated for each asset. No Market based
evidence (Level 2) could be supported as such these assels were all classified as having been valued using level 3 valuation
inputs.

There has been no change lo the valuation process during the reporting period.

An assessment has been undertaken resulting in an indexation applied to Buildings non-specialised and Buildings specialised
for 30 June 2023,

Other Structures
Other Structures comprise of lighting, irrigation systems, fencing, shade structures etc.

The coslt approach has been used whereby replacement cosl was eslimated for each asset. Mo Markel based evidence (Level
2) could be supported as such lhese assels were all classified as having been valued using level 3 valuation inpuls.

Other Structures have been revalued by an external valuer AssetVal Pty Ltd as at 30 June 2021 and there has been no change
to the valuation process during the reporting period.

An assessment has been undertaken resulling in an indexation applied to Other Structures for 30 June 2023.
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Roads

Roads include bulk earthworks, carriageway, roadside shoulders & kerb & gutter. The cost approach using level 3 inputs
was used to value this assel class. A revaluation was undertaken as at 30 June 2020 in-house based on aclual costs and
assumptions from Council's Technical Services Department. No market based evidence (level 2) inputs are available therefore
Level 3 valuation inpuls were used for this asset class.

A revaluation increment was recorded for 2023 relating to the reversal of 21/22 impairment of road assets following storm and
flood events during the financial year,

There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

An assessment has been undertaken resulling in an indexation applied to Roads for 30 June 2023.

Bridges

Bridges were valued under the cosl approach using level 3 inputs. A revaluation was undertaken as at 30 June 2020 in-house
based on actual costs and assumptions from Council's Technical Services Department. Mo market based evidence (level 2)
inputs are available therefore Level 3 valuation inputs were used for this asset class.

There has been no change lo the valuation process during the reporting period.

An assessment has been undertaken resulling in an indexation applied to Bridges for 30 June 2023.

Footpaths

Footpaths were revalued in-house by Council's Technical Services Department as at 30 June 2020 and were based on actual
cost per square meter of works carried out during the year.

There has been no change lo the valuation process during the reporting period.

An assessment has been undertaken resulling in an indexalion applied to Roads for 30 June 2023.

Stormwater Drainage

Assets within this class comprise of pits and pipes.

The 'Cost Approach’ estimaled the replacement cost for each assel by componentising the assets inlo significant paris with
differenl useful lives and laking into account a range of faclors. While the unit rates based on linear melers of certain diameter
pipes and prices per pil or similar could be supported from market evidence (Level 2) other inpuls (such as residual value,
asset condition and useful life) required extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination

of fair value.

A revalualion was undertaken as al 30 June 2020 in-house by council technical services slaff and there has been no change
to the valuation process during the reporting period.

An assessment has been underiaken resulling in an indexalion applied to Stormwater drainage for 30 June 2023.

Water Supply Network

Assels wilhin this class comprise of bores, water treatmenl plant, reservoirs, pumping stalions and waler pipelines.

The ‘Cost Approach’ estimated the replacement cost for each asset by componentising the assets into significant parts with
different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors. While the unit rates based on linear meters of certain diameter
pipes and prices per pit or similar could be supported from market evidence (Level 2) other inputs (such as residual value, asset
condition and useful life) required extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair
value. These assets are indexed each year in line with the NSW Reference Rates Manual as published by the Office of Water.

The assels in this class of assels were subject to a validation process and then a revaluation of each component, and there
has been a subsequent upward movemenl in the Fair Value of these assels.

The assets in this class of assets were revalued by an external valuer AssetVal Pty Ltd as at 30 June 2022 and there has
been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Sewerage Network

Assets within this class comprise of treatment works, pumping slations and sewerage mains.
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

The '‘Cost Approach’ estimaled the replacement cost for each assel by componentising the assets inlo significant parts with
different useful lives and laking into account a range of faclors. While the unit rates based on linear meters of certain diameter
pipes and prices per pit or similar could be supporled from market evidence (Level 2) other inputs (such as residual value, assel
condilion and useful life) required extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair
value. These assels are indexed each year in line with the NSW Reference Rates Manual as published by the Office of Water.

The assets in this class of assels were subject to a validation process and then a revaluation of each component, and there
has been a subsequent upward movement in the Fair Value of these assets.

The assets in this class of assels were revalued by an external valuer AsselVal Ply Lid as at 30 June 2022 and there has
been no change to the valualion process during the reporling period.

Swimming Pools

Swimming pools were valued using the cost approach. Mo Market based evidence (Level 2) could be supported as such these
assets were all classified as having been valued using level 3 valuation inputs.

Swimming Pools have been revalued by an external valuer, AsselVal Pty Lid as at 30 June 2021 and there has been no
change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

An assessment has been undertaken resulling in an indexation applied to Swimming pool assets for 30 June 2023.

Other Open Space/Recreational Assets

Assets wilthin this class comprise of BBQ's and outdoor play equipment.

Other Open Space/Recreational Assets were valued using the cost approach. No Market based evidence (Level 2) could be

supported as such these assels were all classified as having been valued using level 3 valuation inputs.

Open Space and Recreation Assets have been revalued by an external valuer, AssetVal Pty Lid as at 30 June 2021 and there
has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

An assessment has been undertaken resulting in an indexation applied to Olher open spacefrecrealional assels for 30 June
2023.
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

Significant unobservable valuation inputs used (for level 3 asset classes) and their relationship to fair value.

The following table summarises the quantitalive information relaling to the significant unobservable inputs used in deriving

the various level 3 assel class fair values.

Fair value

(30/6/23)

%'000 2023
Financial assets

Unlisted equity securities 10

Total financial assets 10

Valuation technigue/s

Level 3
Valued at cost

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Plant and Equipment 5812
Office Equipment 428
Furniture and Fittings 7
Operational Land 3622
Community Land, Land 6,727
under roads (post

30/06/08)

Land Improvements- 288
MNon-dep

Land Improvements - 236
depreciable

Buildings & other 32,345
Structures

Roads, bridges, footpaths, 144,901
bulk earthworks

Stormwater Drainage 7.710
Water Supply Network 22,706
Sewerage Network 16,416
Swimming Pools 3,094
Open Space and 1,024
Recreational

Library Books 219

Highest and best use

Level 3
Valued at cost

Level 3
Valued at cost

Level 3
Valued at cost

Level 2

External valualion using cost appreach
Level 3

Based on Valuer-General valuation

Level 3
Valued at cost

Level 3
Valued al cost

Level 3
External valualion using cost approach

Level 3
Internal valuation using cost approach

Level 3
Internal valuation using cost approach

Level 3
External valuation using cost approach

Level 3
External valualion using cost approach

Level 3
External valuation using cost approach

Level 3
External valualion using cost approach

Level 3
Valued at cost

Unobservable inputs

* Gross replacement cost

* Remaining useful life

+ Residual value

* Gross replacement cost

* Remaining useful life

* Residual value

* Gross replacement cost

* Remaining useful life

* Residual value

« Land value (price per square melre)

» Land value (price per square metre)

* Gross replacement cost
* Remaining useful life

* Gross replacement cost
* Remaining useful life

* Gross replacement cost
« Assel condition

+ Remaining useful life

* Residual value

* Gross replacement cost
+ Asset condition

+ Remaining useful life

* Gross replacement cosl
+ Asset condition

» Remaining useful life

* Gross replacement cost
« Asset condition

+ Remaining useful life

+ Gross replacement cost
+ Assel condition

* Remaining useful life

* Gross replacement cost
« Asset condition

+ Remaining useful life

» Gross replacement cost
* Assel condition

* Remaining useful life

+ Gross replacement cost
* Asset condition

* Remaining useful life

* Residual value

All of Council's non-financial assels are considered as being utilised for their highest and besl use.
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E3-1 Contingencies
The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but their knowledge
and disclosure is considered relevant to the users of Council's financial report.
LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

1. Guarantees

(i) Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans

Council is parly to an Industry Defined Benefil Plan under the Local Government Superannualion Scheme, named The Local
Government! Superannualion Scheme - Pool B (the Scheme) which is a defined benefit plan that has been deemed to be a
‘multi-employer fund’ for purposes of AASB 119 Employee Benefils for the following reasons:

= Assets are nol segregaled within the sub-group according to the employees of each sponsoring employer.

— The contribution rates have been the same for all sponsoring employers. That is, contribution rates have not varied for each
sponsoring employer according to the experience relating to the employees of that spensering employer.

- Benefits for employees of all sponsoring employers are determined according to the same formula and without regard lo
the sponsoring employer.

- The same actuarial assumptions are currently used in respect of the employees of each sponsoring employer.

Given the factors above, each sponsoring employer is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers, and hence shares in the associated gains and losses (to the extent that they are
not borne by members).

Description of the funding arrangements.

Pooled Employers are required to pay future service employer contributions and past service employer contributions to the
Fund.

The future service employer contributions were determined using the new entrant rate method under which a contribution rate
sufficient to fund the tolal benefils over the working life-time of a typical new entrant is calculated. The current fulure service

employer contribution rates are::

Division B 1.9 limes member contribulions for non-180 Point Members:;
Nil for 180 Point Members"

Division C 2.5% salaries|

Division D 1.64 times member contributions|

* For 180 Point Members, Employers are required to contribute 8.0% of salaries for the year ending 30 June 2023 (increasing
to 8.5% in line with the increase in the Superannuation Guarantee) lo these members’ accumulation accounts, which are paid
in addilion to members' defined benefils.

The past service contribution for each Pooled Employer is a share of the lotal past service contributions of $20.0 million per
annum for 1 January 2022 lo 31 December 2024, apporlioned according to each employer's share of the accrued liabilities as
al 30 June 2022. These pasl service contribulions are used lo maintain the adequacy of the funding position for the accrued
liabililies.

The adequacy of confribulions is assessed al each triennial actuarial invesligation and monitored annually between triennials.

Description of the extent to which Council can be liable to the plan for other Council’s obligations under the terms and conditions
of the mutti-employer plan

As stated above, each sponsoring employer (Council) is exposed to the acluarial risks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers and hence shares in the associated gains and losses.

However, there is no relief under the Fund's trust deed for employers to walk away from their defined benefit obligations.
Under limited circumstances, an employer may withdraw from the plan when there are no active members, on full payment
of outstanding additional contributions. There is no provision for allocation of any surplus which may be present at the date
of withdrawal of the Council.

There are no specific provisions under the Fund's trust deed dealing with deficits or surplus on wind-up.

There is no provision for allocation of any surplus which may be present at the dale of withdrawal of an employer.
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E3-1 Contingencies (continued)

The amount of Council employer contributions to the defined benefit section of the Local Government Superannuation Scheme
and recognised as an expense for the year ending 30 June 2023 was $ 78,673.37. The lasl valuation of the Scheme was
performed by fund actuary, Richard Boyfield, FIAA as at 30 June 2022.

The amount of additional contributions included in the total employer conlribution advised above is $45,430, Council's expected
contribution to the plan for the nexl annual reporting period is $70,848.72.

The estimated employer reserves financial position for the Pooled Employers at 30 June 2023 is:

[Employer reserves only * $millions Asset Coverage
Assels 2.290.9

Past Service Liabilities 2,236.1 102.4%
\Vested Benefils 2,253.6 101.7%

* excluding member accounts and reserves in both assels and liabililies.

The share of any funding surplus or deficit that can be atiributed to Council is .17%

Council's share of thal deficiency cannot be accuralely calculaled as the Scheme is a mulual arrangement where assels and
liabilities are pooled together for all member councils. For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has been recognised in
Council's accounts. Council has a possible obligation that may arise should the Scheme require immediate payment lo correct
lhe deficiency.

The key economic long term assumptions used to calculate the present value of accrued benefits are:

nvestiment relum 6.0% per annum
[Salary inflation * 3.5% per annum
6.0% for FY 22/23
and 2.5% per annum thereafetr

ncrease in CPI

* Plus promaotional increases

The contribution requirements may vary from the current rates if the overall sub-group experience is not in line with the actuarial
assumplions in determining the funding program; however, any adjustment to the funding program would be the same for all
sponsoring employers in the Pooled Employers group.

Please note that the estimaled employer reserves financial position above is a prelimnary calculation, and once all the relevant
information has been received by the Funds Actuary, the final end of year review, which will be a triennial actuarial investigation
will be completed by December 2023

(i) Statewide Limited

Council is a member of Statewide Mulual, a mutual pool scheme providing liability insurance to local government.
Membership includes the potential to share in either lhe net assets or liabilities of the fund depending on its past performance.
Council's share of the net assels or liabilities reflects Council's contributions to the pool and the result of insurance claims

within each of the fund years.

The future realisation and finalisation of claims incurred but not reported to 30 June this year may result in future liabilities or
benefits as a result of past events that Council will be required 1o fund or share in respectively.

(iii) StateCover Limited
Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited and holds a partly paid share in the enlity.

StateCover is a company providing workers compensation insurance cover to the NSW local government industry and
specifically Council.

Council has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in the event of the erosion of the company’s capilal base as a
result of the company’s past performance and/or claims experience or as a result of any increased prudential requirements
from APRA.

These future equity contribulions would be required to mainlain the company’s minimum lavel of net assels in accordance
wilh its licence requirements.
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E3-1 Contingencies (continued)

(iv) Other guarantees

Council has provided no other guarantees other than those listed above.
2. Other liabilities

(i) Third party claims

The Council is involved from lime to time in various claims incidental to the ordinary course of business including claims for
damages relating to its services.

Council believes thal it is appropriately covered for all claims through its insurance coverage and does nol expect any material
liabililies to eventuate.

(ii) Quarries

Council operates a number gravel quarries and will have o rehabilitale the sites at some time in the fulure. As at 30 June 2023
Council is unable to reliably estimate the financial cost of such work,

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED
(i) Land under roads

As permilted under AASB 1051, Council has elected not lo bring to account land under roads that it owned or conlrolled up
to and including 30/6/08.

(ii) Infringement notices/fines

Fines and penalty income, the result of Council issuing infringement notices is followed up and collected by the Infringement
Processing Bureau.

Council's revenue recognition policy for such income is to account for it as revenue on receipt.
Accordingly, at year end, there is a polential asset due to Council representing issued bul unpaid infringement nolices.

Due to the limited information available on the status, value and duration of outstanding notices, Council is unable to determine
the value of oulstanding income.
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F1  Related party disclosures

F1-1 Key management personnel (KMP)

Narrandera Shire Council | NMoles o the Financial Stalements 30 June 2023

Key management personnel (KMP) of the council are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the aclivities of the council, directly or

indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

$'000 2023 2022
Compensation:

Short-term benefits 842 802
Post-employment benefits 67 55
Other long-term benefils 27 22
Total 936 879

Other transactions with KMP and their related parties

Nature of the transaction
§ ‘000

2023
Employee expenses relating to close family members of KMP

Related Parties, which are Suppliers of Council, supplying goods and
sorvices, such as printing services.

2022
Employee expenses relating to close family members of KMP

Related Parties, which are Suppliers of Council, supplying goods and
services, such as printing services.

Transactions
during the year

36T

74

Outstanding
balances
including

commitments

Terms and conditions

Council staff award

Contracts, purchase orders or tenders

Council slaff award

Contracts, purchase orders or tenders

Impairment

provision en
outstanding Impairment
balances expense
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F1-2 Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses
£ 000 2023 2022

The aggregate amount of Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses
included in materials and services expenses in the Income Slatement are:

Mayoral fee 28 25
Councillors’ fees 103 93
Other Councillors’ expenses (including Mayor) 50 27
Total 181 145

F2  Other relationships
F2-1 Audit fees
£ 000 2023 2022

During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by the auditor
of Council, related practices and non-related audit firms

Auditors of the Council - NSW Auditor-General:

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Audit and review of financial statements 54 52
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 54 52
Total Auditor-General remuneration 54 52
MNon NSW Auditor-General audit firms

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Internal Audit 33 a7
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 33 37
Total audit fees 87 89
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G Other matters

G1-1 Statement of Cash Flows information

Reconciliation of net operating result to cash provided from operating activities

£'000 2023 2022
Net operating result from Income Statement 9,423 7,161
Add / (less) non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation 6,297 5,937
(Gain) / loss on disposal of assels 22 {363)
Mon-cash capital grants and contributions (46) (527)
- Revaluation decrements / impairments of IPPAE direct to P&L 299 43
Unwinding of discount rales on reinstalement provisions 17 1

Movements in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:

(Increase) / decrease of receivables (60) 439
(Increase) / decrease of inventories (43) 7
(Increase) / decrease of other current assets (26) 24
(Increase) / decrease of contracl assel (580) (393)
Increase / (decrease) in payables (148) {311)
Increase / (decrease) in other accrued expenses payable (43) 11
Increase [ (decrease) in other liabilities 50 (34)
Increase / (decrease) in contract liabilities 645 460
Increase / (decrease) in employee benefil provision (77) (61)
Increase / (decrease) in other provisions 51 421
Net cash flows from operating activities 15,781 12,995

" 2020/21 Balance Restaled
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G2-1 Commitments

Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

$'000 2023 2022
Capilal expenditure commilted for at the reporting dale but not

recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings 1,093 2,585
Recreation 302 172
Road infrastructure - 125
Total commitments 1,395 2,882
These expenditures are payable as follows:

Within the next year 1,395 2,882
Total payable 1,395 2,882
Sources for funding of capital commitments:

Future grants and contributions 857 2,359
Unexpended grants 72 302
Unexpended Contributions - -
Externally reslricted reserves 373 -
Internally restricted reserves 93 221
Total sources of funding 1,395 2,882

Details of capital commitments
= Lake Talbot Skywalk $101,350
Landervale Fire Station $601,014
Solar Panels $466,050
Lake Talbo! Pedestrian Deck $154,541
Henry Mathieson Oval Off leash dog area $46,350
Barellan Sportsground Speclator Pavillion $26.,200

G3-1 Events occurring after the reporting date

Council is unaware of any material or significant ‘non-adjusting events’ that should be disclosed.
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G4  Statement of developer contributions as at 30 June 2023

G4-1 Summary of developer contributions

Curulative
Contributicns recelvad during the year Intereat and Held a3 balsnce of internal
balance &t Cash Land MHon-caih ifvastment Ameunts Internal trictod [~ ARG
§ 000 1 Judy 2027 Other income sarmed expanded barrowings annet st 30 Jung 3023 {tejfrom
Roads 85 - - - 2 - - 57 -
57.11 contributions - under a
plan &5 - = = 2 = = 57 -
$7.12 levies - under a plan 161 55 - - 5 {10) - 211 -
Taolal 57.11 and S$7.12 revenus
under plans 216 55 - - 7T (10) - 268 -
ST .4 planning agreemants 251 - - - [ - - 257 -
SE4 contributions 249 55 = = 7 - - M -
Total contribulions 716 110 - - 20 (10) - 836 -

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, Council has significant obligations to provide Section 7.11 (contributions towands provision or improvemant of amenities o services) infrastructure in new release areas. It is
possible that the funds contributed may be less than the cost of this infrastructure, requiring Council lo borrow or use general revenue lo fund the difference.

G4-2 Developer contributions by plan

Curmislative

Opaning Contributions recelved during the yoar Interest and Held an balance of internal

balance ot Cash Hon-cash Land Mon-cath investment Ameunts Internal rastricted berrowings

§ ‘000 A Jusby 2022 Other Income eamed oxpended borowings anset 8l 30 June 2033 [to}from
CONTRIBUTION PLAN - Pine Hill

Roads 55 2 - 57 -

Total 55 - - - 2 - - 57 -
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G5  Statement of performance measures

G5-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated results

Amounts
£°000 2023

1. Operating performance ratio

Total continuing operating revenue

excluding capital grants and

contributions less operaling

expenses '? 4,576

Total continuing operating revenue 29,010
excluding capital grants and
contributions '

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Tolal continuing operating revenue

excluding all grants and

contributions ' 14,823

Total continuing operaling revenue 34,185

3. Unrestricted current ratio

Current assets less all external
restrictions 19,322

Current liabilities less specific 2,962
purpose liabilities

4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result before capital
excluding interest and
depreciationfimpairment/amortisatio

n 10,937
Principal repayments (Statement of 213
Cash Flows) plus borrowing costs

(Income Statement)

5. Rates and annual charges

outstanding percentage

Rates and annual charges

outstanding 707
Rates and annual charges 9,407
collectable

6. Cash expense cover ratio

Current year's cash and cash

equivalents plus all term deposits 36,269
Meonthly payments from cash flow 1,686

of operaling and financing activilies

MNarrandera Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2023

Indicator

2023

15.77%

43.36%

6.52x

51.35x

7.52%

21.51

months

2022

0.28%

46.51%

5.99x

44 41x

7.73%

18.40
months

Indicators
2021

5.42%

44.46%

5.03x

215.52x

9.25%

19.67
months

2020

8.65%

56.70%

6.07x

0.00x

8.28%

20.77
months

Benchmark

> 0.00%

> 60.00%

> 1.50x

> 2.00x

< 10.00%

> 3.00
months

1 Excludes fair value increments on investment properties, reversal of revaluation decremenis, reversal of impairment losses on
receivables, nel gain on sale of assels and nel share of inlerasts in joint ventures and associates using the equity melhod and includes

pensioner rate subsidies

(2 Excludes impairment/revaluation decraments of IPPE, fair value decrements on investment properties, net loss on disposal of assels
and net loss on gshare of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity mathod
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G5-2 Statement of performance measures by fund

General Indicators * Water Indicators Sewer Indicators Benchmark
$°000 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

1. Operating performance ratio

Total continuing operaling revenue excluding capital grants and contributions less

operaling expenses " * 18.93%  1.50% (13.09)% (19.09)% 13.75%  8.70% > 0.00%
Total continuing operaling revenue excluding capital grants and contribulions '

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Tolal continuing operaling revenue excluding capital granls and contribulions '
Total continuing operating revenue °

35.77% 39.59% 95.93% 99.19% 82.94% 8791% > 60.00%

3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions
Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities

6.52x 5.99x 54.73x  53.09x 34.00x  30.42x > 1.50x

4, Debt service cover ratio

Operaling resull before capital excluding inleresl and
depreciationimpairment/amortisation '

Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) plus borrowing cosls (Income
Statement)

59.98x  50.23x o 0 16.51x 7.29x > 2.00x

5. Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage
Rates and annual charges outstanding

L} L] a, a,
Rales and annual charges colleciable 6.91% 7.34% 10.15%  8.30% 8.52% 9.05% < 10.00%

6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year's cash and cash equivalents plus all term deposits 19.07 15.27 41.63 4242 26.32 24.09 > 3.00
Monthly paymenls from cash flow of operaling and financing aclivilies months  months months months months  months months

(1) - {2) Refar 1o Notes &l Nole G4-1 above
{3) General fund refers to all of Councils acthvities except for its water and sewer acthities which are listed separately.
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End of the audited financial statements
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H Additional Council disclosures (unaudited)

H1-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

1. Operating performance ratio

20

15.77

Purpose of operating
performance ratio

Commentary on 2022/23 result

15 2022/23 ratic  15.77%

&

2

3 10 ges

542 n::'l:m mu:;n Council's Council's operating performance has been impacied
5 opsraling leﬂd:ﬂ:umll "F, by the receipt of significant operating grants thal
operating r remain unspent al balance day.
0.28
2020 2021 2022 2023
Benchmark: — > 0.00% Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

2. Own source operating revenue ratio

I Ratio is cutside benchmark

]
10

2020 2021 2022

5679
. 50 44,46 46,51 4336
£ 40
: 30
0
10
0

2023

Purpose of own source
operaling revenue ratio

This ratio maeasures fiscal
Baxibility. It is the degres of
relianca on extemal funding

sources such as operating grants
and contrittions.

Commentary on 2022/23 result

2022/23 ratio  43.36%

Cram source revenue has again boen impacted by
additional grant funding for Local Roads and
Community Infrastructure (Covid- 19 economic
stimulus), Fixing Country Bridges, Regional and
Local Roads program, Pothole grant and the
Financial Assistance Granl 100% prepaid.

Benchmark: — > 60.00%

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

3. Unrestricted current ratio

Ratio achieves benchmark

B Ratio is cutside benchmark

Commentary on 2022/23 result

6.52 Purpose of unrestricted
6.07 5.99 i
6 cusrent ratio 2022/23 ratio  6.52x
5.03
®x
g 4
To assess the adequacy of
working capital and its ablity 1o Council's rabio remaing well above the benchmark
2 salisly obligations in the short with more than adequate funds to salisly its shon
— = | | term lor the unrestricted activiies lerm obligations,
of Council,
2020 2021 2022 2023
Benchmark: — > 1.50x Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

ronbiniied an nevl nane

Il Ratio is outside benchmark
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Narrandera Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2023

H1-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs) (continued)

4. Debt service cover ratio

300
) Commentary on 2022/23 result
. Purpose of debt service
21552 cover ratio
200
gm
100 This ratic measures the Council currently has two extemal loans with the
availability of cperaling cash to uplake of the Barellan sewer loan in 2022 and Lake
84.41 51.35 sérvice debt ncluding ntensst, Talbot pool in 2021, Intemal loans exist from the
50 principal and lease payments. Water furd 1o the General fund $164,000
000 il
2020 2021 2022 2023
Benchmark: — > 2.00x [ Ralio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

5. Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage

I Ratio is outside benchmark

125
Purpose of rates and Commentary on 2022/23 result
10 annual charges
.49 .
8.28 outstanding percentage
.73 1.52
z 78
i,
To assess the impact of ates have
5 muncmmin:wl considerably and are at a satisfactory level having
the adequacy of recovery efforts. b achieved through a lair debl recovery program.
0
2020 2021 2022 2023

Benchmark: —

< 10.00%

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

6. Cash expense cover ratio

[ Ratio achieves benchmark
B Ratio is cutside benchmark

0
Commentary on 2022/23 result
- Purpose of cash
7151 expense cover ratio
.77 19.67
E 0 18.40
Es
im This biquidity ratio indiciles the
number of months a Coundil can Council has more than adeguale cash lo meel
continue paying for its immadiate ongoing expenses for over 21 months withoul
5 oxpenses without ndditicnal cash requiring additional cash inflows.
inflcner.
0
2020 2021 2022 2023
Benchmark: — > 3.00months [ Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

Bl Ratio is outside benchmark
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H1-2 Council information and contact details

Principal place of business:
141 East Street
Narrandera NSW 2700

Contact details

Mailing Address: Opening hours:
141 Easl Street Office Hours
MNarrandera NSW 2700 Monday to Friday
9.00am - 4:30pm
Telephone: 02 6959 5510 Internet: www narrandera.nsw,.gov.au

Email: gcouncil@narrandera.nsw.gov.ay

Officers Elected members
General Manager Mayor
Mr George Cowan Cr Neville Kschenka
Responsible Accounting Officer Councillors
Mr Martin Hiscox Cr Cameron Lander
Cr Jenny Clarke
Public Officer Cr Tracey Lewis
Mr Martin Hiscox Cr Kevin Morris
Cr Peter Dawson
Auditors Cr Narelle Payne
NSW Audit Office Cr Braden Lyons
Level 19 Cr Sue Ruffles

Darling Park Tower 2
201 Sussex Street
Sydney NSW 2000

GPO Box 12
Sydney NSW 2001

Other information
ABN: 96 547 765 569
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Narrandera Shire Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Independent Auditor's Reports:

On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [2])

Independent Auditor's Report
Please uplift Council's Audit Report PDF (opinion) for inclusion in the GPFS report (via the Home screen),
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Narrandera Shire Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Independent Auditor's Reports: (continued)

On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [3])

Independent Auditor's Report
Please uplift Council's Audit Report PDF (commentary) for inclusion in the GPFS report (via the Home screen).
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Narrandera Shire Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Contents Page

Statement by Councillors and Management 3
Special Purpose Financial Statements:

Income Statement of water supply business activity
Income Statement of sewerage business activity

Statement of Financial Position of water supply business activity
Statement of Financial Position of sewerage business activity

o ~No Ooha

Note - Significant Accounting Policies

Auditor's Report on Special Purpose Financial Statements 11

Background

i. These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for lhe use by both Council and the Office of Local
Government in fulfilling their requirements under MNational Competition Policy.

ii. The principle of compelitive neutrality is based on the concepl of a level playing field’ between persons/entilies competing
in a market place, particularly between privale and public seclor competitors,

Essenlially, the principle is that government businesses, whether Commonweallh, stale or local, should operate without
net competilive advantages over other businesses as a resull of their public ownership.

iii. For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality and public reporting applies only to declared business aclivilies,

These include (a) those aclivilies classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business aclivilies being waler
supply, sewerage services, abatloirs, gas production and reticulation, and (b) those aclivilies with a lurmnover of more
than $2 million that Council has formally declared as a business activity (defined as Calegory 1 aclivilies).

iv. In preparing these financial slatements for Council's sell-classified Calegory 1 businesses and ABS-defined aclivilies,
councils must (a) adopt a corporatisalion model and (b) apply full cost attribulion including tax-equivalent regime
payments and debt guaranlee fees (where the business benefils from Council's borrowing posilion by comparison with
commercial rales).
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Narrandera Shire Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to the Local Government Code of
Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

+  NSW Government Policy Stalement ‘Application of National Competition Policy to Local Government’,

+ Division of Local Government Guidelines ‘Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide lo Compelitive
Neutrality’,

« The Local Government Code of Accounting Praclice and Financial Reporting,

« Seclions 3 and 4 of the NSW Department of Planning and Environment, Water's Regufatory and assurance framework
for local water ufilities.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
+ present fairly the operating result and financial posilion for each of Council's declared business activities for the year, and
+ accord with Council's accounting and other records.
« present overhead reallocation charges to the water and sewerage businesses as fair and reasonable.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 15 August 2023.

Mr Neville Kschenka Mr Cameron Lander

Mayor Councillor

15 August 2023 15 August 2023

Mr George Cowan Mr Martin Hiscox

General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
15 August 2023 15 August 2023

Mr Shane Wilson
Deputy General Manager Infrastructure
15 August 2023
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Narrandera Shire Council

Income Statement of water supply business activity
for the year ended 30 June 2023

£'000 2023 2022
Income from continuing operations

Access charges 848 792
User charges 1,354 1.067
Fees 7 n
Interest and investment income 153 51
Total income from continuing operations 2,362 1,941

Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits and on-costs 528 452
Materials and services 1,479 1,348
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 651 515
Net loss from the disposal of assets 2mM 18
Total expenses from r.-.untinuing nparations 2.929 2.333
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts (567) {392)
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 67 16
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts (500) (376)
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax (500) (376)
Surplus (deficit) after tax (500) (376)
Plus accumulated surplus 18,233 18.609
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:

Closing accumulated surplus 17,733 18,233
Return on capital % (2.4)% (1.7)%
Subsidy from Council 1,530 1,224

Calculation of dividend payable:

Surplus (deficit) after tax {500) {376)
Less: capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions) (67) (16)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes - -

Potential dividend calculated from surplus - -
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Narrandera Shire Council

Income Statement of sewerage business activity
for the year ended 30 June 2023

£°'000 2023 2022
Income from continuing operations

Access charges 1,501 1.459
User charges 173 164
Interest and investment income 69 20
Total income from continuing operations 1,743 1,643

Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits and on-costs 339 37T
Borrowing costs 39 20
Materials and services 760 792
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 355 3N
Total expenses from continuing operations 1,493 1,500
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 250 143
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 344 226
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 594 369
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 594 369
Less: corporale laxation equivalent (25%) [based on resull before capital] (63) (36)
Surplus (deficit) after tax 531 333
Plus accumulated surplus 12,460 12,091
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:

- Corporate taxation equivalent 63 36
Closing accumulated surplus 13,054 12,460
Return on capital % 1.6% 1.0%
Subsidy from Council 422 436
Calculation of dividend payable:

Surplus (deficit) after tax 532 333
Less: capital grants and contribulions (excluding developer contributions) (344) (228)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 188 107
Potential dividend caleulated from surplus 94 54

Pana & ~f 11

Item 24.6- Attachment 2 Page 169 of 183



Ordinary Council Meeting Attachments 15 August 2023

Narrandera Shire Council | Staterment of Financial Position of water supply business activity | for the year ended 30 June 2023
Narrandera Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position of water supply business activity
as at 30 June 2023

£°'000 2023 2022
ASSETS

Current assets

Conlracl assels and conlracl cosl assels 24 -
Cash and cash equivalents 89 313
Investments 6,155 6,050
Receivables 519 326
Total current assets 6,787 6,689
Noen-current assets

Receivables 127 165
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 23,951 22,739
Total non-current assets 24,078 22,904
Total assets 30,865 29,593
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables 124 126
Total current liabilities 124 126
Total liabilities 124 126
Net assets 30,741 29,467
EQUITY

Accumulaled surplus 17,733 18,233
Revalualion reserves 13,008 11,234
Total equity 30,741 29,467
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Narrandera Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position of sewerage business activity

as at 30 June 2023
£'000

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Receivables

Confracl assets and conlract cost assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Total non-current assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Borrowings

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus
Revaluation reserves

Total equity

2023 2022

42 137

2,621 2,300
176 201

323 130
3,162 2,768
17,686 16,365
17,686 16,365
20,848 19,133
93 91

93 91

1,391 1,484
1,391 1,484
1,484 1,575
19,364 17,558
13,054 12,460
6,310 5,098
19,364 17,558
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Note — Significant Accounting Policies

A statement summarising the supplemental accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the special purpose financial
statements (SPFS) for National Competition Policy (NCP) reporting purposes follows.

These financial statements are SPFS prepared for use by Council and the Office of Local Government. For the purposes of
these statements, the Council is a non-reporting not-for-profit entity.

The figures presented in these special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition
and measurement criteria of relevant Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and Australian Accounting Inlerpretalions.

The disclosures in these special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Governmenti
Act 1993 (Act), the Local Government! (General) Regulation 2021 (Regulation) and the Local Government Code of Accounting
Practice and Financial Reporting.

The statements are prepared on an accruals basis. They are based on historic costs and do not take into account changing
money values or, except where specifically stated, fair value of non-current assets. Certain taxes and other costs, appropriately
described, have been imputed for the purposes of the Mational Competition Policy.

The Statement of Financial Posilion includes notional asselsfliabilities receivable from/payable lo Council's general fund. These
balances reflect a notional intra-entity funding arrangement with the declared business activilies.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive neutrality’ in its business activities as part of the National Competition Policy
which is being applied throughout Australia at all levels of government. The framework for its application is set out in the June
1996 NSW Government Policy statement titled 'Application of Mational Compelition Policy lo Local Government'. The Pricing

and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide fo Compelitive Neutralily issued by the Office of Local Government in July
1997 has also been adopted.

The pricing and costing guidelines outline the process for identifying and allocating costs to aclivities and provide a standard
for disclosure requirements. These disclosures are reflected in Council’s pricing and/or financial reporting systems and include
taxation equivalents, Council subsidies, and returns on invesiments (rate of return and dividends paid).

Declared business activities

In accordance with Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive Neutrality, Council has declared that
the following are to be considered as business activities:

Category 1
fwhire gross operating henover I3 over $2 milion)

a. Narrandera Council Water Supply
Council's water supply activities servicing the town of Narrandera, and which is established as a Special Rate Fund of Council.

Category 2
whers gross operating fumover is Jess than §2 milion)

a. Narrandera Sewerage Service

Council's sewerage reliculalion & lrealment activities servicing the lown of Marrandera, and which is established as a Special
Rate Fund of Council.

Taxation equivalent charges

Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as a cost of operations just
like all other costs. However, where Council does not pay some taxes, which are generally paid by private sector businesses,
such as income tax, these equivalent tax payments have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities and are
reflected in special purpose finanncial statements. For the purposes of disclosing comparative information relevant lo the
private sector equivalent, the following taxation equivalents have been applied to all Council-nominaled business aclivities
(this does not include Council's non-business activities):

Notional rate applied (%)

Corporate income lax rate — 25% (21/22 25%)
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Narrandera Shire Council | Special Purpose Financial Staternenls 2023
Note — Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Land lax — the first $822,000 of combined land values attracls 0%. For the combined land values in excess of $822,000 up
lo $5,026,000 the rate is $100 + 1.6%. For the remaining combined land value thal exceeds $5.026.000 a premium marginal
rate of $79,396 + 2.0% applies.
Payroll {ax - 5.45% on the value of taxable salaries and wages in excess of $1,200,000.

In accordance with section 4 of Departmenl of Planning and Envirenment (DPE) — Water's regulatory and assurance
framework, a payment for the amounl calculated as lhe annual lax equivalenl charges (excluding income tax) must be paid
from water supply and sewerage business activities,

The payment of taxation equivalent charges, referred to in the regulatory or assurance framework as a ‘dividend for tax
equivalent’, may be applied for any purpose allowed under the Act.

Achievement of substantial compliance to sections 3 and 4 of DPE - Water's regulatory and assurance framework is not a
prerequisite for the payment of the tax equivalent charges; however the payment must not exceed $3 per assessment.

Income tax

An income tax equivalent has been applied on the profils of the business activities. Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for
the purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs to be taken into account in terms of assessing the rate of return required on
capital invested. Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a pre-tax level = gain/(loss) from ordinary activities before
capital amounts, as would be applied by a private seclor competitor. That is, it should include a provision equivalent to the
corporate income tax rate, currently 25% (21/22 25%).

Income tax is only applied where a gain from ordinary activities before capital amounts has been achieved. Since the taxation
equivalent is notional — that is, it is payable to the ‘Council’ as the owner of business operations — it represents an internal
payment and has no effect on the operations of the Council.

Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of internal charges in the SPFS. The rate applied of 25% is the equivalent company
lax rate prevalent al reporting date. No adjustments have been made for variations that have occurred during the year.

Local government rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges for all Category 1 businesses has been applied 1o all assetls owned, or
exclusively used by the business activity.

Loan and debt guarantee fees

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that Council business activities face ‘true’ commercial borrowing costs in line with
private seclor compelitors. In order lo calculate a debl guarantee fee, Council has delermined what the differential borrowing
rate would have been belween the commercial rate and Council's borrowing rate for its business aclivities.

(i) Subsidies

Government policy requires lhat subsidies provided lo cuslomers, and the funding of those subsidies, must be explicilly
disclosed. Subsidies occur where Council provides services on a less than cosl recovery basis. This oplion is exercised on a

range of services in order for Council to meel its community service obligations. The overall effect of subsidies is contained
within the Income Statements of business activities.

(ii) Return on investments (rate of return)

The NCP policy slatement requires that councils with Calegory 1 businesses ‘would be expecled lo generale a relurn on capilal
funds employed that is comparable to rates of return for private businesses operating in a similar field'.

Funds are subsequently available for meeting commitments or financing future investment strategies. The rate of return is
disclosed for each of Council's business activities on the Income Statement.

The rate of relurn is calculated as follows:

Operating result before capital income + interest expense

Written down value of |,PP&E as at 30 June

As a minimum, business activities should generale a return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate which is 3.66%
al 30/6/22.
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Marrandera Shire Council | Special Purpose Financial Stalements 2023

Note — Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(iii) Dividends
Council is not required to pay dividends to either itself (as owner of a range of businesses) or to any external enfities.

A local government water supply and sewerage businesses are permitted to pay an annual dividend from its water supply or
sewerage business surplus.

Each dividend must be calculated and approved in accordance with section 4 of DPE - Water's regulatory and assurance
framework and must not exceed:

+  50% of this surplus in any one year, or
+ the number of water supply or sewerage assessments at 30 June 2023 multiplied by $30 (less the payment for lax
equivalenl charges, nol exceeding $3 per assessment).

In accordance with section 4 of DPE - Water's regulatory and assurance framework, statement of compliance and slatement
of dividend payment, dividend payment form and unqualified independent financial audit report are submilted to DPE - Water,
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MNarrandera Shire Council | Special Purpose Financial Statemenis 2023

Narrandera Shire Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023
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1012
BUDGETED RESERVE BALANCES
Met 23/24 Budget 24/15 Budget
Interest | Tramster22/23 - B | povement Movement

|GENERAL FUND - DETAILS
[Employee's Leave Entitlement _

Emglayee's Leave Entitiement |5 128788800 5 2260500 5 132,265.00 | |-5 109,660.00 [ 5 1,178.228.00 | | [5 117823800 ] [s 117822800
Plant & Vehicle Replacement .

Plant & Vehicle Replacement |5 146761439 | S 203,89.00 3 12085556 | |5 424,144.56 [5  1,891,758.95 | |5 2589600 | 5 1765495 |5 33482005 136.95
Information Technology Repl

Street Camera Replacement 5 1,000.00 [ B 1,000.00 [ 1,000.00 5 1,000.00

Computet Replacement $  5E9.10404 % £0,000.00 5 1.976.00 5 421500 5 20.000.00 H 80.239.00 | 660.343.04 5 I5000000 |5 41934304 |5 380,000.00 | 5 39.343.04
|Carry Ower Works

Carry Over Operating Program 5 18,81856 5 18,818 56 5 85.562.52 s 66,743.96 | & 85,562.52 5 85.562.52 5 85.562.52

Carry Over Capital Program 5 £82,071.89 § 88207189 §  1,112,38261 H 23031072 | §  1,112.382.61 S 1,112,382.61 5 1,112,382.61
Organisational service assets and projects

Public Art & Festive Tree Mantenance 5 20,000.00 | % 20,000.00 (3 453.00 E3 8 370.72 $ 12,082.28 | 5 32,082.28 % 20,000.00 | 5 5208228 |5 20,000.00 |5 71,082.28

Infrastructure Replacement & Renewal $ 192371261 5% 154 62491 5 12027897 -5 10587604 § 731500 S5 53,389.00 -5 10.826.10 | $  1.912.896.51 $ 20000000 |5 2,12,89651 |5 13400000 |5 224589651

MNarrandera Business Centre Master Plan % 2,005,287.03 4 18,690.00 §  3L5%00 4 178961613 5 LITeTIZAZ | S 22857490 5 228,574.90 5 221857490

Delvery of Aged strategies 5 29887273 &5 79,012.45 -5 685867 B 8587112 |5 213,001.61 13 213,001.61 5 213,001.61

Shire Progerty Renewal & Cyohical Massienance | § 632,364.00 |5 96,412.00 -5 6500000 5 18,748.00 ] 7.760.00 4 18240000 | & 449,964.00 4 000000 |5 41996400 § 41996400

Visstor Centre Building Replacemaent ] 174,957.00 5 148,651.20 5 148.651.20 | § 26,305.80 s 26,305.80 ] 26,305.80

Renewabile Energy 3 - |3 50,000.00 ] 878.00 5 50,878.00 | § 50,878.00 H S0,00000 |$ 10087800 | $ 5000000 |5 150,878.00

Narranders Park Landiape H 20.681.08 5 10,681.08 5 176.00 5 10.505.08 | § 10,176.00 5 10,176.00 5 10,176.00
Other Internal Reserves

Electon & Integrated Planning Exp 5 2902691 ) S09.00 [ 509.00 | 5 29,535.91 [ 2953591 -5 18500005 11,035.91

Financial Management Reserve Strategy §  210,078.00 s 7.198.00 5 1205922 ] 296.6T9.TE |8 296.679.78 $ 1966797 $ 29667978

Community Tranigon $ 305.923.00 $ 30592300 |5 305923.00 5 76,143.00 | 5 382,066.00 | 5  20.,653.00 | § 462,719.00
Financial Assistance Grant

Financial Adislance Grant |5  4,124,547.00 | 5 4,124,547.00 5 6.11862000 | |§  1,994,073.00 |5  6,118,620.00 | | |5  6,118,620.00 | |5 611862000
Council Committee:

Committer - Bargllan Musesm 5 3,865.78 H 9090 5 19090 | 5 4,156.68 5 4,156.68 5 4,156.68

Ce « Koals Ce nee 5 18,208 46 -] 185.70 13 185.70 | 5 18,394.16 13 18,394.16 5 18,394.16

Comemuttes . Railway $atian ] 9,074.38 5 1,386.38 ] 1,386.38 | § 10,460.76 s 10,460.76 5 10,450.76

355 Committee - Parkide Muteum 5 3,133.00 -3 LUTR ] $ 58472 |5 3.717.72 13 3N 5 371772

Commattee - Barellan Hall 5 11,479.96 5 397.28 5 319728 |5 11,877.24 -3 1,877.24 5 21,877.24

Commilter - Grong Grong Community Hall 5 1,041.83 % 43092 s 43092 | $ 147275 s 147275 H 147275

Commilter - Domestic Violenge 5 186.90 5 - |5 186.90 5 186.90 5 186.90
Cemetery Perpetual _ _

N'dra Cemetery - Perpetual mince all [5  ao3e3sssz| 5§ 7,146.00 5 11,29600] 5§ 12,687.56] 5 3544200 |5 45476288 | [ 23472005 4v823a88|5  2347200]5  501,706.88

1§

Property Development (Red Hill] s 243,774.04 | 5 417.00 5 51796862 | B 51838562 [5  762,159.66 | |5 305000005 106715966 (-5 100000005  967,159.66
Cuarry Rehabilitation . .

Quarry Rehabilitation |5 35452.03 | 5 886,00 5 19.816.31 | [-5 18,930.31 | 5 16,521.72 | | 5 15,000.00 | 5 31,521.72[$  1500000]5 46,521.72
Reverie Cycle Vending Machine

Rivirse Cyche Vending Maching I -] 3 498.83 | B 49883 [ 5 49883 | B 3,280.00 [ 5 3,77883[5 3220005 6,998.83
Waste Management _ _ _ . I

Narranders Waste Depot ] 624,484.46 5 8,605.00 5 166,133.47 [ 17473847 [8 79922293 -5 33002300 |5 46909993 -5 16912005 45218793

Narrandera Waite Depot - Excavation 5 104,704 00 13 O 104, 704,00 5 104,704 .00 & 104, 704,00

Marrandera Waste Depot - Rehabalitation 5 368,644.00 5 - % 36864400 S 3GE644.00 5 368,644.00

Barellan Waste Depot L] 120,278.00 e 691,61 & 69161 |5 119,586.39 5 119,586.39 $ 119,586.39

Barellan Waste Depot - [xcavation 5 36,552.00 $ S - 36,592.00 5 36,592.00 H 36,592.00

Baredlan Waite Depot - Rehabiitation 5 53,419.00 $ 5 53,429.00 -3 53,479.00 $ 53,429.00

MNarranders Depot Compactor Expenies 5 48,379.00 3 3 48,379.00 s 48,379.00 s 48,379.00

Grong Grong Waste Depot Rehabilitation s 73,876.00 s $ 7387600 $ 7387600 S 7387600
Crawen Reseres

Lake Talbot Tournt Park [% 21369954 | 5 28.262.02 | B 88.162.02 [ 5 301,961.56 | |5 646200 [ 5 30842356 | 5 £80,828.00 | & 389,251.56
Stormwater

Narrandera Siormwater Reserve $ 435 ESRETTF ] ¥ -5 13127024 [5  352,251.00 § 33275005 385526005 30000005  355526.00

Baredlan Stormwater Rewerve 5 16,535.11 5 S 16,535.11 4 8.850.00 | & 25,385.11 $ 15,385.11
Developer Contributions

Section 7.11 (94) ] 5588197 - Le03ElL | S . s 5748578 5 5748578 5 5748578

Section 7.12 (944) 5 160,760.58 |5 10.268.04 5 4. 70000 | 5 461383 | 5 4443196 |5 20980637 5 20980637 5 20980637

Secuon 7.4 . Youth actwibies L3 - £ 20000000 5 5,74000 | & 200,000.00 | 5 205,740.00 13 205,740.00 & 205,7£0.00

Section 7.4 $ 250,662.50 §  200,00000 ] 727.01 |-% 200,000.00 | 5 51,389.51 ] 6500000 |$ 11638951 |5 65000005 181,389.51
Bonds, Retentions & Trusts

Kaniva Quarry 5 30,000.00 5 - |5 30,000.00 B 30,000.00 5 30,000.00

Tourist Trust 5 3249957 S 3249957 5 3249957 |5 0.00 -5 0.00 5 0,00

Arts Centre Trust 5 53.323.12 5 . 5 53,323.12 s 53,323.12 5 53,323.12

Sale of Land 5 40,153.27 5 61.275.16 1 6127516 |§ 10142843 $ 10142843 ] 101, 428.43
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202
BUDGETED RESERVE BALANCES
Net 23/24 Budget 24/25 Budget
R Transfer 22/13 - amdo Movement Movement

'Water Fund
Asset Replacement $  5113,05050] 5 5 3 - % 3 5 H 90,623.38 [ 90,623.38 [§ 5,203,673.38 §  s404700[% 55578088[s 83852005 564167288
Carry Over Works $ 105802505 5 5 % 105802505 5 s 5 832.973.29 -5 175,051.76 | 5 B82,973.29 5 . -3 88297329 | § « |8 B82,973.29
Retention - Pine Hill Conttrucuon s 20,701.90 | 4 5 s - % s 5 % . 5 | 20,701.90 H - |5 20,701.90 | & - |8 20,701.90
Secton 64 5 17013627 | & 5 - -] $ - 5 4312875 | 5 4911.61) 5 43,128.75 | 5 219.176.63 5 10,000.00 | 5 229.176.63 | 5 10,000.00 | 5 239,176.63
5 Fund
Asaet Replatement 5 267,105.08 | 5 3 3 P 3 [ 5 12687476 B 12687476 | 5 39397984 4 119044005 51302384 [ 10053500 |5 41148384
Carry Over Works s 52907401 | % 13 5 $Mo0M01 § -1 b1 TI1.820.51 s 202,746.50 | & 73182051 5 . -1 73180051 | & . 3 73182051
Unspent Loan $ 156223161 (3% 5 & 156223261 § s $ $ 145145067 -5 110,780.94 | 5 1,451,451.67 5 - |5 145145167 | 5 - |§% 145145167
Section 64 5 78,184.09 | 4 H § T 1 ) 5 $ 11,73000 | § 2,20188 | 5 11,730.00 | § 92,157.97 H £,000,00 | 5 100,157.97 | § £,000.00 | 5 108,157.97
\General Fund - External Restrictions
Specific Purpote Unexpended Grants (from separal 5 1,150,14628 | £ 1 £ 119012628 § 3 5 T 537291952 § 422783 |5 5372919528 - S 537291952 S 537252952
Other Contribution 5 109,581.36 | 5 5 4 109,581.36 § 5 5 $ 10324864 -5 633272 |5 10324854 | 5 = |§ $ 10324884 | 5 - |8 10328864
Unspent grant & contributions Liability $ 205656600 | % .8 4 205656600 § s 5 $ 270078635 5 64522035 | 2,701,78635 | & - |3 - |5 270178635 % - |%8  2,701.,7863%
Developer Contributions 5 467,305.05 | -5 1026804 $ : < - % . L1 T -8 44, 70000 | 12,684.65 | § 4443196 |5 S24.421.66 | 5 - |5 65,000.00 | 5 58942166 | 5 6500000 | 5 654,421.66
Watte Management 5 1,430,38545 | 3 S . 4 69161 5 - % 860500 § - % 16613347 5 174046865 | § 160443332 | § - |5 330123005 127431032 |5 1691200 |5 125739832
et mwater 5 500,056.35 | 3 . v % + % S T T 130,270.24 5 131,270.24 | 5 36878611 | 5 - |5 42,125.00 | 5 41091111 |5  30,000.00 | $ 380,911.11
Crown Resenves n 154 | 5 . % . [ 1 . 1 - & I 88,262.02 - 8826202 | 30196156 |$ - |% 6,462.00 |5 35615  B0OS28.00|5 389,251.56 |

External Restrictions § 1472725055 -5 1026804 § -8 646631692 5 - 5 860500 § = 5 1169439212 $ 5226412.16 $ 19,973,500.85 § - $ 27465500 § 10,248,157.85 §  99,233.00 § 20,347,390.85
Plant & vehicle replacement S 1467614395 5 5 5 S 20328900 S 5 TI0855 56 [3 424,14456 |5 1891,75895] & - |5 58900 |5 19176549535 31482005 195113695
Employee Leave Entitiements. § LIAT.BR8.00 |5 5 ] . ] -] 260500 5 - 5 132.265.00 5 109,660.00 | 5 117822800 | 5 . % - $ 1,178.228.00 | 5 - $ 117822800
Carry over works, s 900.890.45 | 5 5 . 900,890 45 5 s : 5 . S 119794514 3 29705469 |5 119794514 |5 = |5 . 5 1,197945.14 | S5 . 5 1,197.945.14
Other internal 5 2902691 | 3 5 410,078.00 35 . -] s 00700 5 . H 185,326.78 -1 603,111.78 | 5 632,13869 | 5 . H 76,143.00 | 5 T08,281.69 | 5 62,153.00 | 5 T70,434.69
Cemetery Perpetual 5 403,633.32 | 4 5 : $ 4 s 1.14600 5 . b 11.296.00 -1 3844200 | 5 45476288 | & . 1 234720015 ATB23M 8B | 5 2347200 5 501.706.88
Council Commtess 5 5699031 | 5 - 8 5 -5 5 - & - % 3,175.90 H] 327590 |5 60,266.21 | 5 - |3 o 60,266.21 | 5 - |5 60,266.21
Information Technology Replacement s 590,104.04 | 5 (000000 5 4 197600 5 ] 421500 5 2000000 5 . s 8023500 |$ 67034304 | 5 - |4 5000000)5 @ 42034304 |5 380.000.00 | 5 40,343.04
Property Developrment 5 24377404 | 5 . % 5 : 7 . s 41700 S - 51796862 5 51838562 |$ 7615966 | 5 $ 30500000 |% 1067,159.66 -5  100,000.00 | & 967,159.66
Organisational servoe assets and projpects 5 507588445 % 11821291 5 6500000 -5 406,061.70 5 10587604 5 4131733 § 5338900 5 1.797.986.85 -5 2,152,00535)5 2923879105 . 1 28000000 | 5 316387910 |5 20400000 |5 3.367.879.10
Quarry Rehabilitation £ 3545200 | % ‘ 1 . 3 % . $ 88600 S B 19.816.31 -5 18,930.31 | 5 16,521.72 | & - |5 15,000.00 | $ 3152172 | § 1500000 | 5 46,521.72
Financial Asustance Grant 412454700 % 5 - 5 412454700 § L] - $ 611862000 & 199407300 |5 611862000 |5 - % - |% 611862000 |5 - |5 611862000
Reverse Cycle Vending Machine s . 4 5 : H . H & . - b 49883 1 49883 | 5 49883 | & . % 3,280.00 | 5 377883 | 5 3,220.00 | § 699883
Bonds. Retentions & Trusts 5 15597596 | 3 . 5 L 5 . 5 = =5 3249957 § . 5 61,275 16 5 1877559 | 5 18475155 | § - 5 - 5 184,751.55 | 5 = 5 184,751.55

Internal Restrictions $_14.371,780.90 § 18821291 §  345,078.00 -5 5A35A7S.15 -5 105876.04 § 25508276 5  73.389.00 5 638699383 § - § 170740531 § 16,091873.77 - 5 43879000 5 16.530.664.77 -5  138,673.00 5 1639199177

Restrctom S Domones §  isusr § seme0 s 11s01mI07 § 10se00 § Ieende s 700 § wowsss § - 5 eemamar s lessvee s - 3 00§ sermanes § w00 § 673938
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co Unspent Grant
Ganera Fund Twwe | .COMT 22/23 T el D Revenue /Contribution Future Grant Contrib Ext Reserve Int Reserve
REVOTES

3DA Dataset Transition Cap o|no 5,000.00 5.000.00 5,000.00

tural Roads Reseals Cap o|ves 157,234.72 157.234.72 157,234.72

TOTAL REVOTE 162,234.72 - 162,234.72 162,234.72 . . . - -

CARRYOVERS

nternal Audit Expenses Op 691|YES 84,928.00 54,246.41 30.,681.59 30,681.59

‘conomic Development Strategy Op O|ND 30,000.00 15,900.00 14,100.00 14,100.00

}Lganisatmnﬂ Salary Structure Review Op O|NO 30,000.00 10,500.00 19,500.00 19,500.00

ISW Planning Portal Grant Funding Op O|YES 80,000.00 - 80,000.00 80,000.00

*OM Crown Land Grant Op O|YES 3,917.57 901.12 3,016.45 3,016.45

viosquito Control Revenue Op 0|NO 62,584.54 10,371.35 52,213.19 12,213.19 40,000.00

arellan Levee Option Op NO 212,260.00 107.328.64 104,931.36 16.497.54 88,433.82

-H5P Grant Funding Transition Suppor Op 0|NO 10,739.18 2,500.00 8.239.18 8,235.18

tegional youth - Winter holiday break 2023 Op GINO 7,000.00 1,890.91 5.109.09 5.109.09

tegional NSW Planning Portal Grant Op o[ves 4,879.26 4,190.00 689.26 689.26

Jibrary Local Special (Grant) Revenue Op ﬂl‘rES 51,072.73 31,252.19 19,820.54 19,820.54

"ech Savvy Seniors Op o[no 2,300.00 913.62 1,386.38 1,386.38

LG Disaster Recovery Funding Op o|no 1,000,000.00 - 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

Srin Museum Chart 500 Amagra Granl Op amh'Es 3,288.00 46.91 3,241.09 3.241.09

viuseum Small Grants Op o|no 1,803.45 §24.08 979.37 979.37

-reative Interpretation Dept Enterpr Op o[no 33,945.00 11,315.00 22,630.00 22,630.00

IASP Cottage Museum - Now and Then - Re-Writing {Op o|ves 2,700.00 . 2,700.00 2,700.00

ddra Museum Chart 117 Grant Op QI?ES 2.901.67 1.370.00 1.531.67 1,531.67

tegional & Local Rd Repair program Op o|nO 2,836,998.00 . 2,836,998.00 2,836,998.00

‘LR - Pothole Repair Round Revenue Op o|no §34,331.32 119,747.26 414,584.06 414,584.06

\ctive Transport Plan Op 31,050|NO 80,000.00 41,732.88 38,267.12 4,783.39 33,483.73

-ommunity - Reconnecting Regional NSW Grant Op YES 142,490.00 123,596.74 18,893.26 18.893.26

45C - Reconnecting Regional NSW Grant Op YES 97,161.00 89,548.29 7.612.7 7.612.711

J5W Nat Park & Wildlife Contribution Op 0|NO 7,272.73% - 7.272.73 7.272.73

dewell Hwy Contribution Grong Grong Reseal Op CII‘fES 93,050.00 - 93,050.00 93,050.00

dewell Hwy Contribution Grong Grong town entranc{Op ﬂl‘fES B8.000.00 6.332.72 166728 1,667 28

srong Grong Earth Park - RMS Cap CII‘I'ES 8,531.36 - 8.531.36 853136

iophos Intercept X Cap o|no 12,902.00 8,333.07 4,568.93 4,568 93

Jata Safe Cap o|no 2,000.00 851.82 1,148.18 1,148.18

teplace Network Switches Cap 16,922|YES 40,000.00 25,996.91 14,003.09 9,003.09 5,000.00

mtegrated Software System Cap O|YES 40,000.00 5,220.00 34,780.00 14,780.00 20,000.00

5IS Imagery Cap o[ves 10,000.00 5,800.00 4,200.00 4,200.00

‘wo Cameras at Marie Bashir Park Grandstand Cap o|nO 4,000.00 1,112.22 2,887.78 2,887.78

andervale Fire Shed Cap 669,524|NO 740,000.00 50,981.18 689,018.82 689,018.82

dew security fencing and CCTV Cap 0|NO 150,000.00 3.670.91 146,329.09 146,329.09

‘urther Masterplan works stage 1 Cap {JI‘I'ES 321,803.91 88,815.80 232 988.11 232,988.11

Naste Depot Improvement Works Barellan Cap o|ves 87,000.00 691.61 86,308.39 86,308.39

tormwater improvement Works Cap O|NO 100,000.00 25,004.34 74,995.66 74,995.66

Jrban Stormwater Upgrade Cap 152,959|N0O 250,000.00 106,419.10 143,580.90 93,580.90 50,000.00

semetery mangement plans and mapping software |Cap O|NO 140,000.00 19,147.16 120,852.84 50,852.84 70,000.00

.T Pool Remediation Works Cap 408|YES 71,984.24 60,191.74 11,792.50 11,792.50

ddra Sports!mund Drainage & Soak Cap 136|YES 100,000.00 63,781.26 36,218.74 36,218.74

ddra Tennis Courts Access Upgrades Cap 43,094|NO 101,397.10 50,278.13 51,118.97 51.118.97

ddra Park Irrigation Management System Cap 135,155|YES 250,000.00 6,322.65 243,677.35 95,000.00 148,677.35

darrandera Playgrounds Upgrades incl. masterplan |Cap O|NO 10,000.00 2,800.00 7.200.00 7,200.00

ddra Memorial Park lawn areas & garden beds Cap 2,727|NO 20,000.00 . 20,000.00 20,000.00

‘estive Light Upgrade / Renewal Cap O|NO 14,200.00 8,370.72 582928 5,829.28
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e Type . 22/23 el 22/23 Exp 23/28 Cory Over Revenue [Contribution Future Grant Contrib Ext Reserve Int Reserve

"OM - Destination & Discovery Hub Cap 127,957|YES 2,351,016.02 2,251,362.47 99,653.55 73,347.75 26,305.80
OM - Extension of Bike & Hike Trails Cap 1,848|YES 61,810.36 28,198.00 33.612.36 33,612.36
OM - Elevated Walk, Viewing Platform, Deck & PeddCap 311.041|YES £10,455.00 528,157.19 282,297 .81 282,297 .81
RCI R2 - Barellan Pump Track Cap 14,207|YES 63,970.02 42,014.93 21,955.09 2,931.00 6,292.56 2,731.53 10,000.00
RCIR2 - Wiradjuri Memorial Wall Stage 1 Cap 29,591|YES 236,860.01 165,198.13 71,661.88 20,000.00 51,661.88
LRI R2 - Ndra Flora and Fauna reserve - Upgrade car|Cap 0|YES 54,975.00 5.00 54,970.00 27.482.50 27.487.50
-RIP Upgrade Lake talbot Reserve - stairs, BBQ sheltgCap O|NO 200,168.18 200,168.18 22,000.00 158,168.18 20,000.00
iCP Adventure playground inclusive space Cap 0O|YES 175,000.00 175,000.00 100,000.00 75,000.00
JRCI 3 North Narrandera Footpaths (Racecourse Rd afCap 245,654|YES 290,000.00 46,477.00 243,523.00 243.,523.00
JRCI 3 Narrandera Pump Track Cap 163, 146|YES 200,000.00 210.57 199,789.43 199,789.43
JRCI 3 Barellan Sportsground Spectator Pavilion Cap 27,851|YES 130,000.00 76,289.93 53,710.07 53.710.07
JRCI 3 HM Oval - Off leash dog area Cap 46,350|YES 100,000.00 41,620.76 58.379.24 10.000.00 33,517.07 14,862.17
WCCFA - Barellan Netball Courts Cap ﬂh'ES 273,500.00 10,246.36 263,253.64 162,253 .64 101,000.00
wlar Panels Cap 11,505|YES 100,000.00 8,252.78 91,747.22 91,747.22
WCCFS - Community Safety Upgrade Program (CCTV) |Cap 269|NO 304,463.00 10,268.04 294,194.96 199,677.60 49,919.40 43,597.96 1,000.00
WCCF5 - Recreation Upgrade at Narrandera Water toyCap 335,576|NO 660,000.00 83,894.00 £76,106.00 444,106.00 132,000.00
T Deepening Works Cap o|NO 225,000.00 . 225,000.00 225,000.00
imergency Drainage Works - Urban Stormwater Jany Cap 943|YES 106,292.68 51,788.12 54,504.56 54,504.56
dew Road - Red Hill Industrial Estate Cap 23,926|NO 780,000.00 758,585.51 21,414.49 21,414.49
Jrban Pavement Rehabilitation Cap 0|NO 75,497.00 194.27 75.302.73 75,302.73
Jrban Footpath Add. Funds requested - To railway oyCap 12,151|YES 100.000.00 - 100,000.00 100,000.00
tRUPP - Erigolia Road (Widening) Cap 0|YES 1,102,137.99 31,036.71 1,071,101.28 214,220.26 856,881.02
toads Resheeting - (Unsealed rural roads) Cap NO 243,536.52 78.754.67 78,754 67

Buckingbong Rd Cap 0 144,420.02

Mollys Lagoon Rd Resheeting Cap 7,633 20,361.83

Back Yamma Rd Resheeting Cap 3,808 -
‘LR R1 - Brewarrana Bridge Retrofitting Cap 660|YES 388.012.50 22,807.31 365,205.19 48,681.85 183,818.87 132,704.47
‘LR Narrandera Bus Route Cap O|YES 430,750.64 370,153.44 60,597.20 38,497.40 22,099.80
‘LR R4 - Old Wagga Road Rehab Cap 0|ND 815,539.00 8§15.,539.00 163,107 80 652,431.20
‘locd Damage Repairs AGRN1001 Cap NO 1,843,049 1,497,039.47 1,497,039.47

Holloway Rd Culvert Cap 10,600| 139.77

Grong Grong River Road Cap S,lell 14,.871.70

Mejum Rd Cap [ 34,862.60

Mannings Rd CH4.85-8.35 Cap ol 15,020.67

Middle Rd Cap i

Kingston Rd Cap ﬂl -

Devlins Bridge Rd Cap [} 91,919.53

Galore Park Rd CHO0.20-0.40 Cap 0] 5,484.41

Galore Forest Rd CHO.00-1.90 Cap o] 31,339.67

Higgins Rd Cap [ 67.01

Jacksons Rd Cap of 62.01

Gepperts Rd Cap of 62.01

Mimosa Rd Cap 0 19,962 .65

Lismoyle Rd Cap 0 34,580.59

Strontian Rd Cap 0 258.34

Hulmes Rd Cap 0

Hewson Rd Cap 0 .

Mannings Rd CH9.55-11.35 Cap 8,397 8,556.15

Galore Park Rd CH4.64-4.74 Cap 0} 2,861.06

Galore Forest Rd CH3.70-4.50 Cap Dl 17,160.75

The Gap Rd CH1.60-2.20 Cap Ol 11,087.74

The Gap Rd CH2.60-3.40 Cap ﬂl 9,671.72
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Ganera Fund Twwe || .COMT 22/23 e el D Revenue /Contribution Future Grant Contrib Ext Reserve Int Reserve
The Gap Rd CH3.70-6.40 Cap 0 48,030.99
‘ting Country Bridges Cap YES 606,966.53 415,902.35 305,549.15 110,353.20
FCB - Molly's Bridge Cap 241,329 39,705.06
FCB - Somerset Bridge Cap 312,291 151,359.12
toads to Recovery Grant Cap NO 552,112.13 550,561.04 156,081.04 394 480.00
Curtis Rd - Gravel resheet Cap 0 1,551.09
tegional Roads (Capital Component of Block Grant) |Cap O|NO 574,000.00 487,899.49 86,100.51 86,100.51
\ctive Transport - Walking (Mulga St Barellan) Cap O|NO 80,000.00 71,472.68 8,527.32 5.329.58 3,197.75%
juilding renewal and upgrades Cap 17,890|YES 192,184.94 165,712.12 26,472 82 26,472.82
Norks - New vehicle storage shed Cap 56,845|NO 125,000.00 86,978.42 38.021.58 38,021.58
dew Building at Depot Cap Ba2|YES 139,483.00 113,966.23 25,516.77 25,516.77
\irport Taxiway Cap 3,960|YES 2,175,326.00 13,936.78 2,161,389.22 281.090.61 799,604.00 1,080,694.61
NOTAL CARRYOVER 24,464,546.42 7,338,429.47 17,126.,116.95 1,035,710.42 7.462,518.46 4,209,204.44 2,186,058.29 658,723.77 1,573,901.57
FOTAL REVOTE & CARRYOVER 24,626,781.14 7,338,429.47 17,288,351.67 1,197,945.14 7,462,518.46 4,209,204.44 2,186,058.29 658,723.77 1,573,901.57
Op 4,789.114.33 85,562.52 4,510,019.20 193,532.61 - - -
Cap 12,499,237 34 1,112,382.61 2,952,499.26 4,015,671.84 2,186,058.29 658,723.77 1,573,901.57
Total 1,197,945.14
Unspent Grant
Water Fund Revenue /contribution Future Grant Contrib Ext Reserve Int Reserve
REVOTES
CARRYOVERS
NTP filter/Upgrade design Cap OITE 5 41,912.00 8.604.64 33,307.36 33,307.36
Jorth Zone Pressure Pump - low pressure issues Cap Dh'ES 318.994.54 1,560.12 37.434.42 37.434.42
Nater Main Replacements Cap YES 153,987.63 109,580.26 109,580.26
Grosvenor 5t Watermain Replace Cap 127 27|YES 44,407 .37
tydrant and Valve replacements Cap 636.36|YES 104,781.15 33,229.56 71,551.59 71,551.59
Yine Hill reservoir fencing/ demolition Cap 63.64|YES 49,450.41 42,469.87 6,980.54 6,980.54
wilar Cap 227272 73|YES 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00
WCM Additional Works Cap 0|YES 130,774.00 130,774.00 98,080.50 32,693.50
NTP Scoping Study Cap O|YES 156,019.00 31,990.16 124,028.84 93,021.63 31,007.21
dousehold Filter Project Cap 0|NO 17,826.00 6,333.58 11,492.42 11,492 42
sordon 5t fencing Cap OITES 30,781.26 3,622.88 27,158.38 27,158.38
“ul-de-sac ring mains Cap ﬂI‘rES 100,584.16 3,564.02 97,020.14 97,020.14
“"elemelry hardware upgrade Cap OIYES 149,645.65 1,299.00 148.346.65 148,346.65
Yine Hill Pumps Replacement Cap o|vES 28,661.22 2,260.40 26,400.82 26,400.82
fotal 1,253,417.02 179,341.60 1,074,075.42 - - 191,102.13 - 882,973.29 -
Unspent Grant
Sewer Fund Revenue Jeontribution Future Grant Unspent loan Ext Reserve Int Reserve
REVOTES
‘elemetry software upgrade |cap ofves | 40,000.00 | 40,000.00 | 40,000.00 |
CARRYOVERS
jarellan Sewer Cap 24193.64|YES 6,132 845.66 443,125.31 5,689,720.35 4,238,268.68 1,451,451.67
wwer Main Relines Cap 0|ND 350,000.00 4,975.20 345,024.80 345,024.80
wlar Cap 227272 .73|YES 250,000.00 661.49 249,3318.51 249,338.51
‘elemetry hardware upgrade Cap O|YES 100,000.00 2,542.80 97.457.20 97.457.20
lotal 6,872,845.66 451,304.80 6,421,540.86 - . 4,238,268.68 1,451,451.67 731,820.51 .
All Funds Total 32,753,043.82 7,969,075.87 24,783,967.95 1,197,945.14 7,462,518.46 8,638,575.25 3,637,509.96 2,273,517.57 1,573,901.57
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